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Chairman’s Statement

EERWMES

In 2019, global economic recovery was challenged and threatened by
the drastically changing international trade environment and rising
economic uncertainties. These factors slowed down global economic
growth. As for China, one of the largest markets for C.P. Pokphand
Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”),
her economy faced mounting downward pressure from negative factors
and challenges — old and new, at home and abroad. Her gross domestic
product grew slower from 6.6% in 2018 to 6.1% in 2019, but still
faster than the global level — proof of her better resilience and ability
to maintain relatively stable growth momentum. Regarding Vietnam,
the other large market for the Group, her gross domestic product grew
7.0% in 2019, reaching above 7% the second consecutive year. The
manufacturing, construction and service sectors were main growth
drivers and the agriculture sector managed a 2% growth.

In China, prompted by the different challenges and pressures during
the year, and with the Chinese government rolling out a series of
new policies giving guidance supportive of the industry development,
consolidation, transformation and upgrade of the agri-food industry
hastened with the weaker players ousted. The African swine fever
was rampant in 2019 and hit hard the swine farming sector — an
important part of the animal protein industry — in China, with swine
production capacity down markedly and output waning fast. As a
result, pork supply was affected and prices reached historical high.
Prices of other animal protein products followed, setting off chain
reactions in multiple sectors and across the society. The African
swine fever epidemic indeed has unprecedentedly stricken the swine
farming sector and its value chain; however, it has also presented the
sector and the entire agri-food industry with opportunities like never
before. It is like an accelerator that has helped expedite modernisation
and consolidation of the agri-food industry. Although swine feed
demand fell sharply because of plunging swine production, which
posed temporary pressure on the Group’s feed business, the Group
was able to tackle the challenges and threats by applying its unique
technology and operational advantages — stepping up promotion of
our feed business’ new services, embracing new competitive models
and optimising product structure and customer mix. Furthermore,
the Group forged ahead with its integrated business model achieving
good progress in its integrated broiler business, swine slaughtering
and processing business and modern food business. Being able to
effectively harness new government policies as well as new conditions
and requirements of the changing market, the Group has seen
remarkable enhancement of its overall competitive strengths and
sustainable development capabilities.

With the Chinese government introducing an array of polices and
stricter food safety regulations to support the development of the
industry, the swine farming and other agri-food sectors are expected
to modernise at unprecedented pace — aiming for scalability,
standardisation and industrialisation. The agri-food industry in
China will be presented with new and historic opportunities. The
Group will step up efforts to consolidate its competitive advantages,
continue its commitment to quality, safety, green practices and
sustainable development, as well as adopt cutting edge technologies
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and equipment in order to enhance its business model. The Group will
push forward with transforming and upgrading its businesses, ensure its
products and services are of high quality and bolster the CP brand. We
will continue to cement the foundation of our businesses and quickly
raise our overall competitive strengths and sustainable development
capabilities, to ultimately become a leader in the modern agri-food
sector.

In Vietnam, although affected by the global economic slowdown,
natural disasters and the African swine fever outbreak in 2019,
the economy still sustained notable growth. She became a part
of the “Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement for Trans-
Pacific Partnership” (CPTPP) and the “EU-Vietnam Free Trade
Agreement” (EVFTA) in 2018 and 2019, respectively, opening up
ample opportunities for various industries — including argi-food —
and boosting exports. However, trade tensions between some of the
largest global economies led to intensified competition and increased
pressure on local enterprises in meeting international standards.
Looking ahead, to promote stable economic development in Vietnam
with people’s livelihood, sustainability, care for the environment
and market-orientation as emphases, the government has pledged
to speed up reforming the agricultural and farming related sectors —
covering aspects such as labour policies, administrative frameworks,
law enforcement, animal disease prevention and control and
environmental protection. Always at the forefront of sustainable
development, the Group uses international standards in running
its operations and adopts the latest technology while expanding its
business. In the long run, we believe the Group is poised to benefit
from the increasing domestic demand for high quality agricultural
products and rising exports on the back of the new free trade
agreements.

Looking ahead, with the vision to become the “Kitchen of the
World”, the Group will press ahead with its transformation and
upgrade from a production-oriented enterprise into a demand-driven
business, building on its dedication to quality control along the
entire agri-food value chain from animal feed and farming to food
products, and operating on a greener and more eco-friendly business
model. In addition, the Group emphasises environmental protection
and prudent resource usage. We will employ advanced technologies
and equipment, offering safer and healthier foods that can meet the
diverse needs of consumers in China and Vietnam. All these goals are
giving the Group its drive to achieve sustainable development and
keep innovating.

Finally, I would like to express my heartfelt thanks to all members of
our team for their efforts and contribution to the Group in the past
year. My gratitude also goes to our shareholders and stakeholders for
their unwavering trust and support over the years.

Soopakij Chearavanont
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 April 2020
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This is one of our newest food processing plants in China demonstrating our
commitment in providing safe, high-quality products to consumers and our
aspiration to become the “Kitchen of the World”.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
% E B AR A

Financial Highlights
B E

(Unit: US$ million) (Hr 2 HHFT) 2019 2018
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income Items FEL2TMKHEREH
Revenue WA 6,961 6,709
Gross Profit EEV| 1,226 1,042
Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company AR 2\ R JiE 3R R AN i A 346 282
Basic Earnings Per Share (US cents)* T RE A B ) (Al = 1.365 1.112
Diluted Earnings Per Share (US cents) B PR 4 R ) (SEAIL) 1.365 1.112
Total Dividend Per Share (HK cents) BB B (Al 3.2 4.3
Interim Dividend Per Share (HK cents) A5 B o 1 B (Al ) 0.8 1.7
Final Dividend Per Share (HK cents) A5 B A 451 I 8. (Al ) 2.4 2.6
Key Statement of Financial Position Items FHEMB RN ELEH
Property, Plant & Equipment L E Y& 1,988 1,781
Total Assets MK E 5,346 4611
Total Bank Borrowings & Corporate Bond HERAT A 3 R A AR 1,735 1,811
Issued Capital CLEEAT B AR 253 253
Shareholders’ Equity T T JREAG HE 2% 1,548 1,356
Total Equity T 25 AA A 1,967 1,702
Revenue US$ million Gross Profit US$ million
WA BEET EF BEETL
8,000 1,500
6,709 5,961 1,226
6,000 R TP
900 +
4,000
600 -
2,000 A 300 L
0
2018 2019 2018 2019
Profit Attributable US$ million Dividend  HK cents
to Shareholders B E3XTT Per Share (|
of the Company 400 - BRES  5g-
ANFRE 346 ’ 4.30
FEA L3S A _
FEAL &R 300 4 282 4.0 520
3.0 +
200 -
2.0 1
100 n 1.0 ]
0.0
2018 2019 2018 2019

* Remarks ik :

Based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and

convertible preference shares in issue during the year.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GROUP RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue increased
3.7% to US$6,961 million (2018: US$6,709 million). Agri-food
business in China contributed 60.0% of the Group’s revenue while
agri-food business in Vietnam contributed 40.0% of the Group’s
revenue. Overall gross profit margin for the year was 17.6% (2018:
15.5%). The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders grew 22.8%
from US$282 million in 2018 to US$346 million in 2019. Profit
growth was mainly due to better performance of our farm and food
businesses in China, increased in profit margins of our Vietnam
farming business as a result of higher swine prices and a larger positive
net change in fair value of biological assets.

Basic and diluted earnings per share were both US 1.365 cents (2018:
US 1.112 cents). The board has proposed a final dividend per share
(“DPS”) of HK$0.024. Including the interim DPS of HK$0.008, total
DPS in 2019 was HK$0.032 (2018: HK$0.043).

—

Vietnam Agri-food 0 AU A
iz 40.0%

6,961

US$ million
BEET

BUSINESS REVIEW

Agri-food Business in China

Changes in global economic dynamics and challenges in domestic
economy have propelled China’s agri-food industry into a new
phase of development. Demand for higher-quality and safer food
as well as sustainable development have also reached new heights.
The government is encouraging large-scale production and higher
product quality with an aim to eventually meeting international
standards. Larger players in the industry, leveraging on their more
abundant resources, are proactively adapting to the government’s new
regulations and requirements. Some have started to bear fruit during
the industry consolidation process. But on the other hand, smaller
players have been forced to exit.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENMR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Agri-food Business in China (continued)

Otherwise, in 2019, the spread of African swine fever has caused
the overall swine population in China to reduce significantly. The
resulting decline in demand for swine feed has negatively affected our
feed business. However, swine prices surged amid supply shortages,

benefitting our farm and food businesses.

In 2019, revenue of the Group’s agri-food business in China was
US$4,179 million (2018: US$4,149 million). Feed business accounted
for 75.6% of agri-food business revenue in China while farm and food
businesses combined contributed the remaining 24.4%. Overall gross
profit margin for the Group’s China agri-food business increased from
14.0% in 2018 to 15.9% in 2019. Feed business gross margin remained
at a solid level; farm and food businesses’ combined gross margin

improved mainly due to better prices of our farm and food products.
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China - Revenue

PE - BA

Farm and Food

FERERIR

Feed
et

US$ million

0 1000 2000

The Group’s China feed sales volume decreased 1.6% to 6.93 million
tons. Feed revenue declined 7.3% to US$3,159 million, reflecting
lower average selling price because of changes in product mix — from
swine to poultry feed products — and the weakening of Renminbi.
Swine feed was the largest component in the Group’s China feed
business segment, accounting for 48.2% of this segment’s revenue
in 2019. Poultry feed, aqua feed, other feed products and premix
contributed 31.5%, 8.8%, 7.1% and 4.4%, respectively.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B ER

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Agri-food Business in China (continued)

Premix

»

Gl

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

5 75 O R ()
TERKRRER (M)

Other Feed Products

TR A iR

4.4%
N
2

Poultry Feed
popa

31.5%

Swine feed sales volume in 2019 reduced by 12.3% to 3.29 million
tons, mainly due to a substantial reduction in the country’s swine
population. Swine feed revenue declined 16.2% to US$1,525 million.
With targeted effort under a more buoyant demand situation, poultry
feed sales volume increased by 14.8% to 2.56 million tons while
revenue grew by 10.1% to US$995 million. Sales volume of aqua feed
decreased by 11.7% to 0.44 million tons and revenue declined by
15.3% to US$277 million, reflecting lower efficiency of aqua farming

as a result of cooler water temperature during the year.

Combined farm and food revenue in China was US$1,020 million
compared to US$743 million in 2018. The increase in revenue came
mainly from food factories that commenced operations in late 2017
and late 2018. Higher swine and poultry prices compared to last year
also boosted the top-line of our combined farm and food businesses

segment.
Agri-food Business in Vietham

In 2019, despite global trade tensions as well as challenges brought
about by diseases and natural disasters, Vietnam’s economy
maintained a positive momentum. African swine fever continued to
spread in Asia and Europe during the year and also reached Vietnam.
Swine prices started falling following the official announcement of the
disease outbreak in February, but began to recover during the second
quarter of 2019 and surged sharply towards the end of the year. As
a result, average swine prices for the year were higher in 2019 than
in 2018. However, the disease led to a sizable reduction of swine
population in Vietnam, driving down the demand for swine feed in
the market.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENMR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Agri-food Business in Vietham (continued)

The Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam generated revenue of
US$2,781 million, representing an increase of 8.6% year-on-year.
Feed business accounted for 31.9% of the Group’s Vietnam revenue,
while farm and food businesses combined accounted for the remaining
68.1%. Overall gross profit margin of the Group’s agri-food business in
Vietnam increased to 20.2% in 2019 (2018: 18.1%).
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5 75 [ R ()
MRl EmES (S
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Vietnam - Revenue

M- WA

Farm and Food

FERHAE
Feed
o [ =
US$ million
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Reduced swine population in Vietnam has led to a decline in swine
feed demand. Although other feed products, including poultry and
aqua feed, recorded increases in sales volume, total feed sales volume
dropped by 3.5% to 1.70 million tons. With increased contribution
from higher priced aqua feed products, revenue of the Group’s feed
business in Vietnam increased by 5.8% to US$887 million. Swine,
poultry, aqua and other feed products accounted for 30.3%, 24.9%,
43.3% and 1.5%, respectively.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B ER

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Agri-food Business in Vietnam (continued)

Meanwhile, swine farming continued to be the major revenue
contributor of the Group’s farm and food businesses. Favourable
average swine prices for the year lifted the performance of this
segment. The average selling price of our fattening pigs in 2019
was approximately VND46,200 per kg while the average price
was VND43,500 per kg in 2018 — an increase of 6.2% year-on-
year. Combined revenue of the Group’s farm and food businesses in
Vietnam was US$1,894 million, a 10.0% increase from 2018.

Swine prices witnessed a sharp rise in the last quarter of 2019 with
year-end prices reaching VND80,000 per kg. Consequently, a positive
net change in fair value of biological assets of US$105.6 million was
recorded in 2019 versus US$95.9 million in 2018.

OUTLOOK

In 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak has brought about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment in China and
Vietnam. Whilst the Group has put in place contingency measures
to lower the impact to its business operations, some disruptions have

been unavoidable in certain locations.

Swine prices in China and Vietnam reached record high levels in
2019. The effect of swine restocking efforts, which may affect both
feed and farm businesses, has yet to be seen. Overall, we remain

cautious for the year 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total assets of US$5,345.8
million, representing an increase of 15.9% as compared to US$4,611.4
million as at 31 December 2018.

Net debt (31 December 2019: US$1,292.5 million, 31 December
2018: US$1,368.4 million) to equity ratio (defined as total bank
borrowings and corporate bond minus cash and deposits divided by

total equity) was 0.66 as compared to 0.80 as at 31 December 2018.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(continued)

Total bank borrowings and corporate bond of the Group are
denominated in U.S. dollars (“US$”) (31 December 2019: US$672.1
million, 31 December 2018: US$792.9 million), Vietnamese Dong
(“VND”) (31 December 2019: US$343.5 million, 31 December 2018:
US$348.8 million) and Renminbi (“RMB”) (31 December 2019:
US$719.2 million, 31 December 2018: US$669.7 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s current portion of long-term
borrowings amounted to US$330.0 million (31 December 2018:
US$190.4 million), and fixed interest rate borrowings amounted to
US$361.0 million (31 December 2018: US$342.8 million). During
the year, the Group has entered into interest rate swap contracts
to manage its interest rate exposure for the floating interest rate
borrowings. As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate notional principal
amount of these outstanding derivative financial instruments was

US$155.4 million.

All domestic sales in the PRC and Vietnam are transacted in RMB
and VND respectively and export sales are transacted in foreign
currencies. Foreign currencies are required for purchase of certain
raw materials, equipment etc. The Group monitors foreign exchange
movements and determines appropriate hedging activities when
necessary. During the year, the Group has entered into forward
exchange contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures of US$
denominated liabilities against RMB and VND. As at 31 December
2019, the aggregate notional principal amount of these outstanding
derivative financial instruments for US$ against RMB was US$169.4
million.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and borrowings. The
Group had time deposits and cash and cash equivalents of US$424.7
million as at 31 December 2019, an increase of US$16.6 million as

compared to 31 December 2018.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, out of the total borrowings of US$1,734.8
million (31 December 2018: US$1,811.4 million) obtained by the
Group, US$186.7 million (31 December 2018: US$169.8 million)
was secured and accounted for 10.8% (31 December 2018: 9.4%)
of the total borrowings. Certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and land use rights with an aggregate net book value
of US$207.7 million (31 December 2018: US$225.5 million) were
pledged as security.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees were given by certain subsidiaries in the Group to
financial institutions in the PRC for certain indebtedness of
independent third party customers of the Group. In the case of
financial guarantees provided which exceed the net asset value of the
relevant subsidiaries, our maximum contingent liabilities are limited
to the net asset value of these subsidiaries. The net asset value of
the relevant subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 was approximately
US$21.2 million (31 December 2018: US$54.5 million). The
contingent liabilities of the Group in respect of such guarantees as
at 31 December 2019 were US$10.5 million (31 December 2018:
US$14.9 million).

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s biological assets amounted to
US$638.3 million (2018: US$556.1 million). The increase in the
value of biological assets during the year ended 31 December 2019 of
US$82.2 million (2018: US$139.1 million) was mainly attributable to
purchases and raising of biological assets of US$1,749.1 million (2018:
US$1,697.5 million) minus sales of biological assets of US$1,664.2
million (2018: US$1,561.8 million). Details of the Group’s biological
assets are set out in note 19 to the financial statements of the annual
report. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
a positive net change in fair value of biological assets of US$105.6
million (2018: US$95.9 million). We have complied with relevant
laws and regulations and have obtained the requisite licenses and
permits for carrying out our farming business from relevant regulatory
authorities, including the Investment Certificate issued by the

Management Board of Dong Nai Industrial Zone in Vietnam.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant investments held, nor material acquisitions or disposals

during the year.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed around 42,000 staff
in the PRC, Vietnam and Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing
market conditions while performance bonuses are granted on a
discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include, for example,

medical insurance and training.
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Corporate Governance Report

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) is committed to maintaining high
corporate governance standards, the principles of which are to uphold
a high standard of ethics, transparency, accountability and integrity
in all aspects of business and to ensure that affairs are conducted in

accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) — Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) throughout the year 2019.

THE BOARD

(a) Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) comprises sixteen directors, including
eight executive directors, two non-executive directors and six

independent non-executive directors.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) and the relationships among the Directors are set
out in the Biographical Details of Directors section on pages
40 to 46 of the annual report.
(b) Chairman and Chief Executive
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is the Chairman of the Group.
Mr. Bai Shanlin and Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg are
the Chief Executive Officers of China area and Vietnam
area respectively. The roles of the Chairman and the chief
executives are distinct and separate with a clear division of
responsibilities. The Chairman is responsible for overseeing
the function of the Board while the Chief Executive Officers

are responsible for managing the Group’s business.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
-

TRERBRSE

e I B A R A ) (A 2 1 D) B i Jag 4 ) (A2
[ACE 1) By DR 45 v BE A S48 36K F > JLIRI B
A At T 2 T AR 45 S5 05 TH B B A0OR K P RE
WL ~ AT Bl AR SRy > ST DR A S AR AT
R AR o

4y

EEERSTA

R JUER > KA CEREEBE SRS A
o) (W32 BT 1) KR 2 b vl LA (M Bt LA 1)
B4 09 B il A S A IR S D) K (4 SR IR i)
([ A8 30 5 S0 D) Ji B 2 8 < < B S o

&

S
'S

Exg

(a) EBFHER
BEAGEEANIL KA ERFG ((EF
T REHARBRE > RN\ LPTES
MAERTERE RANABLIEATESF -

AAFFRAESE ([HF]) NJEEREFZMH
4 B AR U 4F SR 40 B 40 1 [ ¥ 45 Ji FEE w4
i o

(b) ESRMTHAR
WENBERAREIERR - AEKRBER
Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerge 4 43 5l % v [ [k
T g [ (AT B AR A o 3 R AT BUAR AR Y
AR IR  EFERAHEY
RG> 4T BRI A B AT B AR
) B o

21



22

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, directly and through its committees, leads
and provides direction for the management by laying
down strategies and overseeing their implementation by
the management, reviews the operational and financial
performance, provides oversight to ensure that a sound system
of risk management and internal control is in place, and

performs corporate governance functions.

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) provide advisory, checks and balances
for effective and constructive contribution to the Board to
safeguard interests of the shareholders and the Company as a

whole.

The management is responsible for execution of business

strategies and dealing with day-to-day operations.
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
(except Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo who confirmed his independence
prior to his appointment as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2020) and considers that

all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules —
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct for dealings
in the Company’s securities by its Directors. In response to a
specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors (except Mr.
Cheng Yuk Wo who was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 1 January 2020) have
confirmed that they complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during 2019.
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f

(9)

Directors’ Training

All Directors (except Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo who was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from
1 January 2020) have kept abreast of their responsibilities as
directors of the Company and of the business activities and
development of the Company. During 2019, all Directors,
being eight executive Directors, namely, Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Mr. Adirek Sripratak, Mr. Suphachai
Chearavanont, Mr. Narong Chearavanont, Mr. Bai Shanlin,
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan
and Mr. Yu Jianping; two non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr.
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ma Andrew
Chiu Cheung, Mr. Sombat Deo-isres, Mr. Sakda Thanitcul,
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej and Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon,

Meth Jiaravanont and Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe; and five

participated in continuous professional development
by respectively attending one or more of the following:
trainings organized by the Company and other professional
organisations, director training webcasts and e-training
provided by the Stock Exchange and monthly updates on the
financial performance and financial position provided by the

Company.

General Meetings, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company held
one annual general meeting, one special general meeting,
seventeen Board meetings, three Audit Committee meetings,
two Remuneration Committee meetings, two Nomination
Committee meetings and two Corporate Governance

Committee meetings.

The Directors are expected to devote sufficient time and
attention to perform their duties and responsibilities.
According to the bye-laws of the Company, Directors can
attend board meetings in person or by means of a telephone

conference or similar communications equipment.
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THE BOARD (continued) EEg(E)

(9) General Meetings, Board Meetings and Board (g) REAZ - EEEREETETETHZEESS
Committee Meetings (continued) = (&)
The attendance of each Director at each of the meetings in TEALIBEMNEER - NLEHES
2019, by name, is set out in the following table: o % A O R

No. of meeting(s) attended/held

LY 2/¢ VA-F L2
Annual Special Corporate
General General Audit  Remuneration Nomination ~ Governance
Meeting Meeting Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
R st 173 1 ’E bEER

REXG  BHkE  EHE ZHEA RE®  ZAf ZAF

Executive Directors A%
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont E LI

(resigned with effect on 10 May 2019) (RZF-HELH+HRE) - - 45 - - - -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chaiman) % AN Jik (ZEK) 11 011 1717 - - 11 -
Mr. Adirek Sripratak 35 A 1l 0 1717 - 0 0 -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont WECEE Wil W) 16/17 - Wil W) -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont AR A

(appointed with effect from | June 2019) (B=F-HERH—HEHf) - o 10/10 - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin AEREL I in 1 - - - -
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg s & 0t 11 16/17 - - - -
Mss. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan £ 0/t 11 16/17 - - - -
Mr. Yu Jianping TRTEE 1l il 1717 - - - -
Non-executive Directors FHEE
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont E Sk 11 0n 16/17 33 - - N
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe WikE—J4 11 0 1717 - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors Vg (it
Mt. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung IR /1 11 1717 33 NN 0 i
Mr. Sombat Deo-istes Sombat Deo-isres i 4 11 11 16/17 11 N i N
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul e 4: 11 0 1717 33 - 0 i
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai VittavasgarnvejJ6 4 Wil I 16/17 12 i - -
Mts. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari Vimooktayon% 1: 11 0 1717 - N 0 -
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BRI

(appointed with effect from [ January 200) — (H=F-FE—H—HEH ) - - - - - _ _
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THE BOARD (continued)

(h)

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance in

annual and interim reports.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the financial performance
and cash flows of the Group in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement of
the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report section on pages 88 to 96 of the annual

report.

The Board considers that, in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in accordance

with the applicable accounting standards.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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TEERRE

BOARD DELEGATION

The Board has delegated authority to four committees which
operate under their respective defined terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website. The attendance of each committee member to the committee

meetings in 2019, by name, is set out on page 24 of the annual report.
(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
(Chairman) (appointed with effect from 1 January 2020),
Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung (he was Chairman from
2005 to December 2019), Mr. Sakda Thanitcul and Mr.
Vinai Vittavasgarnvej (appointed in May 2019) and a non-
executive Director, Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Sombat Deo-
isres was previously a member from September 2005 until his

resignation as a member in May 2019.

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board with the
primary responsibility to provide independent oversight of the
Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to perform its duties including support
from the Internal Audit Department, external auditor and
management, in reviewing the Group’s financial results,

material financial, operational and compliance controls.

During 2019, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The

following is a summary of work of the Audit Committee in
2019:

o reviewed the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2018,

and gave recommendations to the Board for approval;

o reviewed the report from the external auditor to the
Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2018;

° reviewed the internal audit reports of the Group;

o reviewed the interim report and the interim results

announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2019,

and gave recommendations to the Board for approval;
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)
(i) Audit Committee (continued)
o reviewed the report from the external auditor to the

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Audit Committee for the six months ended 30 June
2019;

. reviewed the audit and non-audit services undertaken

by the external auditor; and

° reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2019 and gave recommendations to the Board for

approval.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and the
approval of the remuneration and the terms of engagement
of the external auditor. To ensure the external auditor’s
independence, the Audit Committee reviewed the audit and
non-audit services undertaken by the external auditor during

the year.

During 2019, the remuneration paid by the Group to the

external auditor are set out below:
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(US$’000)

Category of Services JIR %5 %8 530 (T T )

Audit Services 1z IR 1,624
Review engagements and B B K

agreed-upon procedures BT ey 285

1,909

Other services b iR % 165

Total ik 2,074
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(i)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Vinai
Vittavasgarnvej (Chairman) (appointed in May 2019), Mr.
Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung (he was Chairman from April
2012 to May 2019), Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mrs. Vatchari
Vimooktayon (appointed in May 2019) and two executive
Directors, namely Mr. Adirek Sripratak and Mr. Suphachai
Chearavanont (appointed in September 2019). Mr. Sakda
Thanitcul was previously a member from 2008 until his

resignation as a member in May 2019.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated by the Board with
the primary responsibilities to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration policy and structure for all directors
and senior management, and consider and recommend to
the Board the remuneration packages of individual executive

directors and senior management.

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is
to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate high-caliber employees who are critical to the
success of the Company, thereby enhancing the value of the
Company to its shareholders. The objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to maintain fair and competitive
packages based on business requirements and industry

practices.

During 2019, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
to determine remuneration packages for the Directors and

other remuneration matters.

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors (including the
executive Directors who are regarded as senior management
of the Company) for 2019 are set out in note 10 to financial

statements.

N

A

ExaRE(E

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
-

FMEzES

i 2= B & Bk VY 4 8 Sr IR AT HE S BT Vinai
VittavasgarnvejJg 4 (F)F) (R ZF—JuER
AMWTAT) ~ BB A (YR T — 24
WHZE R IEHABEMEER) ~ Sombat
Deo-isrest 4 FVatchari Vimooktayon® =+
(REFBVELAERE) AL AT ESR
B %€ 25 6 S A A B A= e AR O T — LR
JUABERAE) B8R © Sakda Thanitcul S84
HoZZNFEHEE  HER_-Z—NLEL
HBHE R W o

FMEZEETHEFTRE > TEARRES
Fe ves A8 LN A 2 85 S0 I 1B SR % R 1) o
57 1 S R A B B % ) s R A
TR LA BN B A A -

% B 3% R AR R RE A R
1~ 90 B e Y e LR R R o S A A1) A A5
Ry AN ) W IR A EORR o R T 2 A 4 R BE
ORI AR o A2 W) 1 357 T BOR & A0 AR 95 5
BT 5 B AT S > DRFR A F 1 B 35T )
& 2 5% -

BEFJUE S HME RGBT WKk
VIS R S 1 7 T B L At 7 T o

REZFE > MER (BRHFERAAAF
FAE BN B Z AT F) AR 5F
17 3B i B 2 A 10



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b ¥ HE

BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mrs. Vatchari
Vimooktayon (Chairman) (appointed as member in May
2019 and became Chairman in September 2019), Mr. Ma
Andrew Chiu Cheung, Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda
Thanitcul and two executive Directors, namely Mr. Adirek
Sripratak and Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont (appointed in
September 2019). Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont was previously a
member and Chairman from April 2012 until his resignation
from the Board in May 2019. Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont was
previously a member and Chairman from May 2019 until his

resignation from the Nomination Committee in August 2019.

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board with
the primary responsibilities to formulate and implement
the nomination policy and board diversity policy, make
recommendations to the Board on selection of individual(s)
nominated for directorship and assess the independence of

independent non-executive Directors.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a successive term of one year and,
together with all other Directors, are subject to retirement by
rotation, but may offer themselves for re-election at annual
general meetings in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws. According to the Company’s bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, no less than one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at

an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

During 2019, the Nomination Committee held two meetings
to consider nominations of Directors and to review the Board

composition.

Subsequent to the year end, the Nomination Committee,
having reviewed and assessed the independence of all
independent non-executive Directors and reviewed the profiles
and contributions of the retiring Directors who have offered
themselves for re-election or election, recommended the
Board to propose the re-election and election of such retiring
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.
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Nomination Committee (continued) (i) RBEEE(H)
Details of retirement and re-election and election of Directors IR T % E RN R AT I 2 R R AR B 56
are set out in the section headed “Directors” on pages 56 to 57 BSTH[ER |-
of the annual report.
The Company adopted a board diversity policy which sets out AR RN E S G 2 on bR > e B
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company BEHEFGLTALm I8 o RAE A RFER
is committed to maintain high corporate governance standards BAEERKT > BARLEES T/LESR
and recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse TR MR AR ER  c EFER
board to strengthen its effectiveness and governance. Board RSN PR 3o
appointments will be based on meritocracy.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity B N — R Zou b H B i e >
considerations, which include but are not limited to gender, AR R - 8 UL RBEFER - H
age, cultural and educational background, professional FERER -~ BiAE Ak R R AW DL KE RS
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The AT A 2R R AL AR R o
Nomination Committee will also take into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and organisational needs.
Board Diversity Profile
e 3 ST (4 RN
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14 Non-executive 270
Director f .
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The nomination policy adopted by the Company is set out

below:

1.1

1.2

2.1

Purpose

The Nomination Committee of the Company has the
primary responsibility of identifying and nominating
suitably qualified candidates to become Directors (to

fill casual vacancies and as new Board members).

This Policy sets out the approach with respect to
the selection and nomination of candidates for
directorship of the Company so as to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business for the Board to consider and,
if appropriate, appoint as additional Directors or as
Directors to fill casual vacancies, as the case may be,
or make recommendations to the shareholders of the

Company for election as Directors at general meetings.

Selection Criteria, Eligibility and Documentary
Requirements

The Nomination Committee may select suitably
qualified candidates to nominate to the Board from
such resources as the Nomination Committee considers
appropriate, including through referrals by members of
the Board, by the management of the Company and by

external professional agencies and other resources.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iii) Nomination Committee (continued)

2

2.2

Selection Criteria, Eligibility and Documentary
Requirements (continued)

The Nomination Committee shall consider the factors
listed below, together with any other factors as the
Nomination Committee may consider appropriate, in

assessing the suitability of any candidate:

- character, reputation and integrity;

- qualifications, accomplishments and experience;

- capacity to devote sufficient time to discharge

duties amidst other significant commitments;

- effect on the diversity of the Board, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional and

industry experience, skills and expertise;

- (where the proposed candidate is being
considered as a candidate for an Independent
Non-executive Director position) ability to
fulfil the independence requirements under the

Listing Rules; and

- potential contributions to the Board and any

other relevant factors.

The list of factors stated above is for reference only
and not intended to be exhaustive or definitive. The
Nomination Committee shall assess all relevant factors
with a view to achieve the Company’s corporate
strategy and organisational needs and has the discretion

to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

Nomination Committee (continued)

2

2.3

3.1

3.2

33

34

Selection Criteria, Eligibility and Documentary
Requirements (continued)

The candidates shall timely provide such information
and documents relating to their nomination as the
Nomination Committee or the Board may request,
including but not limited to any such information as is
required for disclosure under the Listing Rules and their
written consent to be elected as Directors and to the

public disclosure of their information.
Nomination Rules and Procedures

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall
call a meeting of the Nomination Committee and
in advance of the meeting invite nomination of
candidates from members of the Board, if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may put forward other
candidates irrespective of whether such candidates have

been nominated by members of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of
all necessary information relating to the candidates,
evaluate each of such candidates at the meeting based
on the criteria set out in Section 2 above to determine

whether to make a nomination to the Board.

The number of candidates nominated by the
Nomination Committee may exceed the number
of casual vacancies or vacancies for Director’s

appointment by the Board or at the general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to the appointment of candidates as Directors
and its recommendation of candidates to stand for

election at any general meeting.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)
3

3.5

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Rules and Procedures (continued)

Any proposed candidate is entitled to withdraw his/
her candidature at any time before the meeting of the
Board at which his appointment is to be considered
or the general meeting at which he/she is to stand for

election by serving a notice in writing to the Company.
Confidentiality

Unless required by law or any regulatory authority,
under no circumstances may a member of the
Nomination Committee disclose any information to the
public with regard to any nomination or candidature
whilst such information has not been disclosed by the

Company to the public.
Review

The Nomination Committee will review this Policy
from time to time, as appropriate, and discuss any
revisions that may be considered appropriate, including
to ensure that it remains relevant to the Company’s
needs and reflects both current regulatory requirements
and good corporate governance practice, and

recommend them to the Board for approval.
Disclosure of Policy
The Policy may be disclosed in such manner as the

Board considers appropriate and in compliance with

any applicable regulatory requirements or guidelines.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iv)

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee currently comprises
four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Sakda Thanitcul (Chairman) (appointed as member since
August 2016 and became Chairman in May 2019), Mr. Ma
Andrew Chiu Cheung (he was Chairman from August 2016
to May 2019), Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Cheng Yuk
Wo (appointed with effect from 1 January 2020) and a non-

executive Director, Mr. Meth Jiaravanont.

The Corporate Governance Committee is delegated by the
Board with the primary responsibilities including to develop
and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; review and monitor training and continuous
professional development of the directors; review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and review the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During 2019, the Corporate Governance Committee held two
meetings to review the Group’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
for the six months ended 30 June 2019, respectively.

Subsequent to the year end, the Corporate Governance
Committee reviewed the Group’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code for the year ended 31 December
2019.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Our Approach

The Group has established and adopted a risk management policy
which is designed to manage the risk of failure associated with
the Group while achieving its business objectives and to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss. A risk appetite statement has been established to define
the extent of risks that the Group is willing to take in pursuit of its

strategies and business objectives.

Clear roles and responsibilities are assigned to different level of
management within the Group. The Board acknowledges that it is
responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board also (i) oversees the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems
and (ii) evaluates and determines the nature and extent of risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s business objectives. The
Board delegates the responsibility of reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems to the
Audit Committee, which monitors the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems through the Internal Audit Department.
The Internal Audit Department carries out independent review
of key business processes and controls, while key findings and
recommendations for improvement are regularly reported to the
Audit Committee. The external auditor also reports any control issues
which have been identified in the course of audit or review work
to the Audit Committee. Management is responsible for designing,
implementing and monitoring risk management and internal control
systems, whereas risk owners appointed by the management are
responsible for identifying, analysing and prioritising risk issues for
further consideration by management, and ensuring that the risk
monitoring and control system are working effectively and risk

mitigation actions are implemented timely within business units.
Effectiveness Review

During the year, the Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, has
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Board considers that
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group are
effective and adequate. The Board also considers that the Group
has adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget for accounting, internal audit and financial

reporting functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Continuous Improvement

We are committed to continually improve our risk management
and internal control framework and will continue to enhance the
integration of risk management and internal control into our business

process.

For handling and dissemination of inside information, an inside
information handling policy is in place to enable the Group to handle
inside information in accordance with the legal requirements and,
where required, communicate with the Group’s stakeholders in a

timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 48, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene a special general meeting, and special
general meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided
by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as the same may from time
to time be amended) (the “Companies Act”), and, in default, may be

convened by the requisitionists.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, at the date of the deposit of the
requisition, members holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can submit a written requisition to the

Board for convening a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of
the Company.

If the Board fails to proceed duly to convene a meeting within
twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of

three months from the date of the written requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders
(continued)

Such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Board. At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing
(and not less than 10 business days) shall be given to all members of

the Company.
To Make Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders of the Company can make enquiry to the Board by
writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong.
To Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of members of the
Company representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a right
to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates, or not less
than one hundred members, can submit a written requisition to the

Board for putting forward proposals at general meetings.

The requisition must state the resolution with a statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting

and the requisition must be signed by the requisitionists.

The requisition must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company no less than six weeks before the meeting in the case
of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution or no less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition. The
requisitionists must deposit a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution

and circulating the statement to all members of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

To Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Members of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) who
are qualified to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company
can submit a written requisition to the Board to propose a person for

election as a director of the Company at such general meetings.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited,
with a notice signed by the nominated candidate of his willingness to
be elected and the candidate’s information required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and a written consent from
the nominated candidate to the publication of his personal data, at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and ending no later than seven

days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Details of the procedures for proposing a person for election as a

director are available on the Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to the
communication with shareholders, with the objective of maintaining
full, open and timely communication with shareholders. Information
would be communicated to shareholder in a timely manner, mainly
through the publication of the Company’s corporate communications
including interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

These publications are available on the Company’s website.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to its

constitutional documents.
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Mr.
Director of the Company since 2005 and a Vice Chairman since

Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 55, has been an Executive

February 2010 until his appointment as Chairman of the Board
in May 2019. He was previously Chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company during May to August 2019. He obtained
a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business and Public
Administration of New York University, USA and has extensive
multinational investment and management experience in various
industries. He also holds directorships in several subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Chearavanont is also the chairman of Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited (“Charoen Pokphand Group”).
He is also a director and chairman of True Visions Public Company
Limited (“True Visions”), Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company
Limited (“CPF”) and CP ALL Public Company Limited (“CP ALL”)
(each a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand), a non-
executive director and chairman of Chia Tai Enterprises International
Limited (“CTEI”) (a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)), a non-
executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Ltd. (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and an executive director and
chairman of C.P. Lotus Corporation (“C.P. Lotus”) (which was a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange until
its withdrawal from listing effective on 29 October 2019). Mr.
Chearavanont was previously a director of True Corporation Public
Company Limited (“True Corporation”) (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange of Thailand).

Mr. Adirek Sripratak, aged 73, has been a Vice Chairman of the
Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company since April 2012. Mr.
Sripratak has been a director of CPF since 1998, Vice Chairman of
CPF since 2013 and Chairman of the Executive Committee of CPF
since 2017. He was previously the President and Chief Executive
Officer of CPF from 2003 to 2017. He is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company and of CPF. Mr. Sripratak is also a
director of CP ALL and Siam Makro Public Company Limited (“Siam
Makro”) (each a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand).
He has more than 40 years’ experience in the agri-business and
food industry. His valuable experience is widely recognised and has
led to his appointment to a number of public offices and positions
as he serves as the Honor President of the Thai Broiler Processing
Exporters Association. Mr. Sripratak was previously a Senator of the
National Assembly of Thailand and an Honorary Director of Chiang
Mai University Council. He received Honorary Doctorates from
a number of universities in Thailand including Maejo University,
Mae Fah Luang University, Rajamangala University of Technology
Suvarnabhumi, Chiang Mai University, Rajamangala University of

Technology Isan and Kasetsart University.
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Mr.
Director of the Company since 2008 and was appointed as a Vice
Chairman of the Board in May 2019 and as a member of each of the

Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 52, has been an Executive

Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee in September
2019, respectively. Mr. Chearavanont obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration from Boston University
in USA, majoring in Financial Management. He has extensive
experience in the telecommunication and broadcasting industries.
Mr. Chearavanont is also a director, the Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Executive Board of Charoen Pokphand Group and
a director and chief executive officer of True Visions and True Move
Company Limited. He is also a director, the chairman of the executive
committee of and chairman of True Corporation and a director and
vice chairman of CPF and CP ALL and an executive director of C.P.

Lotus.

Mr. Narong Chearavanont, aged 54, had previously served as an
executive director of the Company from 2005 until his resignation
from the Board in 2010, and was appointed as an executive director
again in June 2019. He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
in Business Administration from New York University, USA, a
Certificate of Advance Management Program in Transforming Proven
Leaders into Global Executives from Harvard Business School,
Harvard University, USA and an Honorary Doctorate degree of
Business Administration from Ramkhamhaeng University, Thailand.
He has also completed the Systematic Innovation of Products,
Processes, and Services programme at Massachusetts Institute of
Technology Sloan School of Management. Mr. Chearavanont has
extensive experience in retail, telecommunication, agri-food and
other industries. He is a director of True Corporation, CP ALL and
Siam Makro and a Vice Chairman and an executive director of C.P.

Lotus.
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Mr. Bai Shanlin, aged 60, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since February 2010. He was the Chief Executive Officer
(Feed Division) of the Company from February 2010 until April
2012 since which time he has been the Chief Executive Officer
(China Area). Mr. Bai obtained a Professional Diploma in Animal
Science from Gansu College of Animal Husbandry, the Governmental
Exchange Specialist Certificate in Agricultural Management from the
Australian Ministry of Foreign Affairs and a Specialist Certificate in
Livestock Management in the PRC. He joined Charoen Pokphand
Group in 1991. He is currently a senior executive of the Group,
primarily responsible for the feed business of the Group in China.
Mr. Bai has extensive experience in the management of agri-business
operations. He is also a part time professor honored by Gansu
Agricultural University and Renmin University of China. Mr. Bai also

holds directorships in several companies within the Group.

Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, aged 67, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since October 2011 and Chief Executive
Officer (Vietnam Area) of the Company since April 2012. He has also
been a director, Chief Executive Officer (Agro Industrial Business),
Co-President and a member of the executive committee of CPF since
2017. Mr. Jiumjaiswanglerg has over 30 years of experience in animal
feed sales and breeding, having been with Charoen Pokphand Group
since 1980 and is currently a member of its Executive Board. Mr.
Jiumjaiswanglerg also holds directorships in several companies within
the Group. He graduated from the University of the Thai Chamber of

Commerce with a bachelor’s degree in Economics.

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan, aged 71, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since April 2012. Mrs. Watcharananan
has also been an executive director of CPF since 2002 and also a
director of several subsidiaries of CPF. Mrs. Watcharananan graduated
from Thammasat University, Thailand with a bachelor’s degree in

Economics.
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Mr. Yu Jianping, aged 59, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since January 2017. Mr. Yu is currently a senior executive
of the Group, primarily responsible for the food business of the
Group in China. He also holds directorships in several companies
within the Group. Mr. Yu has been working for the Group since
1995. Mr. Yu received a Bachelor of Science degree from the Faculty
of Mathematics, Jilin University in China in 1982 and a Master of
Economics degree from the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of

Social Sciences in China in 1989.

Mzr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 61, had been an Executive Director and
Executive Vice Chairman of the Company from 2005 until his re-
designation as a Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2010. He was also appointed as a member of the Audit Committee of
the Company in August 2010. Mr. Jiaravanont has been a member
of the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company since
August 2017. Mr. Jiaravanont obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from Occidental College, California, USA and a master’s
degree in Business Administration from New York University, USA.
He has extensive experience in investment, finance, banking and
strategic business development in Asia and USA. Mr. Jiaravanont is
also an executive director of C.P. Lotus. He is currently the senior
executive assistant to the chairman-finance of Charoen Pokphand
Group and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.

Mzr. Yoichi Tkezoe, aged 60, has been a Non-executive Director of
the Company since October 2015. Mr. Ikezoe is also a non-executive
director of CTEI. Mr. Ikezoe is currently Deputy CEO for East Asia
Bloc, Senior Officer of Asia and Oceania Bloc, CP and CITIC
(Overseas Operation) of ITOCHU Corporation (a company listed on
the Tokyo Stock Exchange) and Chairman of ITOCHU Hong Kong
Limited, ITOCHU Shanghai Limited and ITOCHU (China) Holding
Ltd. Mr. Ikezoe has been working for ITOCHU Corporation (formerly
known as C.ITOH & Co., Ltd.) since 1983. He received his Bachelor
of Arts degree from the Faculty of Foreign Studies, Osaka University
in Japan in 1983.
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Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung, aged 78, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director since 2005. He has also been a member
of each of the Audit Committee of the Company (of which he
was Chairman from 2005 to December 2019) and Remuneration
Committee (of which he was Chairman from April 2012 to May
2019) since 2005. He has also been a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company since April 2012 and a member of the
Corporate Governance Committee (of which he was Chairman
from August 2016 to May 2019) since August 2016. Mr. Ma is a
founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited (formerly known
as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Limited) and is presently a director of
Mayee Management Limited. He has more than 40 years’ experience
in the fields of accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Ma received his
bachelor’s degree in Economics from the London School of Economics
and Political Science (University of London) in the United Kingdom.
He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England & Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. In addition to his directorship in
the Company, Mr. Ma is also an independent non-executive director
of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, Chong Hing
Bank Limited, Asiaray Media Group Limited, C-MER Eye Care
Holdings Limited and S.A.I. Leisure Group Company Limited (each
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr.
Ma was previously an independent non-executive director of Asia
Financial Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Sombat Deo-isres, aged 78, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2005. He was previously a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company from September
2005 to May 2019. Mr. Deo-isres has also been a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company since September 2005,
a member of the Nomination Committee since April 2012 and a
member of the Corporate Governance Committee since August 2016.
Mr. Deo-isres obtained a bachelor’s degree in Law from Thammasat
University and a master’s degree in Law from Chulalongkorn
University, Thailand. He held various senior positions with the Thai
judiciary. He was a former Senior Judge of the Supreme Court of
Thailand and is currently a member of the academic justice committee

of the President of Supreme Court.
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Mr. Sakda Thanitcul, aged 61, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member the Audit Committee of
the Company since 2008 and was previously a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company from 2008 to May
2019. Mr. Thanitcul was appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee in April 2012 and Chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee in May 2019 (of which he has been a
member since August 2016). Mr. Thanitcul holds a Bachelor of Law
degree from Chulalongkorn University, Thailand, a Master of Law
degree from Kyoto University, Japan and University of Washington,
USA and a Doctor of Law degree from Kyoto University, Japan and
University of Washington, USA. He has extensive experience in the
legal field and specialises in competition law and the World Trade
Organization agreements. Mr. Thanitcul was a former Dean and
currently is a Professor of Law at the Faculty of Law, Chulalongkorn

University, Bangkok, Thailand.

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej, aged 69, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since December 2012 and a
member of the Audit Committee and Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since May 2019. Mr. Vittavasgarnve;j
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy and a master’s degree
in Political Science from Thammasat University, Thailand. Mr.
Vittavasgarnvej is currently the chairman and independent director of
Sahamitr Pressure Container Public Co., Ltd., independent director
and the chairman of the audit committee of Ekarat Engineering Public
Company Limited, vice chairman, independent director and chairman
of the audit committee of Srisawad Corporation Public Company
Limited and an independent director and a member of the audit
committee of CPF (each a company listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand). He was previously an independent director of Syn Mun
Kong Insurance Public Company Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange of Thailand). Mr. Vittavasgarnvej was the Director
General of The Treasury Department, Ministry of Finance, Thailand
from 2010 to 2011 and the Director General of The Revenue
Department, Ministry of Finance, Thailand from 2008 to 2010.
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Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon, aged 67, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since September 2013
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
since May 2019. She was appointed a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company in May 2019 and became its Chairman
in September 2019. Mrs. Vimooktayon held various government
positions in Thailand from 1997 and retired from the position of
Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Commerce in September
2013. Mrs. Vimooktayon obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration (Accounting) from Thammasat University, Thailand,
a bachelor’s degree in Laws from Sukhothai Thammathirat University,
Thailand and a master’s degree in Business Administration from
National Institute of Development Administration, Thailand. Mrs.
Vimooktayon is currently an independent director and member of the

audit committee of CPF.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 59, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company since 1
January 2020. Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
degree in Accounting from University of Kent, the United Kingdom
in 1983 and a Master of Science (Economics) degree, majoring in
Accounting and Finance, from London School of Economics and
Political Science, the United Kingdom in 1984. He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member
of the Institute of Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.
Mr. Cheng has over 20 years of expertise in accounting, finance
and corporate advisory services. Mr. Cheng is currently also an
independent non-executive director of CTEI, CSI Properties Limited,
Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC (Holdings) Limited, Goldbond
Group Holdings Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, Liu Chong Hing
Investment Limited, Top Spring International Holdings Limited,
DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited, Kidsland
International Holdings Limited, Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
(each a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange)
and Somerley Capital Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
GEM Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Cheng was previously an

independent non-executive director of C.P. Lotus.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont and Mr.
Narong Chearavanont are brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Meth
Jiaravanont. Mr. Adirek Sripratak is the elder brother of Mrs. Arunee
Watcharananan. Save as disclosed above, there is no other material

relationship among members of the Board.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The subsidiaries of
the Company are principally engaged, in the PRC and Vietnam, in (i)
manufacture and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding, farming and sale of
livestock and (in Vietnam only) aqua animals, and (iii) manufacture

and sale of food products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review with financial key performance indicators analysis
and future development of the Group is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement section on pages 2 to 3, Financial Highlights section on
page 12 and Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 13

to 20 of the annual report.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, a discussion
on the environmental policies and performance and the key

relationships with stakeholders are set out below.

For further information about the environmental and social
performance of the Group for this financial year, please refer to the

Environmental, Social, and Governance Report 2019 to be issued.

The Directors are not aware of any important event affecting the

Group since the end of the financial year under review.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are discussed
below. Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set

out in note 47 to the financial statements of the annual report.

Volatility of Commodity Prices

Price of farm products is dependent on the demand and supply as
well as the economic condition and consumer purchasing power and
confidence. When supply exceeds demand, there is a negative impact
on the selling price of the farm products which in turn affects the

performance of the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Volatility of Commodity Prices (continued)

On the other hand, the Group’s results may also be affected by
price volatility of main ingredients used in the production of animal
feed, including corn, soybean meal, wheat and fish meal. These raw
materials are basic agricultural commodities and their prices are
affected by global commodity prices as well as domestic demand and
supply. Management will set a safety stock level and continuously
collect and analyse the commodity price information when purchasing

these raw materials.
Product Quality and Safety

Product quality and safety are the most important issues in agri-food
business. Failure to maintain quality control during the manufacturing
process may lead to poor quality products and result in complaints,
claims for compensation or product recalls, penalties and damage
to the Group’s reputation. The Group is committed to producing
high quality and safe products from its manufacturing process and
has traceability systems for raw materials used and quality assurance

systems throughout its supply chains.
Customer Demand and Preference

Customer demand for a particular kind of meat may change due
to loss of consumer confidence as a result of epidemic outbreak or
a change in consumer preference and taste. Also, as consumer’s
purchasing power increases, preference may also shift from low
cost protein sources to higher cost protein sources. A decline in
demand for any particular kind of meat will directly affect the sales
of such meat, indirectly affect the demand for the associated feed
products as well as the demand for the food products made from such
meat. In order to keep alert to customers’ demands and determine
appropriate marketing strategies, management continuously follows

the behavioural change and satisfaction of consumers.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Animal Disease Outbreaks

Any epidemic outbreaks in livestock, poultry or aquatic animals would
affect the selling prices of our products and the results of the Group.
The Group will continue to provide regular training to its employees
to keep up with the knowledge and understanding on diseases and
outbreaks, as well as continuously conduct surveillance, follow-up,
data analysis and communication of information on diseases and their

outbreaks.
Outbreak of COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 at the beginning of 2020 has brought
about uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment in China
and Vietnam. The market conditions and measures implemented in
China and Vietnam have, and potentially may, in various degrees
affect different aspects of the Group’s businesses. Examples include
delay in raw material supply, workforce availability due to people
movement and transport restrictions, revised production plans due
to additional COVID-19 precautionary measures, outbound logistical
delays on our products to customers, business visits and market
demand for our products. The Group will continue to monitor the
situation so as to seek and adopt appropriate measures in order to

minimize the impact of COVID-19 on our business and operations.
Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group’s businesses are principally located in mainland China
and Vietnam. All domestic sales in mainland China and Vietnam
are conducted in RMB and VND respectively, whereas export sales
and import of raw materials, machinery and equipment are conducted
in foreign currencies. Also, certain subsidiaries in mainland China
and Vietnam have borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.
Depreciation of RMB/VND against foreign currencies would result in
loss on translation of these foreign currencies denominated borrowings
and increase the costs of imported raw materials, machinery and
equipment. Furthermore, depreciation of RMB/VND against US$
would also adversely affect results of the Group, as the results of
the subsidiaries in mainland China and Vietnam would be reduced
on translation from RMB/VND to US$, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The Group will continue to monitor foreign
exchange movements and consider hedging when necessary. Please
refer to note 47(c) to the financial statements of the annual report for
the foreign currency risk exposures of the Group as at the end of the

reporting period.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Interest Rate Fluctuation

The Group had total bank borrowings and corporate bond of
US$1,734.8 million as at 31 December 2019, 79% of which were
at floating rate which subjects the Group to interest rate risk. In
the decision making for the selection of sources of capital, the
Group will consider various factors such as rate of return expected
by shareholders, current and expected interest rates in the market
and debt-to-equity ratio of the Group. The Group has entered into
interest rate swap contracts to manage its interest rate exposure for
the floating interest rate borrowings. Please refer to note 47(a) to
the financial statements of the annual report for the interest rate risk

exposures as at the end of the reporting period.
Compliance Risks

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in mainland China
and Vietnam and are subject to different industry standards and
government regulations in different jurisdictions. These standards
and regulations include food hygiene and safety related laws and
regulations, environmental protection regulations, employment
regulations and relevant tax laws, etc. The Group’s internal
legal department will ensure compliance with the laws, rules and

regulations applicable to the Group.
Environmental Policies and Performance

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation and minimizing our impact on the environment. As a
testament of our commitment to environmental protection, some of
our operations in China and Vietnam are certified with ISO 14001
Environmental Management System, which reflects our stringent
environmental policies and objectives. We have adopted strict
measures to control the discharge of wastes and pollutants. We have
also implemented an array of energy saving measures to reduce costs
and energy consumption in our production processes. In 2019, there
was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant environmental

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

We also require our suppliers to operate in strict compliance with
relevant environmental regulations and rules. Their environmental

performances are evaluated on a regular basis.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Employees

The Group regards its employees as one of its most important
assets. We strive to provide motivation and awards to employees
who demonstrate outstanding performance. Our employee benefits
include medical insurance, annual leaves, training, and discretionary
performance bonus. We also ensure our recruitment policies are in
compliance with the national regulations on equal opportunity and

anti-discrimination.

We place great importance in establishing a safe and healthy work
environment for our employees. In our operations, safety trainings
are offered to production staff. We have obtained OHSAS 18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management Systems certification
in some of our food operations, which serves to demonstrate
our capability in managing the potential occupational hazard in

workplaces.
Customers

The Group has a diversified customer base and we perceive customers’
satisfaction with products and services are being key to our success.
The Group has set out rigorous procedures to ensure that safe,
nutritious, environmentally friendly products are produced and
delivered to our customers. To monitor our customers’ satisfaction,
the Group’s sales teams listen to customers’ needs and opinions. With
continuous feedback of our customers, we will continue to improve

our product and service qualities.
Suppliers

We carefully choose suppliers that share the same commitment to
product quality and work ethics with us. In our procurement process,
we select our suppliers based on a number of assessment criteria,
including their service quality, environmental and social performance,
and ability to supply high-quality products on a consistent basis. We
also perform on-site inspections of our suppliers as and when necessary

to ensure our requirements are met.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out

in the financial statements on pages 97 to 246 of the annual report.

An interim dividend of HK$0.008 per share was declared and paid
during the year under review (2018: 0.017).

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend for
2019 of HK$0.024 (equivalent to approximately US 0.308 cents)
(2018: HK$0.026 (equivalent to approximately US 0.333 cents)) per
share, totaling approximately US$77,947,000 (2018: US$84,443,000)
(based on the total number of issued ordinary shares and convertible
preference shares as at the date of this report). Subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 5 June 2020, the final dividend will be
paid on 30 June 2020 to the ordinary share holders and convertible
preference share holders whose names appear on the register of

members of the Company on 17 June 2020.

The register of members holding ordinary shares of the Company will
be closed from 2 June 2020 to 5 June 2020, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of ordinary shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to ascertain shareholders’ eligibility to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on 5 June 2020, all transfer forms for ordinary shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 1 June 2020.

In addition, the registers of members holding ordinary shares and
convertible preference shares of the Company respectively will be
closed from 15 June 2020 to 17 June 2020, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to qualify for the 2019 final dividend, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 12 June 2020.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The consolidated assets, liabilities and results of the Group for the
five years ended 31 December 2019, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, are as follows:
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B W) W

2018 2017 2016 2015

SECNE SR VE CE L DF N DR

US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$’000
Xrtx  FrTx  FrTr  Krtx

4,611,362 4,232,929 3,633,425 3,127,863

2,909,138 2,717,565 2,214,677 1,811,981
346,721 277,654 295,182 229,970

1,355,503 1,237,710 1,123,566 1,085,912

4,611,362 4,232,929 3,633,425 3,127,863

2019
US$’000
B
Total assets W 5,345,838
Total liabilities M 3,378,800
Non-controlling interests e i) e i 25 418,764
Equity attributable to AR ) R
shareholders of the Company JEAL HEZS 1,548,274
5,345,838
Profit for the year attributable to  AX/A &) B3
shareholders of the Company JRE A ¥ A1 345,803

281,659 41,867 260,278 267,575

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 15

to the financial statements of the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 16 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued shares of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 37 to the financial

statements of the annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During 2019, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in notes 48 and 39 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of

the annual report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to US$1,435,285,000 (2018:
US$1,423,207,000) which included the proposed final dividend for
the year 2019 of US$77,947,000 (2018: US$84,443,000). Details of
the proposed final dividend are set out in note 13 to the financial

statements of the annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy which sets out the approach
of the Company on the declaration and payment of dividends to

shareholders of the Company.

The Board is responsible for considering and, if appropriate, declaring
any interim dividend or recommending any final dividend to the
shareholders for approval every year. Any approved dividends must

not exceed the mount recommended by the Board.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

The declaration or recommendation of any dividend will take into
consideration the Company’s results of operations and financial
conditions, business strategy and future development and any other
factors that the Board may deem relevant. No dividend shall be
declared or paid except out of the Company’s profits and reserves
lawfully available for distribution. The payment of dividend is also
subject to applicable laws and regulations, including any applicable

restrictions under the Company’s Bye-laws.

The future declarations or recommendations of dividends may or may
not reflect the Company’s historical declarations or recommendations
of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion of the Board.
At the time when the Board makes the announcement as to its
recommendation of final dividend, if any, in respect of the last
completed financial year, it will also endeavour to indicate whether,
and, if so, how much dividend is, in the absence of unforeseen
circumstances, expected to be declared and/or recommended in

respect of the current financial year.

For the financial year ending 31 December 2020, in the absence of
unforeseen circumstances, the Board expects dividend pay-out to be at
least 30% of net profit attributable to Shareholders for that year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and other
purposes amounting to US$3,907,000 (2018: US$2,903,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Revenue attributable to the five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Purchases attributable to the largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 16.5% and 30.3%, respectively, of the Group’s
purchases for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited (a company which, to
the knowledge of the Directors, is interested in more than 5% the
Company’s issued share capital), together with its subsidiaries, were
the Group’s largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (resigned with effect on 10 May 2019)
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont

Mr. Adirek Sripratak

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont

Mr. Narong Chearavanont (appointed with effect from 1 June 2019)
Mr. Bai Shanlin

Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan

Mr. Yu Jianping
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (appointed with effect from 1 January 2020)

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a successive term of one year and, together with all
other Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation, but may offer

themselves for re-election at annual general meetings in accordance

with the Company’s bye-laws.

On 13 December 2019, the Board appointed Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo as an

independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect from

1 January 2020.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 77 and the Listing Rules,
any director appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company after appointment
and may offer himself/herself for election by the shareholders of
the Company, but shall not be taken into account in determining
the Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire at
such meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and
being eligible, has offered himself for election at the AGM.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 82, Mr. Adirek Sripratak,
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan, Mr. Yu
Jianping, and Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung (“Mr. Ma”) will retire by
rotation at the AGM.

Mr. Ma, who has served the Board as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company for more than 14 years, has confirmed to the
Board that he will not stand for re-election and accordingly will retire
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company at the
conclusion of the AGM. Save for Mr. Ma, the other retiring Directors,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all independent

non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of

the Group.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and the related party disclosures as disclosed in note 44 to the
financial statements of the annual report, none of the Directors had
any material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December
2019.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the related party
disclosures as disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements of the
annual report, there had been no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” on
page 63 of the annual report, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any

other body corporate.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available

to shareholders by reason of their holding in the Company’s securities.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code are set out below:

(a) Directors’ interests in shares of the Company (Long

=

Report of the Directors
ESHREE

EERITETBRAERBEARRAARE AR
FENROREBARONESZR AR

REF-ETFZH =11 RS K
Bl 5535 20 B A2 v AR 2y W) A7 2 % AE A #Y R % > X
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(a) EEBERAFLANEZS(HFR)

Positions)

Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued ordinary
ordinary share capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
A2 )
JIt e 3 4 e A7 3% 2 e e AR
HHLW 54 Ji& 1y B H BEAY A 43 b
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 21,000,000 0.09%
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (continued)

Directors’ interests in shares of associated
corporations of the Company (Long Positions)

(b)

A

EERFTETBRAERERRATAREAE
EENRORABEROER KR (&)

(b) EBSRAAFHNMEBEEOES (FR)

Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited FADEEBERA T
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of the
Name of director Capacity shares held associated corporation
A5 FH R 2
T 1T IR AR
HEHW B4 Jt % BB A 8 H WAA S
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 210,000 0.09%

i iR ek Ea A A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

B Ll g &4 > R T ETF A=+ —H
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
b % BB B & R 2 A

POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES

ORDINANCE

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (not being a director
or chief executive of the Company) had the following interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant

to Section 336 of the SFO:

Report of the Directors
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Approximate
percentage of
the issued

share capital of

Number of the associated
Name of director Notes  Capacity shares held corporation
A5 4H B 2
CEAT A
HEHW - Jt ¥ 1B 4y B H R ONER e
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(Kit1) (Hit1)
Charoen Pokphand Group (2) Beneficial owner, interest of 19,017,584,153(L) 79.00(L)
Company Limited controlled corporation and
concert party
A N~ REdl g ERER
K= TEHM AL
Charoen Pokphand Foods 3) Interest of controlled corporation 19,017,584,153(L) 79.00(L)
Public Company Limited e 1) 2 1 R A
ITOCHU Corporation (4) Beneficial owner and concert party 19,017,584,153(L) 79.00(L)

7T S 7 bk K Ak

T A AR BT H WAL

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
-7 - E F R

61



62

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
h#®% BB B AR

Report of the Directors
EEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (continued)

Notes:
(1) The Letter “L” denotes a long position.

(2) Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) had
a long position in 19,017,584,153 shares and underlying shares of
the Company which included (i) 1,261,077,748 preference shares
beneficially owned by CPF; (ii) 11,738,547,097 ordinary shares
beneficially owned by CPF Investment Limited (“CPFI”) (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CPF); and (iii) as a result of certain provisions
in an agreement entered into in July 2014 between CPF, CPFI and
ITOCHU Corporation (“I'TOCHU”) for the purpose of Sections
317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO, CPF was taken to be interested in
6,017,959,308 ordinary shares beneficially owned by ITOCHU.

(3) Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited had a long position of
19,017,854,153 shares and underlying shares of the Company, through

CPF, its controlled corporation.

(4) ITOCHU beneficially owned 6,017,959,308 ordinary shares of the
Company. As a result of certain provisions in an agreement entered
into in July 2014 between CPF, CPFI and ITOCHU in relation to the
sale of an aggregate of 6,017,959,308 ordinary shares of the Company
to ITOCHU, for the purpose of Sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the
SFO, ITOCHU was taken to be interested in the shares owned by
CPF. As such, ITOCHU had a long position in 19,017,584,153 shares

and underlying shares of the Company in aggregate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person (not
being a director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest
or a short position in shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted by the shareholders of the Company
in the annual general meeting held on 22 June 2012. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date unless

otherwise cancelled or amended.

The total number of ordinary shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme, being 1,698,783,571 ordinary shares of the Company,
based on 16,987,835,710 issued ordinary shares of the Company as
at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme in 2012. Such
maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of all the
share options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
now represents 7% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company as at
the date of this report.

No share option was granted during 2019. As at 31 December 2019,

the Company had no outstanding share options.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 38 to

the financial statements of the annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BERS

REEZF-EF A= HIREER > K%
A LA AT T 5 R 2 52 B S ZEUAR ¢ TS B AR
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had the
following connected transactions that are subject to the Listing Rules’

reporting requirement for disclosure in the annual report.

WEER

Acquisitions

PEZRUEZAINE o A SR AR (R
Hy FLJ5) AT R A B A T W = O R Tk

On 18 February 2019, two subsidiaries of the Company entered

into the following agreements as purchaser in relation to certain

64

acquisitions:
Subsidiary
(as Purchaser) Agreement Vendor Subject Total consideration
i J8§ 2
(T & H ) ik 9] FEHEH AR

Chia Tai Investment

Co., Ltd. (“CTI”)
(formerly known

as Chia Tai (China)

Beihai Share

Purchase Agreement

Charoen Pokphand
Foods Public Company
Limited (“CPF”)

Lianyungang Share Purchase Chia Tai Lianyungang
Agreement Company Limited

(“CT Lianyungang”)

T I B ek EREEEH AR

(TER#EEZE])
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CPF agreed to sell and CTI

agreed to purchase the equity
capital held by CPF in C.P.
Aquaculture (Beihai) Co., Ltd.

CT Lianyungang agreed to sell

and CTI agreed to purchase
the equity capital held by CT
Lianyungang in Lianyungang
Chia Tai Agro-Industry
Development Co., Ltd.
(representing its 70% of

its equity capital)

TERFRE R OE K

T 55 o TR R WA 1Y
HEWIE K B A RA
11 JgE A

(B FE70% B A )

RMB35 million
(approximately)
US$5.1 million)

Investment (representing its entire equity
Company Limited) capital)

B R E By b JBE A I B Charoen Pokphand CPFHEHE X IERBRERBH  3,5008 A R
HIRAH Foods Public Company B HCPFHA 1 b ¥ (db i) (#1510 35 0)
(TEX#E]) Limited ([CPFJ) 7K B RHAT B A ) i R A
(7 4 1E K (i) (B R 20 A )

BEAWAH)

RMB66.5 million
(approximately

US$9.7 million)

6,650 \ R
(19708 3£ T)
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Report of the Directors
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BEXS (&)
Acquisitions (continued) WEEEE (F)

Subsidiary

(as Purchaser) Agreement Vendor Subject Total consideration

b 8§ 2

(%5 B J7) L i S B

CTI Hainan Share Chia Tai Animal Husbandry CTAI agreed to sell and RMB69.47 million

ERBE Purchase Agreement Investment (Beijing) Co., CTI agreed to purchase (approximately

5 7 T A i O ek

CP China Share

Purchase Agreement

CP China Investment
Limited (“CP China”)

CP China fB4% W B 1 3%

CP China Investment
Limited ([ CP ChinaJ])

Lud. (“CTAI")

ERFHRE (L)
HIRAT
(MEXREH#])

CPF

CPF
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the equity capital held by
CTAI in Hainan Chia Tai
Animal Husbandry Co., Ltd.
(representing its entire equity
capital)

ERFRFZLEREKRRER
TR B o TE K B R Y
TE K% WA A o] B SR AR
(B R 2R B AR)

CPF agreed to sell and CP China
agreed to purchase the equity
held by CPF in the following
entities:

CPFI] 5 i % X CP ChinalFl & J#
B I CPFFF A T 31 BT 1 0 I
A

(i) C.P. Aquaculture
(Dongfang) Co., Ltd.

(representing its entire

US$10.1 million)

6,947 \ R
(#11,010# 3 8)

RMB230.8 million
(approximately

US$33.7 million)

capital)
I WK E (R ) AR A W) 43,0808 A R
(B FC 23 IBEAR) (#13,370# 3% 78)

(ii) Zhangzhou C.P. Chia Tai

RMB128.9 million

Aquaculture Co., Ltd. (approximately
(representing its entire US$18.8 million)
capital)

WM DETEJOKERRAR  1452,8008 A R
(B2 M AC) (#11,880#5 3¢ 7t

(iii) C.P. Aquaculture
(Zhanjiang) Co., Ltd.

(representing its entire

RMB65.35 million
(approximately

US$9.5 million)

capital)
I B K B (HEYT ) PR A W) 6,5358 \ R
(B 6 e AC) (#1950 3 8)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Acquisitions (continued)

As at 18 February 2019, being the date of the Company’s

announcement:

(1)  CPF was interested in approximately 47.8% of the issued
ordinary shares of the Company in issue and was therefore
a substantial shareholder of the Company. CT Lianyungang
was indirectly wholly owned by Charoen Pokphand Enterprise
(Taiwan) Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange) which, in turn, was held as to 39% by CPF.
CT Lianyungang was an associate of CPF and therefore a

connected person of the Company; and

(2) Due to CPG’s near majority shareholding in CPF, the
Company and CPG had agreed to treat CPG as a substantial
shareholder of the Company. CTAI was an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of CPG and therefore treated as a connected

person of the Company.

Accordingly, each of the transactions contemplated under the
Beihai Share Purchase Agreement, the Lianyungang Share Puchrase
Agreement, the Hainan Share Purchase Agreement and the CP
China Share Purchase Agreement (collectively, the “Share Purchase
Agreements”) constituted a connected transaction of the Company

under the Listing Rules.

As the transactions contemplated under the Share Purchase
Agreements related to acquisition of companies involved in
similar businesses from parties related to each other, the Company
had aggregated the transactions and treated them as if they were
one transaction. As the applicable percentage ratios under Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the relevant transactions
on an aggregated basis were more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the relevant transactions were subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but were exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and shareholders’ approval

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

A

BEXS (&)
W is =R (&)

REZF-IEZHHNA > WARARAS A

(1)  CPFRAARRATE CBATE BB £147.8% »
P ILCPFA A A Rl 2 B ERH o IE KA E#
HEE PERERMBAERAR (— K =E
R EHiZ AT W2 EHE > WHCPF
F A H39%B A o IE K E ¥ ACPFZ %
A HlBARAFZBBEANL &

(2)  HACPGH: H CPFAL ¥ ¥ B e » A A 7] K&
CPGHEHCPGE AR AR Z FEBHK o IEK
BRBCPCZ M2 E WA WE AW » Bk
AR s AR A F Z Bt o

PRI o AR A i P A S 1 e ~ R TR
i~ i B0 i 10 o S CP Chinali 4 i H 1) o
(50 [ 1B i 0 b L) ST B 3E AT 2 32 5 T M AR
1 BB A W Z B AR 5 -

FH A T A7 i B e TS B AT 2 A2 Ty LA 4 I W
WA T7 > W RBEB AT AR - AR H
L ER S Aot AR eI —HRZ 5 -
AR ERRIES 14.07TH0E R EMBER S22 H
S B AR 0.19% B KR 5% » % 55 HH B 22 %) 7 i
TR R - Y AT R A R > MR ST
A7 TR o (L35 T8 S B 5 T ) B R o R
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Vietnam Construction Contracts

On 26 February 2019, two subsidiaries of the Company entered
into contracts with KSP Vietnam Co., Ltd. (“KSP Vietnam”) as the
contractor to carry out the construction works and to procure and
install equipment at feedmills which were being developed by the C.P.
Vietnam Corporation (“CPVC”) and its subsidiaries from to time (the
“CPVC Group”) in Binh Phuoc Province, Vietnam:

»

7

Report of the Directors
ESHREE

FEXS (&)
HEEREE

R JUE T N H o AR A WK K6
/A 7] BAKSP Vietnam Co., Ltd. ([ KSPHE R 1) 1F %
7R BET A W > 2 HC.P. Vietnam Corporation
(TCPVC) KA W Z W} i 2 w] ([CPVCHE M ) 3%
Jre AR 7 1 - A RO AT R T R R A
BB

Subsidiary Contracts Facility Contracts Sum
Ftf & 2 W) & [ W it & Il 4
CPVC Swine Feedmill Contracts Swine feedmill with an annual VND366.0 billion
capacity of 342,000 metric tons (approximately
US$15.7 million)
CPVC 7 B R WA TR T R4 342,000 M 36601 i 13 JE
FF) 78 R R (#11,5708 % 0)

CPV Food Co., Ltd. Poultry Feedmill Contracts

Poultry feedmill with an annual

VDN382.7 billion

(“CPV Food”) capacity of 300,000 metric tons (approximately
US$16.4 million)
CPV Food Co., Ltd. KB R A W B4R 300,000 M 3,82 715 M JE
(TCPVE M) B 5 85 i B ik (#11,6408 3 0)

As at 26 February 2019, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, CPF was interested in approximately 47.8% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company and CPG was interested in
approximately 49.11% of the issued share capital of CPF. Due to
CPG’s near majority shareholding in CPF, the Company and CPG had
agreed to treat CPG as a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
accordingly CPG, its subsidiaries and their respective associates were
treated as connected persons of the Company. As KSP Vietnam was
a subsidiary of CPG, the transactions contemplated under the Swine
Feedmill Contracts and the Poultry Feedmill Contracts (collectively,
the “Vietnam Construction Contracts”) were treated as connected

transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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WZF—NEZAZTAH > WAAFAHHY
CPF# A AN B CEAT 8 B A #147.8% » ICPG
¥ HCPFE B 17 B AS £749.11% » B R CPGH5 A CPF
TR 2 BB ME > A B ELCPG R FE L CPG A A 4 7]
ZEERAH > B > CPG K I F a2 =l A A 45 il i
NG o N T NN Bl ) NG £ S
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EEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Vietham Construction Contracts (continued)

As the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the transactions contemplated under the
Vietnam Constructions Contracts were more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the relevant transactions were subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but were exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The PRC Construction Management Contracts

On 22 September 2018, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a
contract Chia Tai Handing Modern Agricultural Technology Co, Ltd.
(formerly known as Chia Tai Handing Engineering Management Co.,
Ltd.) (“Chia Tai Handing”) to carry out construction management
and to procure and install equipment at facilities where were being
developed by that subsidiary in the PRC:

A

BEXS (&)
HrEEZRERE (M)

AL b TR 5 14, O7AR I FH 7% 8 e s e i [ BT
EEATR 5 2 A 4 e R0, 19K 5% > 7% 5 HH Bl
A8 Sy 7 SY b LR SR - Y A TR HE ORI A RUAE
0030 S A T A R 0 o B R ) B S
HORE A B E o

TEHEREESR

PR EIA S 2H s RAR—FKHEA A
SHLTE R S B SR AR BOA PR 2 W) (AR IE K 8 430
TR A PRAA]) (TIEREE G ) 15 % g B AL B
T IRL > Ry i PO R 2 A v B e AT R B
B e BRI A0 2 Bl

Construction
Subsidiary Contract Facilities Management Fee
Pt JE§ 2> ) =G Wt R
C. P. Food (Zhanjiang) Co., Zhanjiang Contract [ Food processing facilities in RMB262,860
Ltd. (“CP Food Zhanjiang”) Guangdong Province (approximately
US$38,100)
IER A5 GEIL) A R A WL A W RLJF B SR B R i m TR 262,860 \ R
(MTER & dh i) (#138,100%7C)

As all of the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the amount paid and payable by CP Food
Zhanjiang under the Zhanjiang Contract I were less than 0.1%, the
transaction was exempt from the reporting and other requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules at the time when the contract

was entered into.

PP AR B TR ) 58 14. 0740 3 I A B AR B 9T
I 1 T KB il 06 T FT S A S M 4 A 22 B 40 bl
RALHO0.1% » %558 5y WA 3T A 7] IR S 7~ AR 9t
TR R SR 14 A R B A AR E
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The PRC Construction Management Contracts (continued)

»

7

Report of the Directors
ESHREE

BEXS (&)

TEEREESR (M)

On 4 June 2019, the following subsidiaries of the Company also
entered into the following contracts with Chia Tai Handing
(the “2019 PRC Construction Management Contracts”) as the

construction manager to carry out construction management and to

procure and install equipment at facilities which were being developed

by that subsidiary in the PRC:

Subsidiary
B B 2

Contract

£ Il

Facilities

¢ ili

REZFB—JAFENHWMH > FHA L R MG A 7 8- IE
KPS 2 e A H T DL A ) ([2019 0 B g 5%
BT L) > %% B ES 2 w) A v (B i i 2 17
e A L R R 0 22 e Rl

Construction

Management Fee

A T A

C. P. Food (Hengshui)
Co., Ltd.

TERR i (H5K) B IRAH

CP Food Enterprise

(Qinhuangdao) Co., Ltd.

EREMERE(RER)
A RA T

Chia Tai Food Enterprise
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd.

EREMEEES)
A RA T

Fujian Chia Tai Food
Co., Ltd.

IR A PR ]

Hengshui Contract

KA 1A

Qinhuangdao Contract

Fujian Contract

A

Slaughtering and food processing

facilities in Hebei Province

R T b A B S e
B i i 13 e

Food processing facilities in

Hebei Province

(0N ST RiTE: 3/ N9

Food processing facilities in

Shandong Province

AL L 34 A FE o T8

Food processing facilities in

Fujian Province

R 7 e A A B o B
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RMB24,446,700
(approximately
US$3,543,000)

24,446,700 A\ R
(#13,543,0003% 7t)

RMBI1,282,200
(approximately
US$185,830)

1,282,200 A\ R
(#9185,83037t)

RMB1,481,400
(approximately
US$214,700)

1,481,400 \ R ¥
(#1214,7005%78)

RMB2,086,200
(approximately
US$302,350)

2,086,200 \ R
(#9302,350378)
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Report of the Directors

EEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The PRC Construction Management Contracts (continued)

Subsidiary
Bt J8§ 2 W

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 7

Contract

£ I

REXS (&)

Facilities

e

TEEREESR (&)

Construction

Management Fee

R R

Hubei Chia Tai Co., Ltd.

WAL IE KA R A T

C. P. Food (Nantong)
Co., Ltd.

IER B (FE) A BRA T

Chia Tai Food (Sugian)

Co., Ltd.

IER B (15 78) A RA T

C. P. Food (Zhanjiang)

TE R il (FET)

Jilin Chia Tai Food
Co., Ltd.

T ARIE K& i A A H
C. P. Food (Xiangyang)
Co., Ltd.

IERE G (FE) A RA T

70

Hubei Contract

WAL A

Nantong Contract

8 A 7

Sugian Contract

i A

Zhanjiang Contract 11

B AR

Jilin Contract

Xiangyang Contract

ELEA R

Food processing facilities in Hubei

Province

(08 SUE| AN TR 4T Y | MN-9 )

Food processing facilities in

Jiangsu Province

BT TR A B i T

Food processing facilities in

Jiangsu Province

BT TR A B i T

Food processing facilities in

Guangdong Province

(08 iR 4Ty N9

Food processing facilities in Jilin

Province

BT 7 AR BB I T

Slaughtering and food processing

facilities in Hubei Province

AL W0 Ak A Y JB S B £ o T
it
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RMB13,184,100
(approximately
US$1,910,740)

13,184,100 A\ BB ¥
(#11,910,7403E 1)

RMB57,900
(approximately
US$8,390)

57,900 \ R
(#18,3905€ 7€)

RMB3,120,300
(approximately
US$452,220)

3,120,300 A R ¥%
(#1452,220%%758)

RMB1,045,500
(approximately
US$151,520)

1,045,500 A R
(#1151,520%50)

RMBI,766,400
(approximately
US$256,000)

1,766,400 \ R
(#1256,0009570)

RMB12,000,000
(approximately
US$1,739,130)

12,000,000 \ R ¥
(#11,739,1303:70)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The PRC Construction Management Contracts (continued)

As at 4 June 2019, being the date of the Company’s announcement,
CPF was interested in approximately 49.02% of the issued ordinary
shares of the Company and CPG held approximately 48.94% of the
issued share capital of CPF. Due to CPG’s near majority shareholding
in CPF, the Company and CPG had agreed to treat CPG as a
substantial shareholder of the Company, accordingly CPG and its
subsidiaries and their respective associates are treated as connected
persons of the Company. As Chia Tai Handing is a subsidiary of CPG,
each of the transactions contemplated under the Zhanjiang Contract
I and the 2019 PRC Construction Management Contracts (the “PRC
Construction Management Transactions”) was treated as a connected

transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Since Zhanjiang Contract [ and each of the 2019 PRC Construction
Management Contracts were related to the management of the
Group’s construction projects and were entered into between
the Group and Chia Tai Handing in the last 12 months, the
Company had aggregated these transactions and treated them as
if they were one transaction. As all of the applicable percentage
ratios under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the PRC
Construction Management Transactions in aggregate were more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions were subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but are exempt from the
circular (including independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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RERXRZ (&)
FERRERAR (K)

RoF—JUENHMHE > BIARAT A% HM > CPF
Fe A A | 84T 5 0 B £949.02% > T CPGHF
H CPFE. % 47 B A< #148.94% » M ACPGHF H CPF#%
3 2 OB RE > AR A F B1CPG ] B CPG A A /A 7]
ZEERAH > BRI > CPG K H: M a2 B A 45 il i
N RS A AR A R Z B L o R IE
KERBZCPCZ M B A R > AREEHE LS FIF2019H
Bl ERAH T EBEETZR S ([
B G 1) B AR B8 b i A ) AR A ] 2
R 5o

F A R 45 1) 10 4% 2019 H 0 St e 457 B 5 I g B A 4
P i R B B o D %l A R B OE K
SR 1200 B NEET > AT B SRS 60
At SRR I — A 5 o AR BT BRI SR 14.07
308 P A T v R A B AR B B 2 2
3 Lo A0, 1 %A AK IR 5% » 7% 5538 5 UMY LAl
R 5E - DY AT HY R A A BLE o M R A0 A B
PR (L 935 8 7 O 2 TR L ) . B SR A v A L
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Report of the Directors
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The PRC Equipment Procurement and Installation Contracts

On 11 September 2019, the following subsidiaries of the Company
entered into the following contracts with Shanghai Zhengcheng
Mechanical-Electrical Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Zheng Cheng”) (the
“PRC Equipment Procurement and Installation Contracts”) to procure

and install equipment at the new or replacement feedmill production

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 7

facilities which were being developed by the subsidiaries in the PRC:

Subsidiary
B )5 2 )

Contract

£ I

Location of Feedmill

) e for B

BEXS (&)

TERERBRZESR

REZEIA+—H > FHAR R HHE A 7 8
B IE R R RS A R A W] ([ B IE SR ) #G5T LF
T (e o 35 DR B S S B 1] L) > T i S5 R g 2
) T 3% e A 7 v [ - S g A A S B PR
LY &S T8

Contract Sum

£ I7] < #

Chia Tai Feed Dongying Co., Dongying Contract

Ltd.
IE KA S A LA

Chia Tai Feed (Yiwu) Co.,

Ltd.

IERER(#5) A RA T

Mianyang Chia Tai Co., Ltd.

i IE KA FRA

Ningbo Chia Tai

Agriculture Co., Ltd.

P IERRERRAH

72

Yiwu Contract

#EGN

Mianyang Contract

A 5 £ ]

Ningbo Contract

Shandong Province

WA

Zhejiang Province

WA

Sichuan Province

mg)iE

Zhejiang Province

WA
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RMB30,000,000
(approximately
US$4,267,400)

30,000,000 A B
(#14,267,4003£J8)

RMB29,000,000
(approximately
US$4,125,200)

29,000,000 A B ¥
(#14,125,2003¢55)

RMB31,400,000
(approximately
US$4,466,600)

31,400,000 A\ R
(#14,466,6003 75)

RMB72,650,000
(approximately
US$10,334,300)

72,650,000 A B ¥
(#110,334,3003 L)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The PRC Equipment Procurement and Installation Contracts
(continued)

As at 11 September 2019, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, CPF is interested in approximately 49.44% of the
issued ordinary shares of the company and CPG was interested in
approximately 48.94% of the issued share capital of CPF. Due to
CPG’s near majority shareholding in CPF, the Company and CPG
had agreed to treat CPG as a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Accordingly CPG and its subsidiaries and their respective associates
were treated as connected persons of the Company. As Shanghai
Zheng Cheng was a subsidiary of CPG, each of the transactions
contemplated under the PRC Equipment Procurement and
Installation Contracts was treated as a connected transaction of the

Company under the Listing Rules.

Since each of the PRC Equipment Procurement and Installation
Contracts was entered into between a subsidiary of the Group
and Shanghai Zheng Cheng and related to the procurement and
installation of equipment to be installed at a new or replacement
feedmill production facility being developed by that subsidiary. The
Company had aggregated these transactions and treated them as if
they were one transaction. As all of the applicable percentage ratios
under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the transactions
under the PRC Equipment Procurement and Installation Contracts
in aggregate were more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions
were subject to reporting and announcement requirements but were
exempt from the circular (including independent financial advice)
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Vietnam Installation and Construction Contracts

Two subsidiaries of the Company entered into the following contracts
with KSP Vietnam (the “Vietnam Installation and Construction
Contracts”) (i) to procure and install various certain production-

related equipment or (ii) to construct hatchery buildings at certain of

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 7

the production facilities which were being developed by the CPVC

Group in Vietnam:

BEXS (&)
HEREREESR

A2 T W 5K M RS 2 W BEK SPAR 55T DA R A R (T4
MEEREEAR]D » & BCPVCH B 3§ Ao i
T A T 2k B R ) PR R R S A T LA M
B A w48 B (i) R R AL 3

Subsidiary Date of Contract Contract Contract Sum

B )5 2 ) AR & IF & [ 4 8

CPVC 27 February 2019 CPVC Liquid Tanks Contact VND6,935 million
(approximately US$299
thousand)

CPVC “E-UEZA LR CPVC 8 i i 4 [7] 694i3,5004 il 1 g
(#129.98 3 T)

CPV Food 27 February 2019 CPV Food Water Tanks Contract VND2,315 million
(approximately US$100
thousand)

CPVH& fih —F-REZHZ+ LA CPV & fi fitk 7K 5 15 7] 23481,500#; B F5 /G
(#1108 3€8)

CPV Food 29 April 2019 CPV Food Fire Protection System VND26,000 million

Contract (approximately US$1,121
thousand)

CPVH& fih “EZ-RAENA A CPVH #h K B & %8  [F7 26045 B H G
(#1112.183%5%)

CPVC 1 June 2019 CPVC Compressor Air Tank VND1,217 million

Contract (approximately US$52
thousand)

CPVC R -NEANAH CPVCIRE i 1 5 e 5 [+ 12481,700 % B J&
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Report of the Directors

BEEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BEXS (&)
The Vietnam Installation and Construction Contracts HMEZERZEESE (&)
(continued)

Subsidiary Date of Contract Contract Contract Sum

B )& 2 ) & e H 3 1 IF] & 6 &3

CPV Food 1 June 2019 CPV Food Compressor Air Tank VND488 million

Contract (approximately US$21
thousand)

CPVEH fih ZE2-RUEANA—H CPV £ il JB 4 B S 5 [l 448,800 44 8 B
(#12.1853%52)

CPV Food 21 November 2019 CPV Food Hatchery Contract VND75,420 million
(approximately US$3,251
thousand)

CPV X fil “F-E A=+ —H CPVH# fh L% £ 1A 7544%2,000 # 4 7 J&
(#1325.1# 3% L)

CPV Food 21 November 2019 CPV Food Refrigeration Systems VND74,907 million

Contract (approximately US$3,229
thousand)

CPVEH fih “2-UEt+—HZ+—H CPVEMMA RE AN 749700 88 7 5
(#1322.983%50)

CPV Food 21 November 2019 CPV Food Broiler Farm Equipment VND26,151 million

Contract (approximately US$1,127
thousand)

CPV X fil “F-E A=+ —H CPV & i A HE 5 i il 7 ) 261%5,100 4 M 3 J&
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Vietnam Installation and Construction Contracts
(continued)

As at 21 November 2019, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, CPF was interested in approximately 49.74% of the
issued ordinary shares and CPG was interested in approximately
48.94% of the issued share capital of CPF. Due to CPG’s near majority
shareholding in CPF, the Company and CPG had agreed to treat
CPG as a substantial shareholder of the Company, and accordingly
CPG and its associates were treated as connected persons of the
Company. As KSP Vietnam was a subsidiary of CPG, the transactions
contemplated under the Vietnam Installation and Construction
Contracts were treated as connected transactions of the Company

under the Listing Rules.

The applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules
in respect of the contract sum of each of those Vietnam Installation
and Construction Contracts which had been entered into from 27
February to 1 June 2019 (being the CPVC Liquid Tanks Contact,
the CPV Food Water Tanks Contract, the CPV Food Fire Protection
System Contract, the CPVC Compressor Air Tank Contract and the
CPV Food Compressor Air Tank Contract) were, on an aggregated
basis, less than 0.1% at the time the respective contracts were made.
Accordingly, the transactions thereunder were exempt from reporting,
announcement, circular (including independent financial advice) and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

However, since each of the Vietnam Installation and Construction
Contracts which were entered into on the date of the Company’s
announcement (being 21 November 2019), being the CPV Food
Hatchery Contract, the CPV Food Refrigeration Systems Contract
and the CPV Food Broiler Farm Equipment Contract, was also entered
into with KSP Vietnam which was treated as a connected person
and relates to the provision of similar services to the CPVC Group,
the Company has aggregated the transactions and treated them as
if they were one transaction. As the applicable percentage ratios
under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the transactions
on an aggregated basis were more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the transactions were subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the circular (including independent
financial advice) and shareholders’ approval requirements under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

A

W_F—hE+—H_Z+—H - WRAFAHH
W > CPFR:H T84T B Ay £949.74% » WiCPGH H
CPFE. %47 Ik A #148.94% ° B #*CPGH# A CPFH#% i
W YR HE > AR A BELCPG R B HCPG A AR AW 2
FERH > b > CPGR I E AW A AR AF 2
BNt o HRKSPH R £ CPGZ Mt B 2 W] » B 7
BT RE A R TE N B 1T 2 A2 5 W B A AR
LA BIAR A R Z AR G

g LA RS 14.07E R = F—LEZA
ZHEHEXNH B YRR MR R KR
WA (BCPVCH B f#HES M ~ CPVE MM KHES
[l ~ CPVE 51 B & 5 A [ ~ CPVCEE 4 4 U BE &
[l e CPVA S S B SR A 1) ) 2 B A Bb 2R > 365 0F
FHE AR A W Z REER0.1% o Bk » & H T
ZRGEHA L WHENE T AR B EH - A%
I R (95 98 S S R ) SO S R v B o

R > RN EARA W AE BB (=2 — e+ —
HZ+—8) T &M L3 KA > BICPV
TRWLE AR - CPVERBR R G KCPVE
i B R A A > [l SEKSPMRE (AR A W] 2 B 4
N t) B ERT R B i CPVCSE 18] $2 At 38400 IR % M B
RAFGZER G AR R —IEHR 5 -
F AR 4 L T L B 5 14 O 7466 308 I % 25 %2 5 i A B
SHE TR E 4 b R0 1% BRI 5% » B B A
Ay b EL AR Y AR B R A S BLE > MR R
TSy A B pR (A3 o B 5 T L) S o B L o
By R R o
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions that are subject to the
Listing Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in the annual

report.

Supply
High Orient Enterprises Limited

On 31 October 2016, the Company entered into a master supply
agreement with High Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”) (the
“2016 Master HOEL Supply Agreement”), for the supply by the Group
to HOEL and its associates (the “HOEL Group”) of various feed-
related, farm-related and food-related products produced or procured
by the Group including animal feed, feed raw materials, livestock and
aquatic products, and processed meats and food products. The 2016
Master HOEL Supply Agreement took effect on 1 January 2017 and
continued until 31 December 2019. The 2016 Master HOEL Supply
Agreement and the annual caps were approved by the independent

shareholders of the Company on 13 December 2016.

As at 31 October 2016, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, CPF was interested in approximately 47.8% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company and CPG held approximately
45.4% of the issued share capital of CPF. Due to CPG’s near majority
shareholding in CPF, the Company and CPG have agreed to treat
CPG as a substantial shareholder of the Company, accordingly CPG
and its subsidiaries and their respective associates were treated as
connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. As HOEL was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG,
the transactions contemplated under the 2016 Master HOEL Supply
Agreement were treated as continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the approved annual cap for
the transactions contemplated under the 2016 Master HOEL Supply
Agreement was US$2,906,000,000 and the actual sales recorded
amounted to US$1,073,311,000.

As the Company intended to continue the transactions under the
2016 Master HOEL Supply Agreement, on 30 October 2019, the
Company entered into a new master agreement with HOEL, which
took effect on 1 January 2020 and would continue until 31 December

2022.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Supply (continued)
ITOCHU Corporation

On 30 October 2019, the Company entered into a master supply
agreement with ITOCHU Corporation (“I'TOCHU”) (the “Master
ITOCHU Supply Agreement”) for the supply and sale of the feed-
related, farm-related and food-related products (with related services)
produced or procured by the Group, such as animal feed, feed
raw materials, livestock, aquatic stock, and processed meats and
food products, to ITOCHU and its subsidiaries from time to time
(“ITOCHU Group”). The Master ITOCHU Supply Agreement took
effect on 30 October 2019 and would continue until 31 December
2020.

As at 30 October 2019, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, ITOCHU was interested in approximately 25% of
the issued ordinary shares of the Company and was a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Master ITOCHU Supply Agreement were
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules for the proposed annual caps under the Master ITOCHU Supply
Agreement were more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions
thereunder were subject to the reporting and the announcement
requirements but were exempt from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and the independent shareholders’

approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the approved annual cap for
the transactions contemplated under the Master ITOCHU Supply
Agreement was US$4,000,000 and the actual sales recorded amounted
to US$2,543,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase
High Orient Enterprises Limited

On 31 October 2016, the Company entered into a master purchase
agreement with HOEL (the “2016 Master HOEL Purchase
Agreement”) for the purchase from the HOEL Group of feed raw
materials, packing materials, livestock and aquatic products, meats
and other items required by the Group in the production of feed-
related, farm-related and food-related products. The 2016 HOEL
Master Purchase Agreement took effect on 1 January 2017 and
continued until 31 December 2019. The 2016 HOEL Master Purchase
Agreement and the annual caps were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company on 13 December 2016.

As at 31 October 2016, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, CPF was interested in approximately 47.8% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company and CPG held approximately
45.4% of the issued share capital of CPF. Due to CPG’s near majority
shareholding in CPF, the Company and CPG have agreed to treat
CPG as a substantial shareholder of the Company, accordingly CPG
and its subsidiaries and their respective associates were treated as
connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. As HOEL was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG,
the transactions contemplated under the 2016 Master HOEL Purchase
Agreement were treated as continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the approved annual cap for
the transactions contemplated under the 2016 Master HOEL Purchase
Agreement was US$2,240,000,000 and the actual purchases recorded
amounted to US$1,016,822,000.

As the Company intended to continue the transactions under the
2016 Master HOEL Purchase Agreement, on 30 October 2019, the
Company entered into a new master agreement with HOEL, which
took effect on 1 January 2020 and would continue until 31 December
2022.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase (continued)
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited

On 30 October 2017, the Company entered into master purchase
agreement with Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (“CTEI”)
(the “2017 Master CTEI Purchase Agreement”), for the purchase of
various chlortetracycline products and such animal drugs (including
any antibiotics) required by the Group’s feed and farming businesses
from CTEI and its subsidiaries (the “CTEI Group”). The 2017 Master
CTEI Purchase Agreement took effect on 1 January 2018 and would
continue until 31 December 2020.

As at 30 October 2017, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, CPF was interested in approximately 47.8%
of the issued ordinary shares of the Company, and was the
controlling shareholder of the Company. CPF was also interested in
approximately 47.8% of the issued share capital of CTEl. Companies
in the CTEI Group were therefore associates of CPF and connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. Transactions
between the Group and the CTEI Group under the 2017 Master CTEI
Purchase Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2017 Master CTEI Purchase
Agreement was US$4,100,000 and the actual purchases recorded
amounted to US$3,006,000.

A

FEBRERS (R)

BE ()
EALFERER LA A

W_FZ—LtE+A=Z1TH  RAFHEKRSER
WA PR 2 W) (TCTEL 25T — 4 i B 48 15 3% (2017
CTEI B 3k ]) » HAHE H i CTELK 3 & 2
W) (TCTEI4EF ) s BUASHE M B} S e i 5 I i
MEEERERERMBYER (BHIERAEE) -
2017CTEU B R —F— \FE—H — Hilt R
HEZZ-REFT-HA=Z+—H-

WN_F—LEFTA=ZTH  WARAFAHEHMY
CPFR A K 23 W] T 8847 3% 48 B B4y £947.8% > Zy AR
O] 2 P B BE R o T CPFAR 5 A CTEI T 3 47 B A 4
RAH147.8% o I LCTEISE 9 2 7 AY 2 W] AR 58 L B
W % CPRZ T 8 N\ o AR 24 v Z B N o AR 4 [
CTEI4E E MR #8201 7CTEIE HE 48 15 36 5 F M 2 5 1t
P8 L BRI 5B - Y AR BAR A R 2 FR BB LA 5 o

Bk —F—hE+ZH=Z+—HIL&FEE » 2017 CTEI
i AR R T T S 5 AR R a4 1088 3650 M B
I o ) 5 Bk AR 4 300.6 8 BT o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
-



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b ¥ HE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase (continued)
ITOCHU Corporation

On 30 October 2019, the Company entered into a master purchase
agreement with ITOCHU (the “Master ITOCHU purchase
Agreement”) for the purchase of feed raw materials, packing materials,
breed and farm livestock and aqua stock, meats and other items
required in the production and sale of animal and aqua feed, farm and
food products (with related services) by the Group from the ITOCHU
Group. The Master ITOCHU Purchase Agreement took effect on 30
October 2019 and would continue until 31 December 2020.

As at 30 October 2019, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, [TOCHU was interested in approximately 25% of
the issued ordinary shares of the Company and was a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Master ITOCHU Purchase Agreement were
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules for the proposed annual caps under the Master ITOCHU
Purchase Agreement were more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
transactions thereunder were subject to the reporting and the
announcement requirements but were exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the approved annual cap for
the transactions contemplated under the Master ITOCHU Purchase
Agreement was US$5,000,000 and the actual purchases recorded
amounted to US$4,422,000.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

CPG Trademark Licence

On 28 December 2016, C.P. Vietnam Corporation (“CPVC”), a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a trademark
licence agreement with CPG (the “CPG Trademark Licence
Agreement”), whereby CPG granted CPVC a non-exclusive right to
use the trademarks in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
CPG Trademark Licence Agreement. The royalty fee was equivalent
to 1.5% of the net revenue of CPVC (and any subsidiary which has
been granted a sub-licence to use the trademarks) from sale of goods
and provision of services, exclusive of the valued added tax chargeable
on the sale of such products under applicable Vietnam laws and
regulations, commercial discounts, rebates and returned goods. The
CPG Trademark Licence Agreement took effect on 1 January 2017
and continued until 31 December 2019.

As at 28 December 2016, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, CPF was interested in approximately 47.8% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company and Charoen Pokphand Group
held approximately 44.75% of the issued share capital of CPF. Due
to CPG’s near majority shareholding in CPF, the Company and
CPG have agreed to treat CPG as a substantial shareholder of the
Company, accordingly Charoen Pokphand Group and its subsidiaries
and their respective associates were treated as connected persons of
the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
transaction contemplated under the CPG Trademark Licence
Agreement was treated as a continuing connected transaction of the

Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the CPG Trademark Licence
Agreement was US$51,000,000 and the actual royalty fee incurred
amounted to US$41,729,000.

As the Company intended to continue the transactions under the
CPG Trademark Licence Agreement, on 30 December 2019, CPVC
entered into a new licence agreement with CPG, which took effect on
1 January 2020 and would continue until 31 December 2022.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

CP Trademark Sub-licence

On 10 August 2018, CP China entered into a master trademark sub-
licence agreement with CTAI (the “2018 Master Trademark Sub-
licence Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2018 Master Trademark Sub-
licence Agreement, CTAI had agreed to sub-license to subsidiaries
of CP China in the PRC a non-exclusive right to use the trademark
in the PRC in connection with the production, distribution and sale
of certain designated food products under Class 29 and the provision
of ancillary retail, management and consultancy services under Class
35. The royalty rates ranged from 0 to 0.4% of the net sale value. The
2018 Master Trademark Sub-licence Agreement took effect on 14
August 2018 and would continue until 31 December 2020.

As at 10 August 2018, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, CPF was interested in approximately 47.8% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company and CPG held approximately
48.99% of the issued share capital of CPF. Due to CPG’s near majority
shareholding in CPF, the Company and CPG had agreed to treat CPG
as a substantial shareholder of the Company, accordingly CPG and its
subsidiaries and their respective associates were treated as connected
persons of the Company. As CTAI was a subsidiary of CPG, the
transaction contemplated under the 2018 Master Trademark Sub-
licence Agreement was treated as a continuing connected transaction

of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year 31 December 2019, the annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the 2018 Master Trademark Sub-licence
Agreement was US$5,000,000 and the actual royalty fee incurred
amounted to US$1,416,000.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Listing Rules Compliance

The Internal Audit Department has reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and had no material findings of non-
compliance to report to the independent non-executive Directors of

the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have also
reviewed the Group’s continuing connected transactions and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as

a whole.

In respect of the above continuing connected transactions, the
Company has complied with the relevant announcement, circular and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules from time to time.

KPMG, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
KPMG has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Transactions with joint ventures and associates of the Group, rental
income and expenses and interest income with HOEL, which are
disclosed as related party disclosures in note 44 to the financial
statements of the annual report, do not fall under the definition of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction, or were
fully exempt under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and thus are not

disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of the
Company which require disclosure in the annual report in accordance
with the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF
THE LISTING RULES

On 17 June 2016, the Company entered into a 5-year syndicated
term loan facility agreement with Cooéperatieve Rabobank U.A.,
Hong Kong Branch and Kasikornbank Public Company Limited
(“Kasikornbank”) as mandated lead arrangers, other lenders (together
the “Lenders”) and Kasikornbank as agent, relating to a facility
amount of US$600 million (the “Facility”) made available to the
Company by the Lenders (the “Facility Agreement”). The Facility was
used to repay all amounts owed by the Company under the US$410
million term loan facility agreement dated 19 December 2012 and to
finance the working capital and/or general corporate requirements of

the Company and its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default
if Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries cease to own the largest percentage of the legal and
beneficial interest in the total issued ordinary share capital of the

Company and cease to have control over the Company.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render all
outstanding liabilities of the Company under the Facility Agreement
to become immediately due and payable and any commitments under
the Facility to be cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure obligation
pursuant to the requirements under Rules 13.18 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In 2016, the Group acquired a 70% equity interest in a company
which is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
animal feed, poultry farming and trading as well as the processing
and trading of chicken meat products in the PRC. As a result of the
acquisition, poultry farming and trading and meat products trading

have been added to the range of the Group’s business in the PRC.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Mr. Adirek Sripratak, Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont,
Mr. Bai Shanlin and Mr. Yu Jianping were directors (but not
substantial shareholders) of CPG and/or a number of its subsidiaries
which are engaged in businesses including farming and food products
business in the PRC (the “Excluded Companies”). Accordingly,
these Directors have disclosed their interest in businesses which may
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the farming and food products business of the Group in the PRC,
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

As the Board functions independently from the boards of the
Excluded Companies, the Directors believe that the Group is capable
of carrying on its farming and food products business in the PRC
independently of the farming and food products business carried on by

the Excluded Companies.

The Directors, including those who are considered to have an interest
in the farming and food products business carried on by the Excluded
Companies, will, as and when required under the bye-laws of the
Company, abstain from voting on any resolution of the Board in
respect of any contract, arrangement or proposal in which he/her or

any of his/her associates has a material interest.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware that any of the
Directors had interest in any business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
which falls to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 145, every Directors shall be
indemnified out of the funds of the Company against all liabilities

incurred by him/her as such Directors.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability

insurance for its Directors and officers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed

during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was

entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year 2019, the Company applied the principles
and complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate

Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent non-
executive Directors and one non-executive Director. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision
of the Company’s financial reporting process, risk management and

internal control.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2019 prior to the publication
of the 2019 annual results.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

KPMG will retire and a resolution for its re-appointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Arunee Watcharananan
Director

Hong Kong
9 April 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB RS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 97 to 246, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed

in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% BUAT RS

FRETEH

IR B T TR AR R AN Y TSRV > R AR
BRI B R MY G e Ay A I - BRI
A B AN A BB A A I AR St B SR R AR
o FAMA G s e H R PR R -

a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from the sale of
animal feed products, livestock and aquatic animals and
value-added processed food products.

The terms of sales contracts relating to goods acceptance by
customers are similar and revenue is generally recognised
when the products are collected by the customers from the
Group’s premises or when the products are delivered to the
location designated by the customers.

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and is, therefore, subject to an
inherent risk of manipulation by management to meet
targets or expectations and because errors in the recognition
of revenue could have a material impact on the Group’s
profit for the year.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

o evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the existence, accuracy and timing of revenue
recognition;

o challenging the revenue recognition policies adopted
by the Group by making inquiries of management and
inspecting a sample of sales contracts to understand
the delivery terms of the transactions to assess the
Group’s timing of revenue recognition with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

o inspecting manual adjustments to revenue raised
during the reporting period which met specific risk-
based criteria, enquiring of management the reasons
for such adjustments and comparing the details of the
adjustments with relevant underlying documentation;

o assessing whether revenue had been recognised in the
appropriate accounting period and in accordance with
the terms of the sales contracts by comparing a sample
of sales transactions recorded around the year end
with relevant underlying documents, which included
goods dispatch notes or documentation indicating the
customers’ acknowledgement of delivery of the goods

sold; and

o identifying significant sales returns from the
sales ledger after the year end and inspecting the
underlying documentation to assess if the related
adjustments to revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate reporting period.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% BUA 3R S
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Valuation of current livestock - swine

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s biological assets mainly represent piglets and
fattening swine which are presented as “current livestock
— swine” in the consolidated financial statements and are

measured at their fair value less costs of disposal.

Management determined the fair value based on market
prices and, where market prices were not available for
certain age groups, based on market prices of other age
groups, with adjustments to take into account differences
in weight. The Group’s current livestock — swine had an
aggregate value of US$488 million as at 31 December 2019.

We identified the valuation of the Group’s current livestock
— swine as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the Group’s total assets and the significance of the
changes in fair value of biological assets to the Group’s
profit before taxation and because the valuation of swine
requires significant management judgement and estimation,
in particular in determining the market prices for swine of
different age groups and in making adjustments for weight
differences.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of the Group’s

current livestock — swine included the following:

° evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to swine
management, in particular, the classification of swine
into different age groups and the assessment of swine

quantity;

° comparing, on a sample basis, the physical count
quantities of swine for each age group to that as set

out in management’s fair value calculation table;

o assessing the experience and knowledge of the
relevant personnel from the Group who were involved

in assessing the value of swine at the reporting date;

° discussing with management the methodology
adopted in estimating the fair value of swine and
challenging key estimates and assumptions adopted in
the valuations by comparing market prices for swine
of different age groups with available market data and

by utilising our industry knowledge;

o assessing whether the fair value of swine was
calculated in a manner consistent with the Group’s
fair value model by recalculating the fair value of
swine based on the inputs, in particular the market
prices for swine and weight difference adjustments,
adopted by the Group; and

o assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the valuation of swine with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing

accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the REMMBA G EBRRARENET T

consolidated financial statements (continued) (#&)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the e
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the e
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group’s audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other B fBEIEAM » TAMBEFF T B GHE 758 EF
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant i ~ BEf 228k - | REF BHRE > BHFRMALE
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal  Z&FF v ak I H P9 3B 35 il W) 4] BB R B [g o

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have  FRMBE T ZEH FRAZEY > FHRMECKTEF
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence [ % 37 Pk if #H BH S5 35 8 PR 255K » oiF B fh M 3 5 v
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 8 ¥ #3528 % € 5% 28 3 A M S itk i B 5 BRI 8
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where W ZFIH » DL M /e FH 0O OL T > #H B B4 95 46 5 it -

applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Yu Wai Sum.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A B 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FmEeEZTEWE R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

2019 2018

R —F )\

Note US$’000 US$’000

Mt F L Fi FLFo

(Note (a))

(Htiik(a))

REVENUE LN 5 6,960,836 6,709,420
Cost of sales 9 B A (5,734,782) (5,667,468)
Gross profit B 1,226,054 1,041,952
Net change in fair value of biological assets HYE RN RIEZ S B THE 6 105,554 95,870
1,331,608 1,137,822

Other income, net oAt e A 7 36,083 48,796
Selling and distribution costs BB Ko 4y i R AR (299,529) (283,405)
General and administrative expenses B R EHEH (365,568) (312,892)
Finance costs T 6 B AR 8 (142,399) (80,238)

Share of profits and losses of: JRE A Y6 1) % s 18
Joint ventures e 22(a) 2,597 3,226
Associates W% N a] 23(a) 26,448 19,069
PROFIT BEFORE TAX o B i w6 9 589,240 532,378
Income tax Jit 7 12 (121,536) (139,361)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A A ¥ R 467,704 393,017
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
h#®% BB B A R 2 F

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZEB R
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &
2019 2018
S S R )\
Note US$’000 US$’000
M 7t Ve ForTx
(Note (a))
(Kt (a))
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME fth 2 i W 2
Items that will not be reclassified HARM A& &8
subsequently to profit or loss: RSB ZHAE -
Equity investments at fair value through RE#5 BB A RAHIE B

other comprehensive income Hfth 2w K25 5 &

(non-recycling) (AP ER BB 3,568 (9,790)
Income tax effect Ft 4% Bt 5 48 (1,791) 3,348
Disposal of other financial assets H B Btk 4 il 638 -
Surplus on revaluation of office premises, net WM HEAFAR 15 672 8,238
Income tax effect Pt 44 ot 5 28 36 (21) (1,239)

3,066 557
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HEWMEEEH - HE
to profit or loss: HEZHH :
Exchange differences related to BRLAT Hl 3 TS 7 4 B I

translation of foreign operations Z FH B B e, 25 (14,188) (87,392)
Release of reserves upon step 43 B B WO s — o B )

acquisition of a subsidiary 2 ] Z A5k A A - (394)
Share of other comprehensive income of: R T

Joint ventures ER-giE 22(a) (265) (856)

Associates B %% N ) 23(a) (1,748) (7,314)

(16,201) (95,956)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR B i 5 Bt %% A 4%
THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX 3 b 22 i WK A (13,135) (95,399)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME A% A7 4 i W A A8 R
FOR THE YEAR 454,569 297,618

98
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEtEKER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE
2019 2018
—EuE SEAE
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt i i FLFo
(Note (a))
(Htiik(a))
Profit attributable to: s A B T
Shareholders of the Company AN E] R 345,803 281,659
Non-controlling interest I oz ) 1 M 2R 121,901 111,358
467,704 393,017
Total comprehensive income attributable to: W AR ET
Shareholders of the Company A A E] R 334,188 198,113
Non-controlling interest I 42 ) A 2 120,381 99,505
454,569 297,618
US cents US cents
FE Al FEAl
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 2 ] Ji 3 W Al 2 5 Ji% 162 A
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14
Basic and diluted FE A K 1.365 1.112

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the

financial statements.
Note:

(a) The Group has initially applied I[FRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under
the transition method chosen, comparative information in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income is not restated.
Details of changes in accounting policy are disclosed in note 2 to the

financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 7

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B SRR &

At 31 December 2019 R —ZF—Jueg+_H=+—H

2019 2018
2 R )\
Note US$’000 US$’000
M aE E T a7 FoLFo
(Note (b))
(Kt (b))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I ¥ B &
Property, plant and equipment LE =y 15 1,988,328 1,781,312
Investment properties HEyE 16 11,904 19,047
Land use rights + Bl A BE 17 207,105 174,168
Other right-of-use assets HoAh Al A REE & 18 421,209 -
Non-current biological assets JEH W A 19 66,350 71,460
Intangible assets I G E 20 33,375 26,297
Investments in joint ventures NEBLENRYE 22 16,915 17,114
Investments in associates NS AT HIRE 23 145,547 128,714
Other financial assets Aty 4 b & 2 24 17,206 15,042
Goodwill RS 25 35,030 35,461
Other non-current assets Al Ik i B 69,918 29,494
Deferred tax assets R 9 B IH 36 12,154 11,553
Total non-current assets #8 Ik I Bh & R 3,025,041 2,309,662
CURRENT ASSETS i By &
Inventories TrE 26 753,403 629,057
Current biological assets YR E 19 571,946 484,632
Trade and bills receivables MEWE Gk 22 27 258,011 353,515
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  ¥§ 47} BE 3k ~ $5 4 M 3 fih JE Wit HE 2% 28 295,081 391,538
Pledged deposits O 17 3K 29 17,699 34,835
Time deposits with maturity over three B A WBE=MAH 22 EMEX
months 29 2,293 15,233
Cash and cash equivalents BRekBRELEY 29 422,364 392,890
Total current assets HR A A 2,320,797 2,301,700
CURRENT LIABILITIES i By £ 5
Trade and bills payables WEAT S GRS = 30 446,116 476,807
Other payables and accruals At 8 A R ok B L 4 T 31 559,094 463,896
Lease liabilities & A H 34 36,749 -
Bank borrowings SRAT A 32 1,174,796 842,230
Corporate bond e XL 33 - 145,041
Income tax payables WEASE P 15 21,390 25,324
Total current liabilities B £ 2,238,145 1,953,298
NET CURRENT ASSETS R B 82,652 348,402
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT A8 TR B 0
LIABILITIES 3,107,693 2,658,064
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4 B A8 R 24 7
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEBAARRE
At 31 December 2019 A - —h&E+_H=+—H
2019 2018
SEoAE SRR
Note US$’000 US$’000
M aE F#0Fii FEoLFoo
(Note (b))
(Mt &k (b))
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I Ui B £ 5
Lease liabilities MEARE 34 440,361 -
Bank borrowings AT 3K 32 548,180 824,096
Corporate bond X 33 11,833 -
Other non-current liabilities o Ath I3 B AR 35 57,908 49,748
Deferred tax liabilities AR At B8 0E A AE 36 82,373 81,996
Total non-current liabilities FLE T =R 1,140,655 955,840
NET ASSETS pegr Ly 1,967,038 1,702,224
EQUITY BE 25
Equity attributable to shareholders of the A% 2 W) JB 3 i 1 HE 4
Company
Issued capital OB AT A 37 253,329 253,329
Reserves ] 39 1,216,998 1,017,731
Proposed final dividend B R R R 13 77,947 84,443
1,548,274 1,355,503
Non-controlling interest I e ) 1 M 2 418,764 346,721
TOTAL EQUITY RE o AR 1,967,038 1,702,224

Note:

(b) The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under  (b)
the transition method chosen, comparative information in the
consolidated statement of financial position is not restated. Details of

changes in accounting policy are disclosed in note 2 to the financial

statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the

Company on 30 March 2020.

Adirek Sripratak %56
Director # %

Wit -

HET LTI 3% -

Arunee Watcharananan
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2

3

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S A HE 3L
l|‘l\ﬁ$

=

m

B &

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 - —JLE T+ H=1—H ILEFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AA TR
Other
financial
assets
fair value
Share reserve  Property PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
premium Contributed ~ Capital ~ Merger (non- revaluation reserve fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
account  Surplus  reserve  reserve recycling)  reserve funds  reserve profits ~dividend Total interest equity
SHEE
MR
e i | #k A (RER bIE S BEOERE KR it bt
wEE  BRE il M ERE) EHRG  HEER L1 ME - RHRE b ] L
Note US§'000  US§'000  US§'000  US§000  US§000  US$'000  US$'000  US§'000  US$'000  US§'000  US$000  US'000 US§'000
Wit #xTr #rTr #1fn #rTx #ifr #ifrn ¥rTr #ifr #ifrn #0Tx #ifr Eifr #ufr #rTx
(note 39(f)) (note 39(a)) (note 39(b)) (note 39(c)) (note 39(d)) (note 39(e))
(W3900) (Wi90a)) (ko) (W) () (RiEse)
At 1 January 2019 REB-E-H-H 10740 979,382 12,620 (1,613,900) 1313 6894 166,124 (136331) 1,522,859 84443 1355503 346721 1702024
Tmpact on initial application of BRI
IRRS 16 LRI 4 7 —— - - - - - - - - (8m) - (g (10640) (851
Adjusted balance at REB-RAE-A—H
1 January 2019 E 11 0740 91938 12,620 (1,613,900) 133 6894 166124 (136,331)  1,494986 84443 1307630 336,081 1,663,711
Profit for the year KERH - - - - - - - - 35803 - 345803 121,901 467,104
Other comprehensive Sy 2 g
income for the year:
Exchange differences on translation ~ SbHE B MBI
of foreign operations R EH - - - - - - - (12,668) - - (12668 (1,520 (14,188)
Equity investments at fair value BRBERAREER
through other comprehensive LRI e ks S
income - - - - 3,568 - - - - 3,568 - 3,568
Income tax effct BifiEE 3 - - - - - - - - - -y
Disposal of other financial assets R A REE - - - - (84) - - - m - 638 - 638
Income tax effect By E 36 - - - - 20 - - (20) - - _ _
Surplus on revaluation of office HEMFRRRR
premises, net 15 - - - - - 072 - - - 607 - 072
Income tax effect Ry 36 - - - - - (1) - - - - (21 - (1)
Share of other comprehensive FEff S 2 s
income of:
Joint ventures aEbE 1(a) - - - - (36) - - (229) - - (265) - (265)
Associates BEM 13(a) - - - - - - - (1,748) - - (1,748) - (1,743)
Total comprehensive income LY TR
for the year - - - - 1,677 651 - (14645) 346,305 - B4I88 120381 434,569
Acquisition of a subsidiary il o il T - - - G - - - - - - B - (3,119)
Capital injection by a non- PEetlid 21y
controlling equity holder N2 - - - - - - - - - - - 1,058 1,058
Dividend paid to non-controlling % F el
equity holders | LU - - - - - - - - - - - (3976 (39,756)
2018 final dividend declared FER-E-NEAGRE - - - - - - - - - (84443) (8444 - (84,443)
2019 interim dividend SEOLERARE D - () - - - - - - - - (598 - W)
2019 final dividend proposed REZE-NEAMRE 1 - (117 - - - - - - - 17941 - - -
Transfer of retained earnings of C.P. ~ CPVCAAEHE
Vietnam Corporation (‘CPVC')to BB EHA
share capital - - 319554 - - - - - (319,554) - - - -
Chia Tai Investment Co., Ltd. EABERDARAT
(“CTI") share capital (EXRE)
reorganisation BAEA - - 206559 387 (11,205) - (13,0%3) 31 (19,189) - - - -
Transfer in/(out) #A/ () - - - - - - 37950 - (37950 - - - -
At 31 December 2019 REB-AEFZA
=i 10740 875453%  608,733* (1,613,182)*  (2215)%  69,575*  I3LO41* (150945)% 12877198* 70047 1548274 418764 1967038
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A B 2o A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B £ - F —Jug+_H =+ —H IL4E &

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AATRAHEN
Available- Other
for-sale financial
investment  assets fair
Share revaluation  value reserve Property PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium  Contributed Capital Merger reserve (non- revaluation reserve  fluctuation Retained final controlling Total
capital account Surplus reserve reserve  (recycling)  recycling) reserve funds reserve profits dividend Total interest equity
WikhEZE EEEREE
BEf M
L1} L1}
C#f Tt e Yk At (THR (RUHERE i R ShEE AR ik Feteiite

[ie3 R il i B ERE) fE)  EREE R i AR KRS ] L4 A
Note US§000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 Us§'000 US§000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§000
it FiTr Fifr #FiTr Fafik #ifx Fafx Eifa Eafxk Eifx Enfx Eifx Eifx Eifik #Eifax Ak
(note 39(a)) ~ (note 39(b)) ~ (note 39(b))  (note 39(c))  (note 39(d))  (note 39(e))
(Was90)  (RE90) (o) (Kdc)  (Wadod)  (Kasde)

At 1 January 2018 REF-NE-A-R 153309 10740 1,119,038 1260 (1612918) 101 - 61915 160,823 (3,151 1238351 0881 137710 177,654 1515364
Impact on initial BRI

application of IFRS 15 BSORZBE 1 - - - - - - - - - - (1,026) - (2,026) (#1) (2,649)
Impact on initial HRRH AR R

application of IFRS 9 BHSIKZE 11 - - - - - (1401) 40 - - - - - - - -
Adjusted balance at KB

1 January 2018 i} 1] 153309 10740 1,119,038 12620 (1,612,918) - 140 61925 160,823 (33,151) 1,136,125 0881 1235484 mnl 1312716
Profit for the year KRR - - - - - - - - - - 181,659 - 181,659 111,358 393,017

Other comprehensive income ~ 4E R JEfB 2 i :

for the year:

Exchange differences on SHEH RS

translation of foreign £

operations - - - - - - - - - (15,539) - - (15,539) (11,853) (87,392)
Equity investments at fair value B # FHA R M

through other comprehensive ERARA RS

income it - - - - - - (9,790) - - - - - (9,790) - (9,790)
Income tax effect it e 36 - - - - - - 3348 - - - - - 3348 - 3348
Release of reserves upon step BB 2 Bt R

acquisition - - - - (982) - - - (847) 588 841 - (394) - (394)
Surplus on revaluation of HERTEHTAL

office premises, net 15 = - . = - - - 8,238 - . = - 8,138 = 8,238
Income tax effect fRRE R 36 - - - - - - - (1,239) - - - - (1239) - (1239)
Share of other comprehensive  HEf} 3 2 iM% :

income of:

Joint ventures AELE ) - - - - - - 59 - - (15) - - (856) - (856)

Associates B Bfa) - - - - - - - - - (1314) - - (1314) - (1314)

Total comprehensive income 4N 2l & M H
for the year - - - - (982) - (6,383) 6999 (847) (83,180) 181,506 - 198,113 99,505 197,618

Capital injection by a non- FE R R

controlling equity holder ALK - - - - - - - - - - - - - 2951 2951
Disposal of other financial assets i & b4 % & - - - - - - (13,83) - - - 13,83 - - - -
Income tax effect it % - - - - - - 3459 - - - (3.4%9) - - - -
Dividend paid to non- BLiniE 101

controlling equity holders ERRERE - - - - - - - - - - - - - (32,968) (32968)
2017 final dividend declared HR-Z-tEKNRA - - - - - - - - - - - (22,881) (22,881) - (22,881)
2018 interim dividend ZE-NEPHRE 5] - - (55,213) - - - - - - - - - (55,213) - (55,213)
2018 final dividend proposed BECE-\EXNRE B - - (84,443) - - - - - - - - 84443 - - -
Transfer in/(out) HA/ () - - - - - - - - 6,148 - (6,148) - - - -
At 31 December 2018 REB-NEFZR

B 153309 10,740 979380 12,620%  (1,613900)* - 1313 08924 166,14 (136,331 1510,859% 84443 135,503 346,721 1,700,024

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * GE R IR AL A M BSR LR N Z 5 B R 1208
US$1,216,998,000 (2018: US$1,017,731,000) in the consolidated 1,699.88 370 (ZF—/)\4E | 10f81,773.1#350) -

statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SEHRETMER

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
h#®% BB B A R 2 F

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &

2019 2018
R R N\E
Note US$’000 US$’000
Wit L F FL T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REGHHZBERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax W A il ¥4 ) 589,240 532,378
Adjustments for: R
Bank and other interest income SRAT B Al A B A 7 (11,762) (15,560)
Net change in fair value of investment properties BeE W A ) 3 7 2,615 1,918
Net change in fair value of derivative fitem T LA ARME
financial instruments ) FH 7 (2,009) (11,157)
Short-term lease payments [SERg R FiiN=% giil 9 12,951 -
Finance costs B A 8 142,399 80,238
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W W R e 9 128,543 122,829
Amortisation of land use rights - i RE 2 8 B 9 4,688 4,396
Depreciation of other right-of-use assets Fof £ I RE S A 2 P ES 9 44,857 -
Depreciation of biological assets stated at e A B R K&
cost less accumulated depreciation and WAL R EIIRZ
impairment A YT 9 43,557 39,018
Amortisation of intangible assets TG 9 2,462 2,645
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - B R
equipment, net 5 5 A 9 1,302 736
Impairment of property, plant and equipment W3~ B T A WA 9 15,567 -
Impairment of trade receivables, net JRE W B2 5 MR kTR A 3 9 2,569 3,436
Impairment of prepayments, deposits BT HRSK ~ E R
and other receivables A 8 5 kel A 9 2,589 -
Net change in fair value of biological assets A G A B 2 B R 6 (105,554) (95,870)
Gain on step acquisition of a subsidiary 43 B B — KB A Rl Z W g 7 - (2,095)
Gain on dilution of interest in an associate W — X8 A F R Z WA - (80)
Gain on relocation of factories TR B W 28 7 - (20,473)
Share of profits and losses of: JREAY i ) % s 1
Joint ventures CREE 22(a) (2,597) (3,226)
Associates Wi 2 A vl 23(a) (26,448) (19,069)
844,969 620,064
Increase in inventories FEHm (123,852) (35,686)
Increase in biological assets A ) B (19,808) (96,385)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables W& B 5 M sk R =484 (3 1m) 87,737 (85,714)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, AR B R
deposits and other receivables 3 b RE R B A (B0 82,702 (93,972)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FEA & 5 ik () Hi (26,877) 40,273
Increase in other payables and accruals Al B Ao W ok B TR e B 36,572 90,980
Cash generated from operations REEEZBE 881,443 439,560
Short-term lease payments Bt E A EE N 9 (12,951) -
Interest elements of lease rental paid A E A 2R B 8 (46,335) -
Interest paid TR B (103,625) (89,203)
Income tax paid ERERIREEA (121,068) (107,168)
Net cash flows generated REFHMHEZ
from operating activities &R EFH 597,464 243,189
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
b % BB B & R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GZEBRERER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E _-F—J4E+ZH =+ —H 1L
2019 2018
R ZE—)\ 4
Note US$’000 US$’000
Wik FIL T E e n
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BEWHZBERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment Jils B W R (346,746) (210,011)
Decrease in other non-current liabilities Fo Al I 3 By A5 A (5,244) (3,138)
Increase in land use rights - b R 3 17 (28,442) (30,534)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets HAbIERBE & ) /WA (37,634) 14,931
Step acquisition of a subsidiary 43 P Be Wi i — 2% B A ] 40 - (4,348)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — 5% B JE 2 ) 44(a)(xii) (9,671) -
Dividend received from joint ventures KA BEEERE 2,531 2,714
Dividend received from associates W B 8 2 ) S 6,293 9,226
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEwE - BEX
plant and equipment A A AR OH 8,746 6,035
Proceeds from disposal of land use rights 85 - A R P 45 k0 249 -
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets A A 4 T 2 B A OR 24 1,720 15,841
Receipt from PRC government on e 7 5t 4 1 € o R TR R A5 K
factories relocation 47,311 19,427
Interest received G &5 11,762 15,560
Net cash flows used in investing activities REWEHAZHSRERH (349,125) (164,297)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEGHZHEWE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from new bank borrowings Wi SR AT A K 29(c) 1,655,480 1,655,223
Repayment of bank borrowings 1 3 SRAT A 3K 29(c) (1,586,142) (1,491,743)
Redemption of corporate bond [ EENE g 29(c) (130,545) -
Capital injection from a non-controlling Fe 4 Tl R 25 B RTE AR
equity holder 2,058 2,952
Capital element of lease rental paid CAT B 4 2 AR &0 (34,096) -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits IR () 16,879 (11,378)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with maturity 23] H## =10 H Z 5P/
over three months (34 m) 12,927 (2,851)
Dividend paid to shareholders of the Company AR ETARA T BRE (110,425) (78,094)
Dividend paid to non-controlling equity holders B T Jk 152 il 1 4 25 1% 3K Jit B (39,756) (32,968)
Net cash flows (used in)/from MEGEHR ), B2
financing activities B4 &3 (213,620) 41,141
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH B4 e B 4 5 TE 0 0 3
EQUIVALENTS 34,719 120,033
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4FHZHE KRR EFEHD 392,890 286,807
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net A E 35 B 2 3% B (5,245) (13,950)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBERHEEED
AT END OF YEAR 29 422,364 392,890
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Notes to Financial Statements

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R

B % R & MY &E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

C. P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company” or “CPP”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
ordinary shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are located at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and 21st Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong,

respectively.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”), joint ventures and associates of the Group were

involved in the following activities:

. (i) manufacture and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding,
farming, and sale of livestock, and (iii) manufacture
and sale of food products in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”)

° (i) manufacture and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals,
and (iii) manufacture and sale of food products in the

Socialist Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”)
o investment and property holding

At 31 December 2019, the directors consider the immediate
holding company of the Company to be Charoen Pokphand
Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), which is incorporated
in the Kingdom of Thailand and shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and remains to be as such as
at the date of approval of these financial statements. CPF is
a significantly owned company of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), which is incorporated in the
Kingdom of Thailand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. These financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for office premises, investment properties,
certain biological assets, other financial assets and derivative
financial instruments, which have been measured at fair value
or at fair value less costs of disposal, where appropriate. These
financial statements are presented in United States dollars
(“US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“US$’000”) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full, except for
the unrealised loss which are eliminated only to the extent

that there is no evidence of impairment.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit

balance.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The IASB has issued a number of new standards, amendments
to IFRSs and interpretations that are first effective for
the current year. Of these, the following new standards,

amendments and interpretations may be relevant to the

Group:
[FRS 16 Leases
Amendments to [AS 28 Amendments to [AS 28 Long-term

Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures
Annual Improvements to  Amendments to [FRS 3 Business Combinations,
IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle ~ IFRS 11 Joint arrangements,
IAS 12 Income Taxes and
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs
[FRS Interpretations Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Committee -

Interpretation 23

Except for IFRS 16 Leases, none of the amendments and
interpretations have had a significant financial effect on
these financial statements. The Group has not applied any
new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the

current year.

A

2.1

2.2
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases and introduces a single, on-
balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee
recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. The Group had non-
cancellable operating leases commitments of US$619,613,000
as at 31 December 2018 and some of these amounts have been
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use
assets upon the adoption of IFRS 16.

Previously under IAS17, the Group recognised operating lease
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, and
recognised assets and liabilities only to the extent that there
was a timing difference between actual lease payments and the

expense recognised.

Under [FRS16, the Group has recognised new assets and
liabilities for its operating leases of assets. The nature of
expenses related to those leases are now changed because the
Group has recognised a depreciation charge for right-of-use

assets and interest expenses on lease liabilities.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019,
using the modified retrospective approach and does not restate
comparative information. Right-of-use assets are measured on
transition as if the new rules had always been applied. Lease
liabilities are measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the related companies’
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
The cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 is recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as at
1 January 2019, resulting in a decrease of US$38,513,000 in
both net assets and total equity (US$27,873,000 is included in
retained profits attributable to shareholders of the Company)
as at 1 January 2019.
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.2
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and
leases of low-value items. The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less or assets
with value of less than US$5,000. The Group continues to
recognise the lease payments associated with these leases as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Upon the adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables decreased and
land use rights (previous name: land lease prepayments)
increased, both by US$4,231,000, on 1 January 2019 as a
result of the reclassification of current portion of land use
rights from current assets to non-current assets. The item
name of “land lease prepayments” was renamed as “land use
rights” on the consolidated statement of financial position and
related disclosure notes, which consists of prepaid land costs
with ownership, net of accumulated amortisation, for clearer

presentation.

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as disclosed in note 42 as at 31 December 2018
to the opening balance for lease liabilities recognised as at 1

January 2019.

EBERBEER (H)

S 55 0 R B A AR AE (A 4 AL B R R T R
B o A 45 B O 00 45 A R R R BT RH 5 sl A
A L2417 0 40 L s A I 5,000 38
JC K P RE A AR A o AR AR A A
FHE I P9 DL A o T R B S R R B AR
EAREER -

R JUAR — A H R A B B S o o
HISE165%% » ol FIRE (RIS : FEA 1Al
T2 ) B3 B 4 48 3R ) e K 3 JLE
TEE A > PSR AR AR - #4 J S0 1t HE e
Wik i A DA S A s B R RE SR I > 35975423198
SRTC o fof i B IR DL A S A R 99 8 A i o
HHAMIEMN LA E R CRERR
Mo FRE ] > LU JEAS A BE Z T AT
oA ol R EH R > DA R M 25

DUT#HERB ZF - \F+HA=+—HR
BT Wi k422 B8 A AR I B R — LA
— H — B R AL A RO SRR

US$’000
FiFr
Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 REZB-N\EFZA=ZT—H BB GRS 619,613
Add: lease payments for extended lease periods e A E R ML
which was reasonably certain 54,291
Less: short-term lease and leases of low-value assets o 00 AV, O DA A £ £ L O
exempted from capitalisation (3,359)
Less: total future interest expenses W HAR A BB S A (282,135)
Total lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 BB IR SR 388,410

The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applied to lease liabilities recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019 was

10.6%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.2
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The following table summarises the estimated impact of the
adoption of IFRS 16 on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019, by comparing the
amounts reported under IAS 17. The tables show only those
line items impacted by the adoption of IFRS 16.

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
(Extract)

Year ended 31 December 2019

EBERKEER (H)

VLR #8282 M A5 7 R A 8 It S 2 o MR B 5 16
WHREREZFETF A= HIRE
JEE H i i BV 5 S A S B O Ll AR
45 1 B R SR 17RO R ) o b
i 2 188 S 7 TR R A 1o e S o U 5 1 09k
% S B IEHH -

HE R EH K% ()

BEZ U+ A=+ —HILEE

Hypothetical

amounts

without

adoption of

As reported  Adjustments IFRS 16
k& A RA

I e o

EHH165EZ

[ Eik fiiat &%
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
#iF i T #i Fr

Cost of sales 98 A (5,734,782) (34,222)  (5,769,004)
Gross profit EF 1,226,054 (34,222) 1,191,832
Selling and distribution costs B R B AR (299,529) (490) (300,019)
General and administrative expenses T REME R (365,568) (875) (366,443)
Finance costs I B A (142,399) 46,335 (96,064)
Share of profit and loss of associate Al 6 A B i 8
T A 26,448 31 26,479
Profit before tax I B i i 589,240 10,779 600,019
Income tax P 3B (121,536) (1,882) (123,418)
Profit for the year A g i 467,704 8,897 476,601
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Ho Al 2 1 Wi 2
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HETREEHIEE
to profit or loss: BEZHH :
Exchange differences related to translation SO SE T RS 2
of foreign operations D B 5% 4 (14,188) 60 (14,128)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR Wi 5 B4R 01 4 P A 2 i
THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX (13,135) 60 (13,075)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  A4E 2 W 5 44 454,569 8,957 463,526
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 B BERBEZEXR (&)

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income BEE2E W (F4E) (&)
(Extract) (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_ZEZ-MWETHAH=Z+T—HILEE

Hypothetical

amounts

without

adoption of

As reported  Adjustments IFRS 16
kA R A

I e ot

R 165EZ

LIS Bk it &4
US$°000 US$’000 US$°000
#iF #i T #iFi

Profit attributable to: i F BB Y
Shareholders of the Company A 345,803 6,163 351,966
Non-controlling interest I 5 il e e 25 121,901 2,734 124,635
467,704 8,897 476,601
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2HNHEFEET
Shareholders of the Company AT R 334,188 6,204 340,392
Non-controlling interest I ¢ i ek e 25 120,381 2,753 123,134
454,569 8,957 463,526
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- - hFEF§

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 B BEREEZER(EH)
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
Consolidated statement of financial position (Extract) HEE BB E ()
At 31 December 2019 R_E—L#EL+_H=1+—H
Hypothetical
amounts
without
adoption of
As reported  Adjustments IFRS 16
ESEE T
I 5 e
EHH 165
2 # o st &%
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FI T # T E ki
Non-current assets FR B G E
Land use rights A 207,105 (4,938) 202,167
Other right-of-use assets O 057 421,209 (421,209) -
Investment in associates T T 2 W 4 145,547 1,625 147,172
Deferred tax assets IR AL BLIA 12,154 (415) 11,739
Current assets WHEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR HRER ~ $ 4 B fl R i iR 3k 295,081 4,938 300,019
Current liabilities WH A
Lease liabilities HEAHE 36,749 (36,749) -
Non-current liabilities FR B A K
Lease liabilities A H 440,361 (440,361) -
Deferred tax liabilities EAEREA R 82,373 9,641 92,014
Net assets B 1,967,038 47,470 2,014,508
Equity 125
Reserves M 1,216,998 34,077 1,251,075
Non-controlling interest I 1 i ok B 25 418,764 13,393 432,157
Total equity 4 4070 1,967,038 47,470 2,014,508
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 B BERBEZEXR(E)
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
Consolidated statement of cash flow (Extract) BB RE R (47
Year ended 31 December 2019 BREZZ-NWETA=Z+T—HILHE
Hypothetical
amounts
without
adoption of
As reported  Adjustments IFRS 16
kAR
IR e S 38
ERH165Z
2% ik fliat &%
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FwFi #iFr FwFr
Cash flows from operating activities RERHZHERE
Cash generated from operations mEELEZH4E 881,443 (93,382) 788,061
Short-term lease payments O EHEEN (12,951) 12,951 -
Interest element of lease rental paid O B4 2 B H (46,335) 46,335 -
Net cash flows generated from operating activities BERHI/BZASREFH 597,464 (34,096) 563,368
Cash flows from financing activities BMEFRHZBANE
Capital element of lease rental paid CRHEREZ AL (34,096) 34,096 -
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEGEHZH SRR FH (213,620) 34,096 (179,524)
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB issued a number of new standards, amendments and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2019 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to [FRS 3 Definition of a Business!

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material!

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint

Venture?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and amendments to IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that the impact
of adopting the amendment and new standards will have
on the consolidated financial statements are unlikely to be

significant.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement in the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current

ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances, in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(i) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;
(ii)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(iii)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
Joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the

equity method, as for associates (note 2.4).
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24 TEETBRME (&)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and

operating policies decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method and are recognised initially at cost. The cost of the

investments includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of equity-accounted investees, after adjustments to align the
accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date
that significant influence commences until the date that

significant influence ceases.
When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount of the
investment including any long-term interest that forms part
thereof, is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an
obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee.
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(i) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(a) has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group; or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(ii)

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

(h)

the entity and the Group are members of the

same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow

subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of

the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (i);

a person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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BEAL ()

(ii)  WAHEA

(a)

(b)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over
(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and

liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination and is tested annually for impairment.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the gain

or loss on disposal.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations of entities under common control are
accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method. Under
the pooling-of-interests method, the assets and liabilities
of the acquiree are stated at their historical carrying values
at the date of acquisition and the difference between the
consideration transferred for a business combination under
common control and the total of (i) the acquisition date
historical net asset values of the acquiree attributable to the
Group and (ii) the pre-acquisition reserves of the acquiree
combined by the Group is accounted for as a contribution
from or a distribution to, as appropriate, holding companies in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Accordingly,
there is no goodwill or a gain on bargain purchase as a result
of a business combination under common control. The results
of the acquiree under a business combination under common
control are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be

consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Office premises

Office premises are stated at their open market values on
the basis of annual professional valuations performed at each
financial year end. Changes arising on the revaluation of
office premises are dealt with as movements in the property
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient
to cover a deficit, on an individual premise basis, the excess
of the deficit is charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of

the deficit previously charged.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Office premises (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the valuation of the office premises over their estimated useful

lives of 30 years to 50 years.

On disposal of an office premise, the relevant portion of the
property revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.
Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. The cost of other
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after other property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of other property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognised such parts as individual assets with specific

useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
other property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for

this purpose are as follows:
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

2% to 4.5%
6% to 15%
10% to 33.33%
9% to 33.33%

Industrial buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles and transport facilities

Where parts of other property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.

Other property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the silos, factories
and warehouses under construction. Construction in
progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset (2018: leasehold property under an operating lease)
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of the reporting period. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair values of investment properties are included

in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the

period of the retirement or disposal.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner occupied
property becomes an investment property, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
at the date of change in use is accounted for as follows:

(i) any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the
property is recognised in profit or loss in the period the
change in use took place.

(ii)  any resulting increase in the carrying amount is
credited to profit or loss, to the extent the increase
reverses a previous impairment loss for that property,
or restores the carrying amount of the property to an
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the property in prior years; and any remaining
part of the increase in the carrying amount is credited
directly to equity in the property revaluation reserve.
On subsequent disposal of the property, the relevant
portion of the property revaluation reserve realised
is transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent customer relationship of the Group
and are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives, from
the date they are available for use. The estimated useful lives
used for this purpose are 14-22 years. Both the period and

method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leases (policies under IFRS 16 applicable from 1
January 2019)

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to

obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.
As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease

component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the

lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (policies under IFRS 16 applicable from 1
January 2019) (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-

use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets other than land use
rights and lease liabilities separately in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (policies under IFRS 16 applicable from 1
January 2019) (continued)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not

the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. The
rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease

term.

Leases (policies under IAS 17 applicable before 1
January 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased
by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases, net of any incentives received from the
lessor, are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.

Land use rights represent costs of land use rights paid to
governmental authorities in mainland China and Vietnam.
Land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Biological assets

Biological assets include swine, poultry and aquatic livestock
and are measured at their fair value less costs of disposal,
except where the fair value cannot be measured reliably or
when the costs are not materially different from the fair value
due to short production cycle, in those cases they are stated
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and where

appropriate, less any accumulated depreciation.

Gains or losses arising from initial recognition of biological
assets at fair value less costs of disposal and from a change in
fair value less costs of disposal of biological assets are included

in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

The cost of biological assets comprises its purchase price and

any costs attributable in raising the biological assets.

For biological assets stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, the
depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write
off the cost of these biological assets over their estimated
productive period of 12 months to 36 months. The expected
productive period of these biological assets is reviewed
regularly, and adjusted when appropriate. The carrying values
of these biological assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in the circumstances indicate that the

carrying values may not be fully recoverable.
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets, office premises, investment properties,
biological assets stated at fair value less costs of disposal
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash

generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting

policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through

other comprehensive income.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of
IFRS 15 of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of IFRS 15 are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on

their classification as follows:

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised, modified or impaired.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subse

(ii)

quent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-

instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are

not subject to impairment assessment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

(i) General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (12-month
ECLs). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,

irrespective of the timing of the default (lifetime

ECLs).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Impairment (continued)

(ii)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors

specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

A
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

derecognised when:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
(ii)  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred

control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the assets. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the

rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum

amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39, other than
derivatives, are classified as loans and borrowings. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
(i) Financial liabilities at amortised costs (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
“Finance costs” in profit or loss.

(ii) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at
the higher of: (i) the ECLs allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment
of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in profit or loss.
Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken

directly to profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the weighted
average basis, and net realisable value after making due
allowance for any obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred

to completion and disposal.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of

the consolidated statement of cash flows.
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of

time is included in “Finance costs” in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

(i) when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

(ii)  in respect of taxable temporary differences associated

with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused

tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

(i) when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

(ii)  in respect of deductible temporary differences

associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates

and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets

are expected to be settled or recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the period that the costs, which it is

intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual

instalments.
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group

expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

For a contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15. Besides, the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense is
recognised when incurred if the amortisation period of the
asset that the Group otherwise would have recognised is one
year or less, using the practical expedient in paragraph 94 of
IFRS 15.

Sale of agri-food products

Revenue from the sale of agri-food products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, i.e., when the products are collected by the
customers from the Group’s premises or when the products are
delivered to the location designated by the customers. The
Group’s sales contracts do not permit sales returns except for

where the products are damaged or defective.

Some contracts for the sale of agri-food products provide
customers with volume rebates. The volume rebates give rise to

variable consideration.
(i) Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to
certain customers once the quantity of products
purchased during a period exceeds the threshold
specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against
amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected future rebates,

the most likely amount method is used.
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably.
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the

related goods or services to the customer).
Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
(including directors) is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the

options will vest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share, if any. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, and up
to the reporting date, the Company had no share options

outstanding.
Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC government,
subsidiaries of the Group in mainland China are required to
make specific contributions to the state-controlled retirement
plan at rates not more than 16% (before 1 May 2019: 20%)
(the percentage to be determined by each of the government
of the provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities)
of the total salaries of the employees in mainland China.
Certain provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities are
overburdened by the pension insurance due to higher number
of retired people, it is required to make specific contributions
at rates higher than 16% (before 1 May 2019: 20%) (the
percentage to be determined by each of the government of
the provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities) of the
total salaries of the employees upon approval of the ministry
of labour and the ministry of finance. The PRC government is
responsible for the pension liability to the retired employees.
The employees of the subsidiaries are entitled to a monthly
pension at their retirement dates. The subsidiaries have no
further obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the

annual contributions.
Severance allowance

The severance pay to employees in Vietnam is accrued at the
end of each reporting period for Vietnamese employees who
have more than 12 months in service up to 31 December
2008 at the rate of one-half of the average monthly salary for
each year of service up to 31 December 2008 in accordance
with the Labour Code, the Law on Social Insurance and
related implementing guidance in Vietnam. Commencing
from 1 January 2009, the average monthly salary used in this
calculation is revised at the end of each reporting period
using the average monthly salary of the 6-month period up
to the reporting date. Any changes to the accrued amount is

recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Severance allowance (continued)

Pursuant to Law on Social Insurance effective from 1 January
2009, a subsidiary of the Group in Vietnam and its employees
are required to contribute to an unemployment insurance
fund managed by the Vietnam Social Insurance Agency. The
contribution to be paid by each party is calculated at 1%
of the lower of an employee’s basic salary and 20 times the
general minimum salary level as specified by the Vietnam
government from time to time. With the implementation of
the unemployment insurance scheme, the Group is no longer
required to provide severance allowance for the service period
after 1 January 2009.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. The
capitalisation rate for the year is based on the actual cost of
the related borrowings. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits or contributed surplus
within the equity section of the consolidated statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and

declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they

are proposed and declared.
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollar, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period and

differences are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair

value was determined.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
-

g

o R B 2 R e S A T RO T R R A
R 3 I T %7 B B 5 R O A A R Ay
VA B 0 R 4 T A S 8 5 R 2 B
o 2 e A JUD P ST S A R o R
B T R O B A AR o I Je S e R
i

FH S 2 ] AR 4% T 2 PR ) DA IR v
B W T B S IR IR R R BUR o LA o
J91 M S8 St e B R AR S B R B R

HhEE

UL B IRE K ITT RS > BIAA W 2 hEe
BB BB W o AR P g T A1 3 4 R B AT IR
SE L oy 8 B A A ) 2 ) B AR
RO H R DAL T B B R o AR R T N A [
31 2 7 Z S 32 B e S DA Sh B B W 22 5
HZ SR ABR o DIAMI G552 15 W 8 A I
FAR R R Z BE R R T R W -
Fi A M 5 2% B 3 A AR 28

DAAN I S A T ik 2 £ W I AR 4
R oy HZ MERHI o o fufi vt 52 A
BRI H W UE A R 2 R -

145



146

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R MY 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates are currencies other than the
United States dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their profit or
loss are translated into United States dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of the exchange
fluctuation reserve relating to that particular foreign operation

is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the

closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
United States dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries, which arise throughout the year are translated
into United States dollars at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic, operating and/or other characteristics.
Operating segments which are not individually material may

be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and other financial assets at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market

participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole:

Level 1:  Based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:  Based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3:  Based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Notes 15(e), 16(b), 19(e) and 46 contain information about
the assumptions relating to valuation of office premises,
investment properties, biological assets and financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainties are

as follows:
(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment
is recognised for the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount when events or
changes in circumstance indicate the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount of
the assets, or, where appropriate, the cash generating
unit to which they belong, is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. The recoverable
amounts are determined based on fair value less costs
of disposal which are based on the best information
available to reflect the amount obtainable at the
reporting date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable and willing
parties, after deducting the costs of disposal. For the
estimation of value in use, the Group’s management
estimates future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and chooses a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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4

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4

For management purposes, the Group is organised into the
following three reportable operating segments based on their

products and services:

° the China agri-food segment is engaged in (i)
manufacture and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding,
farming and sale of livestock, and (iii) manufacture and

sale of food products in the PRC;

o the Vietnam agri-food segment is engaged in (i)
manufacture and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals, and
(iii) manufacture and sale of food products in Vietnam;

and

o the investment and property holding segment is
engaged in leasing properties owned by the Group and

investments in group companies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment results,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that bank interest income and finance
costs on bank borrowings and corporate bond are excluded

from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude pledged deposits, time deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets and other unallocated

corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank borrowings, corporate bond,
income tax payables and deferred tax liabilities as these

liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at a
point in time when our customer obtains control of promised
goods, i.e. when the products are collected by the customers
from our premises or when the products are delivered to
the location designated by the customers. Disaggregation of
revenue from major product lines is disclosed in note 4(a)
and 5. Disaggregation of revenue by geographical location of

customers is disclosed in note 4(b)(i).

The remaining performance obligation is part of a contract
that has an original expected duration of one year or less,
therefore such information is not disclosed as a practical
expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS 15.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

A

B 75 ] & Mt 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFHER (K)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (a) TUEHRKEDIE
The following tables present revenue, profit or loss and VP MERAREE S 2HMRESH
certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information NERE R -NER T )N\ETZ
for the Group’s reportable operating segments for the AH=+—HIEFEERZWKA ~ B &
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. HTEE AEKFHXER -
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-NWF+A=Z+—HILFE
Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
w3 4K MR RERME
BEH RMEH wREH ok
US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$°000
#i T #iF #i T #iFi
Segment revenue Vg LN
Sales to external customers HETIREF 4,179,308 2,781,298 230 6,960,836
Intersegment sales Vg liiPa - 1,029 - 1,029
4,179,308 2,782,327 230 6,961,865
Reconciliation: WA
Elimination of intersegment sales S 2 8 1K g (1,029)
Consolidated revenue EAEBA 6,960,836
Segment results NEEH
The Group A4MH 231,579 429,558 (9,070) 652,067
Share of profits and losses of: JE Al i A B s R -
Joint ventures AELE 2,634 (37) - 2,597
Associates e ATl 26,448 - - 26,448
260,661 429,521 (9,070) 681,112
Reconciliation: WHEEH
Bank interest income RATFI BB 4,211
Finance costs on bank borrowings RATIE A R A
and corporate bond Z M AR (96,064)
Elimination of intersegment results i P S i (19)
Profit before tax o A i 5 ) 589,240
Other segment information HAb B E B
Depreciation and amortisation YT 3 95,786 127,276 1,045 224,107
Capital expenditure* A A 203,296 181,548 159 385,003
Additions of other non-current assets** 7 38 i I 375 Y 9 77,153 163,061 - 240,214
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4 REIEER(E)

(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWERKLEDIE(E)
Year ended 31 December 2019 (continued) BE_E - hWFE+_HA=Z+—HIL%¥
B (4)

* Including additions to property, plant and equipment * BIEW 3 - W5 B st M -l
and land use rights, but excluding assets from BEZ 088 > (H S £ 555 05 i B Jegg 2 7
acquisition of subsidiaries. PG 2 B o

ok Including (i) non-current assets from acquisition of ok ALFE (i) Wi OB G 2 ) B A% 2 FE I B
subsidiaries, and (ii) additions to other right-of-use A s ReGi)H A il I REE & - Jk
assets, non-current biological assets and other non- WA R AL IR IR A
current assets. WY o

At 31 December 2019 R _E—NLET+T_H=1+—H

Investment

and

China Vietnam property

agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total

w4 WHEEN  REERDE
GTES BmEH e ok
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Eye o Ee o # T Ee o

Segment assets NEERE 2,789,062 2,035,781 436,643 5,261,486

Reconciliation: WEEE -

Elimination of intersegment receivables 3% ] 2 ME Witk #6 8 (370,158)
Unallocated assets R ELE 454,510

Total assets g 5,345,838

Segment liabilities ARAMR 1,224,729 681,527 4,130 1,910,386

Reconciliation: WEEE

Elimination of intersegment payables Vi P A €t (370,158)
Unallocated liabilities RABLEE 1,838,572

Total liabilities AEE 3,378,800

Other segment information Hofl 7 S R

[nvestments in joint ventures NAEBLENRYE 16,713 202 - 16,915

[nvestments in associates W E A R E 145,547 - - 145,547
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% BH B &R

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(a)

Reportable operating segments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018

N

4

A

RETEEN R

(a) HERLLSE(E)

BEZF-NEFZA=ZF—HILE

i3
Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
R MR BRERME
7 mEH B VeI A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FLF FFi FFi FILFI
Segment revenue BB
Sales to external customers HETIRES 4,149,381 2,559,882 156 6,709,420
Segment results g B
The Group KEH 194,011 399,459 (8,865) 584,605
Share of profits and losses of: WAl i ) I s 4R,
Joint ventures FELE 3,128 (2) - 3,226
Associates -/l 19,069 - - 19,069
216,308 399,457 (8,865) 606,900
Reconciliation: WEEE
Bank interest income SATR B A 5,716
Finance costs I R A (80,238)
Profit before tax [l 532,378
Other segment information HAb G B
Depreciation and amortisation HEYS i 87,711 80,235 942 168,888
Capital expenditure* AR B % 162,050 90,281 121 152,452
Additions of other non-current assers** 7 33 -l 3 i Bh 9 ¢+ 12,485 71,030 - 83,515
* Including additions to property, plant and equipment * BIEWE ~ W BB B s 8 I RE 2
and land use rights, but excluding assets from step B> AH S A5 4 B B WO — KB A | Bt
acquisition of a subsidiary. BZEE -
kok

ok Including (i) non-current assets from step acquisition

of a subsidiary, and (ii) additions to non-current

biological assets and other non-current assets.
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B 7% 8R & M =
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E _-F—J4E+ZH =+ —H 1L
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (&)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWERKLEDIE(E)
At 31 December 2018 Ho_FE—-NE+_H=+—H
[nvestment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
R R MR BRERME
B mEH BinEH VeI EK
US$’000 US$000 US$'000 US$°000

FL T I T FIL T FKIL T

Segment assets NHEE 2,121,918 1,349,727 517,011 4,588,656
Reconciliation: T
Elimination of intersegment receivables 4348 [ 2 HE Wk #K 85 (450,457)
Unallocated assets R EG 473,163
Total assets Mg 4,611,362
Segment liabilities AHAR 1,214,860 222,076 3972 1,440,908
Reconciliation: PHEEE
Elimination of intersegment payables AT 22 M) R B (450,457)
Unallocated liabilities FAEH 1,918,687
Total liabilities A 2,909,138
Other segment information Hfs BE B
Investments in joint ventures NEBLENRE 16,875 239 - 17,114
[nvestments in associates TS ) IR E 128,714 - - 128,714
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B 35 R MY A
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4
(continued)
(b) Geographical information

(i)

(ii)

Revenue from external customers

RETEEN R

(b) HEER

(i) AREFZKA

2019 2018
ZE A RN\
US$’000 US$°000
Y n FoLF o
Mainland China o ] ke 4,177,539 4,149,122
Vietnam fiAE 2,720,978 2,486,831
Elsewhere H At b 7 62,319 73,467
6,960,836 6,709,420
The revenue information shown above is based LBV E R T 3% % F R A
on the location of the customers. Ay HH o
Non-current assets (i)  HREEE
2019 2018
2L —F— )\
US$’000 US$°000
i i FEoTC
Mainland China b [5] B 1,909,582 1,723,460
Vietnam L] 1,026,309 499,374
Elsewhere At b Jy 59,790 60,233
2,995,681 2,283,067
The non-current assets information shown LA Z GBI EEER IHE
above is based on the location of assets and B AE M 43 0 > WA B 35 Ho Al
excludes other financial assets and deferred tax LR E R IEERIE G E o

assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (&)
(continued)
(c) Information about major customers (c) EHEXEEFHNESR
The Group had the following customer (including AREEBED, T &P (B3E 3 A% R
sales to entities which are known to the Group to be BN 3% % P L ) 0y B R g
under common control with this customer) with whom ) Z A 5 FF R A A 4 [ R AR Y A
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue BI10% :
during the year:
2019 2018
SEORE SR
US$°000 US$°000

F 7 T 70 FL T

CPG and its subsidiaries CPG J H: Fff &g 2 vl 1,039,359 969,625
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%
5 REVENUE 5 PN
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAL T :
2019 2018
“E - ZER )N\
US$’000 US$°000
i i FLF
(Note)
(Kt #t)
Rewvenue from contracts with customers FKHEFGHZHA
(within the scope of IFRS 15) (7F 126 5% B 75 7R 45 i Y
SEI5HE 0 H I A)
Sales of goods from: SEEMREA -
China agri-food operations o AR T SRS
— Feed business L E Y 3,158,897 3,406,255
— Farm business —HEER 715,174 505,231
— Food business — R EH 305,237 237,896
Vietnam agri-food operations R R
— Feed business — i B} 2E 5 887,113 838,314
— Farm business — R 1,783,777 1,638,078
— Food business - EE 110,408 83,490
6,960,606 6,709,264
Revenue from other sources WA B H Al A
Rental income from investment and BB EEREE
property holding operations ZHERA 230 156
6,960,836 6,709,420
Note: MFAE ¢

Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current
year’s presentation (certain sales of raw meat products were reclassified

from food business to farm business).

NET CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Net change in fair value of biological assets represents the
difference in fair value from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019. Net fair value change consists of (i) negative realised
fair value changes of US$152,772,000 (2018: US$59,633,000)
in respect of biological assets held as at 1 January 2019 and
(ii) positive unrealised fair value changes of US$258,326,000
(2018: US$155,503,000) in respect of biological assets stated
at fair value as at 31 December 2019.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
-

VO 5 2 PR B A 4 52 s Oy X 305 40 08 3 1 2
P S b B O ER R SR T AN B AR ) o

ENEERREBEZSBHFE

REEZEYMEEARMBEZEHFHNRER
SR -hLE—-A—-HE_ZF—NLE+TH
S+ —HZARMEZER - ARMEZHHF
FRBORZF-NNFE—A—HFEEWEY
BEZLEBARMZABEIK5,277.283%
JC (& — )\4E 1 5,963.383550) K(i)r =%
—JLEFTZH=+—H A RMEFIE KA
BREZ AN RMEZ LS8 21%5,832.68 3%
TG (=& —)4E ¢ 1f%5,550.38 3500) o



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A B 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE
OTHER INCOME, NET 7 Hi A FE
An analysis of other income, net, is as follows: HA WA FHES W T
2019 2018
SBNE B
US$’000 US$°000

F 7 T 70 FKL T oL

Bank interest income SRATR BB A 4,211 5,716
Other interest income H AR B WA 7,551 9,844
Rental income MEBRA 3,273 4,360
Government grants R A B 9,071 7,476
Gain on relocation of factories TR Wi 25 - 20,473
Income from sales of consumables S FEAT It AR A

and packaging materials 7,246 5,564
Gain on step acquisition of a subsidiary 43 B B Wi — X B O W) 2 W - 2,095
Net change in fair value of derivative A A b T HL N {5 B

financial instruments 2,009 11,157
Net change in fair value of investment P& Wy A ol 5 A

properties (note 16) i) (2,615) (1,918)
Foreign exchange differences, net AN BT 5 26 B 2,079 (18,422)
Others HoAfth 3,258 2,451

36,083 48,796

Government grants included above are subsidies or incentives b e R el B T B A 4 L v R R 3 T
from the government in respect of certain investments of the B IE H 0 T HRE 2 MM 88 m) - F R
Group in the agricultural industry and areas promoted by the I 25 BORF i Bl S JHE AT 40T V9 A B AT A 6% 1 B B
government in the PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions HEHIE o i S WCEU B A B S R Rl
or contingencies relating to these grants. Government i Bl &SRR S M BRI R ZIBERAN
grants received for which related expenditure has not yet (FF5E315235)

been undertaken are included in deferred income in the

consolidated statement of financial position (notes 31 and 35).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &
8 FINANCE COSTS 8 B 7 B A
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BB A A :
2019 2018
SE-RE SE AR
US$’000 US$’000
F L FiL FLF
Interest expense on bank borrowings AT B EH 100,832 85,588
Interest expense on corporate bond EEHEZHEBEH 5,039 6,082
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAMEZN BT 46,335 N
Less: Interest expense capitalised* W AR AR (9,807) (11,432)
142,399 80,238
* Interest expense was capitalised at a rate of 4.9% — 5.2% per * B S 2 G A AL TG 345 F) R4.9%FE5.2%
annum (2018: 4.9% — 5.0%). (ZF—)\4E : 4.9%%5.0%) #1355 »
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B 5 3R R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9 RR B4 Al % R
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AREFBGHBAERAN LG GEA) T34
(crediting): I
2019 2018
“ER A ZER)\E
Note US$’000 US$’000
A BV FI T
Cost of inventories sold O EEE A 5,734,782 5,667,468
Depreciation of property, plant and L E BN Y&
equipment ZUE 15 128,543 122,829
Amortisation of land use rights - Hb A RE 2 B 17 4,688 4,396
Depreciation of other right-of-use assets s fifi FI A & &&= 785 18 44,857 -
Depreciation of biological assets stated at % B AN IR B 51 785 K I 4
cost less accumulated depreciation and HERZEIRZ
impairment YR EZ I 19 43,557 39,018
Amortisation of intangible assets T G 8 20 2,462 2,645
Impairment of trade receivables, net TE W &2 5 W 3K IR A T3 A 27(a) 2,569 3,436
Impairment of prepayments, deposits and ~THATHREK ~ %4 K
other receivables JHC At 8 WA R K AR 2,589 -
Impairment of property, plant and W~ W s
equipment Z A 15 15,567 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HMEWE - ME &
equipment, net WX A 1 8 A 1,302 736
Minimum lease payments of leasehold PR L R 2 ~ MR B
land and properties, plant and B 2 REME Z R
machinery under operating lease B 3k & 18(b) - 75,507
Lease payments of short-term lease and A0 G AL W A
leases of low-value assets exempted AR A B LB Y
from capitalisation & 18(b) 12,951 -
Auditors’ remuneration A% B il T 4 1,909 2,431
Rental income WA (3,503) (4,516)
Employee benefit expenses (including fé B A i (RHEEF
directors’ emoluments — note 10): 4 — Kt sE10) -
— Wages, salaries and benefits in kind —-TEHE -HEeKk
Ik Bl & 2 491,863 440,316
— Pension scheme contributions — B Ik4 29,047 30,395
520,910 470,711
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R MY 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%

10

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% BH B &R

A

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10 EE=EME
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) B E A BRG] E383 (IR LA T (T
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the 2R 25 BB ML SR Bl E 5 A B
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BT :
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contribution Bonus Total
Hi e Rk
wE  EHENE  BEKEEX 1 4 ok
Note US$°000 US$°000 US§$°000 US§$°000 US8$°000
Wit EL T Eyaon Eywn E I EL T
Year ended 31 December 2019 REZZ-NE
FIAZHIEEE
Executive directors: WES:
Mt. Dhanin Chearavanont R A (i) - 530 - - 530
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HE AR - - - - -
Mr. Adirek Sripratak ERK kA - - - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont B EL I - - - _ -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont EiLiL¢ S (i) - - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin HERLL - 919 11 355 1,285
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg 2 - - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan® - - - - -
Mr. Yu Jianping TRTEA - 916 18 355 1,289
- 2,365 29 710 3,104
Non-executive directors: FHfTES:
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont EiR oA - - - - _
Mr. Yoichi Tkezoe R — - - - _ _
Independent non-executive directors: WA FFHTHS :
Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung R4 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isresJ & 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda ThanitculJB 4 31 - - - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai VittavasgarnvejJg 4 31 - - - 31
Mis. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari Vimooktayon & £ 31 - - - 31
155 - - - 155
Total directors’ emoluments FEMEBE 155 2,365 29 710 3,259
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
b % BB B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B %% 3Rk M R
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E _-F—J4E+ZH =+ —H 1L

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10 ESME (&)

Salaries, Pension
allowances, and scheme
Fees benefits in kind ~ contribution Bonus Total
B el R
we EEANE  BKSHHR 14 B
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000

it Fntr  Frtr  ExTxr  FLTr @ FITx

Year ended 31 December 2018 BEZZ-\E
FIAZF—HILEE
Executive directors: WHESE:
M. Dhanin Chearavanont R A (i) - 1,174 - - 1,174
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont PN - - - - -
Mr. Adirek Sripratak BEEN LA - - - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont B FL I - - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin HEREE - 916 12 3 1,305
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg s - - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan® 1 - - - - -
Mr. Yu Jianping TRVEE - 903 19 361 1,283
- 2,993 31 738 3,762
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont B & A - - - _ _
M. Yoichi Ikezoe WRE Sk - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B FFHTHES :
Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung R A 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isresJ & 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda ThanitculJe 4 31 - - - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai VittavasgarnvejJ6 4 31 - - - 31
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari Vimooktayon & £ 31 - - - 31
155 - - - 155
Total directors’ emoluments HHEW A A 155 2,993 31 738 3917
Notes: Mt -
(i) Resigned as executive director on 10 May 2019. (i) RoE—NERH T HEERITES -
(ii) Appointed as executive director on 1 June 2019. (ii) MR NEANH—HERERBUTES
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B & R 2

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R MY 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no emoluments
was paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group as compensation for loss of
office (2018: nil), and there was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments (2018:
nil).

11 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2018: three) directors. Details of their emoluments are set
out in note 10 above. The emoluments of the remaining three

(2018: two) non-directors are as follows:

A

EEME (&)

REEZF-UETF A=+ HIRFE
A 4 1 I 90 S A I A A > DABE A AR
AR T 7 i A\ A 35 R T AR R G 4 2R Al
M (2 — VA ) > 5 2 3 i Rk )
BRI & 2 P (ZF— )4« JiE) -

TNBEHFMES

BN Tohr B R B MR B AR (2F N
4 3fr) #Hd > e Z R C#R Bk
PFRELO o R F3AL (ZF — )\4F : 241) i
ZWEmT

2019 2018

ZE ZEB— )\ HE

US$’000 US$’000

<y an FEIL T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind F - E A & IEBL AR 25 2,805 1,927
Bonus #E 4 1,168 770
3,973 2,697

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is set out below:

B 1R S I 0 R AN R DL B0 4 8
mE

2019 2018

ZE A ZER)N\E
Number of Number of

individuals individuals

e B % H EAHH

US$1,218,001 to US$1,282,000
(equivalent to HK$9,500,001 to
HK$10,000,000)

US$1,282,001 to US$1,346,000
(equivalent to HK$10,000,001 to
HK$10,500,000)

US$1,346,001 to US$1,410,000
(equivalent to HK$10,500,001 to
HK$11,000,000)

164

1,218,0013 6% 1,282,0003%

7t (K % 149,500,001 76 =

10,000,000%% 75) 1 -
1,282,0013% 76 %1,346,0003¢

J6 (FH % 7$10,000,001% 76

10,500,000 7T 1 1
1,346,0013¢ 6% 1,410,0003

J6 (K % 410,500,001 3 76 =

11,000,000% 7T 1 1
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b ¥ HE

B A R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 8R & M =
For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11 HEUBRSHMES (&)
(continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no emoluments was REE_F—NETH=Z+—HILEE >
paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid employees of 7 45 ) 3 0 57 A T 4 o g5 v R I AR B 2 AT
the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group faf —Ar > DL in AR 45 5] B A hn A 45 1
as compensation for loss of office (2018: nil). IR VE 2 R IR Bk R B R (R — )\4F : fiE) o
INCOME TAX 12 Fi8Ht
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the A [ 7 A 4R B R AR T ¥ I EUAT: ) ME SR B
year as the Group did not generate any assessable profits in W » B DA AR A A 4E B8 TN 1 7 o 0 159 50 38 £
Hong Kong during the year (2018: nil). TR )NE ) o
The subsidiaries operating in the PRC and Vietnam are subject FR B o [ e R A 2 T A BB 5 N b R
to income tax at the rate of 25% (2018: 25%) and 20% (2018: 2z Wt B A w5 R AL e A 4 T FR B
20%) respectively on their taxable income according to the H25% (ZF— V4R 25%) K20% (ZF— )\
PRC and Vietnam corporate income tax laws. In accordance AR 20%) BRI AR A o MR B R R 2
with the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC and B 8 265 < ) By 9] - A A [ o [ R e R
Vietnam, certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC and 2T W B A 7] 28 B s R 2 8 -
Vietnam enjoy various income tax exemptions or reductions.
2019 2018
—“EJuE R )\
US$°000 US$°000
BV ForTx
Current — the PRC ARAE — th
Charge for the year NG 68,964 71,880
Over-provision in prior years VA4 8 2 5 4R (5,617) (5,604)
Current — Vietnam AR — B
Charge for the year AR B 37 55,184 31,204
Under-provision in prior years DI BE A i - 14,659
Deferred (note 36) AEIE (M ik36) 3,005 27,222
Total tax expense for the year A i 2 I A4 3 121,536 139,361
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% BH B &R

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5

A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &

12 INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory tax rates for the PRC and Vietnam in
which the Group principally operates to the tax expense at the
effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable tax
rates (i.e. statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as

follows:

12 FrE% (&)

v I R M (A4 ) 2 S R M) W k2
Mt A FH B DA OB Rt A5 B B S H A
2o JOmRABR (M ERR) ZHUBERZ
R RIIMTE

2019 2018
e SayiK:s RN\
US$’000 % US$°000 %
FEFi FEIL T

Profit before tax i B A i A1 589,240 532,378
Tax expense at statutory tax rate B E B ARG E MBI S 124,362 21.1 108,025 20.3
Lower tax rates for specific provinces or TR € A B o [ L T R A

enacted by local tax authority ZBIKBR (13,486) (2.3) (7,430) (1.4)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the AR I b O A

distributable profit of the Group's W43 LA S R

subsidiaries in the PRC 10%Z 352 10,279 1.7 1,775 1.5
Adjustments in respect of current tax of AR TR DA G A T 1

prior years # (5,617) (1.0) 9,055 1.7
Profits and losses attributable to joint JEAL G 8 4 3 R W8 A v ke

ventures and associates M R s (5,867) (1.0) (4,531) (0.9)
Income not subject to tax iS5 TN (14,011) (2.4) (6,589) (1.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax YR SE 19,151 33 17,606 3.3
Tax losses not recognised REH BB 8 16,665 2.8 17,245 3.2
Tax losses from prior years utilised ) JH DL 47 BB B 4R (8,256) (1.4) (2,039) (0.3)
Others HAl (1,684) (0.2) 244 0.0
Tax expense at the Group’s effective tax  HEASE B BB K G R B

rate 3 i 121,536 20.6 139,361 26.2
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

INCOME TAX (continued)

The share of income tax attributable to joint ventures and
associates amounting to US$857,000 (2018: US$1,402,000)
and US$7,897,000 (2018: US$6,841,000), respectively, are
included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures
and associates” on the face of the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

DIVIDENDS

Interim — HK$0.008 (equivalent to

12

13

FriEwt ()

AR [0 AR 6 A S R T A R Z PR A3 B4
M 2585, TH T8 (% — )\4F : 140.2#570)
789 T# FTE (T — )\4F 1 684.18KT0) °
U 45 0 O A A 2 T WA e T TR
8 A 38 S g8 o ) A v R R s 1R e

g =\
2019 2018
ZEF A A
US$°000 US$°000

F 7 T 70 FL T

H ) — I 2 e B T 45 B B O e

approximately US 0.103 cents) (2018: 0.008% ¢ (#H 4% 1 #70.1033& il

HK$0.017 (equivalent to approximately ZE—)VE D 0.0173 o6 (M &

US 0.218 cents)) per ordinary share and FY#10.2183E411) )

convertible preference share 25,982 55,213
Proposed final — HK$0.024 (equivalent to T R B — S e B ) e i 4R

approximately US 0.308 cents) (2018: Fe0.024 %50 (FH 4 £0.308 36

HK$0.026 (equivalent to approximately i) (= — )\4E : 0.026# 70 (F

US 0.333 cents)) per ordinary share and SR 490.3335511) )

convertible preference share 77,947 84,443

103,929 139,656

The proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2019 is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
total amount of the proposed final dividend was calculated
based on the number of ordinary shares and convertible
preference shares of the Company in issue on the date of this

annual report.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R MY 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%

14

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 14 ZFQFRREMSE2TREFR
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based EEN N ETY NS E PR | ) i WL E Y NS
on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the JE AN 4F- P9 363 1) B AF- N O 84T 2 0% 98 i K AT 4
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares T A 416 B I RE - 2 8 o

and convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based B FE A S BE R A AR IR DL T B .

on the following data:

2019 2018
SO AR
US$°000 US$°000

FIL T FIT T IC
Earnings i Al

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders FH RS 5 3545 % Rk A e 8
of the Company, used in the basic and diluted % #] Z A< 2 7] i 3K A 4E

earnings per share calculation JE Al iz 345,803 281,659
2019 2018
ZE—hE —F—)\4F

Shares Ji& 13

Weighted average number of ordinary shares and Fi & 51 5% 45 it 3 A T 3 5 5 F1) 22
convertible preference shares in issue during AR O AT I B R AT R 1
the year, used in the basic and diluted earnings 5% JB fin i °F 35 8%
per share calculation 25,332,914,980 25,332,914,980
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A B 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B %% 3Rk M R
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E _-F—J4E+ZH =+ —H 1L

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE -BERZE
Furniture, ~ Motor vehicles
Office Industrial Plant and fixtures and and transport Construction
premises buildings machinery office equipment facilities in progress Total
R %8 HHR
EL &4 THMT TR BB R s T i AR B
Note US$’000 US$000 US$000 US$°000 US$°000 US$'000 US$’000
Wi ErTx FLTx FLTFx FITx FLTx ELTx FLTx
(notes (a) (notes (b) (note (b))
and (d)) and (c))
(Wit &) (H#b)E(C) (Widte)
At 1 January 2019: BB AE—-A—H:
Valuation fhf 82,711 - - - - - 82,711
Cost A - 989,802 1,075,550 170,158 32,807 260,270 2,528,587
Accumulated depreciation and B R
impairment - (279,841) (420,006) (106,128) (24,011) - (829,986)
Net carrying amount R T 82,711 709,961 655,544 64,030 8,796 260,270 1,781,312
Net carrying amount: T O
At 1 January 2019 REF-ME—-A—H 82,711 709,961 655,544 64,030 8,796 260,270 1,781,312
Additions R - 1,585 15,404 13,696 1,341 324,535 356,561
Surplus on revaluation, net Eitiey 672 - - - - - 672
Acquisition of subsidiaries I A D 44(a)(xii) - 10,022 5,178 284 54 91 15,629
Depreciation provided during the year SR 9 (1,504) (42,334) (64,595) (17,719) (2,391) - (128,543)
Transfer in/(out) BA/ (i) - 100,649 120,765 13,027 3,335 (237,776) -
Transfer from investment properties HWHRENE 16 - 4,301 - - - - 4,301
Disposals e - (3,415) (4,992) (1,343) (298) - (10,048)
Impairment Wl 9 - - (15,567) - - - (15,567)
Exchange realignment 50 147 (6,515) (7,006) (392) (89) (2,134) (15,989)
At31 December 2019 REZ-E
+ZA=+—H 82,026 774,254 704,731 71,583 10,748 344,986 1,988,328
At 31 December 2019: RoR—hE
TIAZET-H
Valuation il 82,026 - - - - - 82,026
Cost A - 1,088,810 1,174,128 189,439 34,702 344,986 2,832,065
Accumulated depreciation and PERE YT
impairment - (314,556) (469,397) (117,856) (23,954) - (925,763)
Net carrying amount it {E 82,026 774,254 704,731 71,583 10,748 344,986 1,988,328
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4 BB R A 7
Notes to Financial Statements
BF 7% R & M
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE- -RBREKZE (&)
(continued)
Furniture, ~ Motor vehicles
Office Industrial Plant and fixtures and and transport Construction
premises buildings machinery  office equipment facilities in progress Total
R %8 HHR
[LEd &4 THMT T BB % Y& v | i T Eak|
Note US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000
3 ELTx FLTFx FLTE FLTx FLTx FLTx ELTx
(notes (a) (notes (b) (note (b))
and (d)) and (c))
(Wit &) (W#b)E(C) (Wite)
At 1 January 2018: BB N\E—-H—H:
Valuation i 77,020 - - - - - 77,020
Cost AR - 937,438 1,062,450 162,195 33,762 256,983 2,452,828
Accumulated depreciation BT R
and impairment - (257,256) (391,276) (103,061) (23,607) - (775,200)
Net carrying amount it 77,020 680,182 671,174 59,134 10,155 256,983 1,754,648
Net carrying amount: SR A
At 1 January 2018 BWZZ—N\E—~H—H 77,020 680,182 671,174 59,134 10,155 256,983 1,754,648
Additions RE - 11,050 18,618 13,117 1,351 177,307 221,443
Surplus on revaluation, net EHFER 8,238 - - - - - 8,238
Acquisition of a subsidiary WO — K W 4 ) 40 - 5,237 2,162 143 53 332 7927
Depreciation provided during the year BN 9 (1,529) (40,090) (61,327) (17,418) (2,465) - (122,829)
Transfer inf(out) HA/(th) - 86,098 63,304 11,928 384 (161,714) -
Transfer from investment properties HWHRENE 16 - 1,697 - - - - 1,697
Disposals i - (1,620) (4,552) (410) (188) - (6,770)
Exchange realignment [EE 56 7 (1,018) (32,593) (33,835) (2,464) (494) (12,638) (83,042)
At 31 December 2018 BEF— N\
+ZA=+—H 82,711 709,961 655,544 64,030 8,796 260,270 1,781,312
At 31 December 2018: RZZ— N\
FZHEF—H
Valuation fhf 82,711 - - - - - 82,711
Cost A - 989,802 1,075,550 170,158 32,807 260,270 2,528,587
Accumulated depreciation LEER ST
and impairment - (279,841) (420,006) (106,128) (24,011) - (829,986)
Net carrying amount R T 82,711 709,961 655,544 64,030 8,796 260,270 1,781,312
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
B A R 2
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s office premises

were stated at open market values.

Had the Group’s office premises been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amount of the
premises at the end of the reporting period would have been
US$3,562,000 (2018: US$3,965,000).

The revaluation surplus of US$651,000 (2018: US$6,999,000)
has been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve of the Group

during the year, net of deferred tax (note 36).

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment in mainland China with an aggregate net
carrying amount of US$153,135,000 (2018: US$177,791,000)
were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings of the Group
(note 32(a)).

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s industrial buildings
with an aggregate net carrying amount of US$163,157,000
(2018: US$153,973,000) have not yet obtained ownership

certificates.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group assessed the recoverable
amounts of certain plant and machinery of farm and food
businesses in Vietnam and the carrying amount of those plant
and machinery was written down to their recoverable amounts
of US$23,218,000. During the year ended 31 December
2019, an impairment loss of US$15,567,000 (2018: nil) was
recognised in “General and administrative expenses”. The
recoverable amounts are determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets estimated by management covering
a six-year period. Cash flows beyond the six-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate
of 5%. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of
12%. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific

risks relating to the relevant plant and equipment.
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ME - BERRE (&)

(d)

T IR > AL 2 v SR T % 4 B
A AN -

i A% 45 8 18 S M 5 1 L AR 4T B R A 8
IR o M B 0 R 2 MR T JE 453562
HFTE (ZF— 4 : 396,58 %T) -

EHRSIEE T ZEMBG (ZF N
A 1 699.9% FET0) T I Ath 4 v K 25 e 3R
BORAE N R A [ i P SE T AG R A (0
BB BLIE) (K 3E36) ©

RZZ—NETZH=+—H > REER
WK B2 T~ s Rk B Rk
T ELRS,313.58 K0 (ZF— )\ 1 1
57,779. 18 % 50) TAE B A 3 847
A 3R Z HEA (M RE32(2)) ©

NoZZ—NET+ZH=1T—H KEEZ
T3 M A TR A 16,315, 78 3508
(= — V4 T 1{85,397.38 5 8) MR #
73 5% BE I ©

RoF—hE+HA=Z+—H > REEFE
i 7 BRI R R TR K&
AR 0 AT I A BB SRR KA
Py W T R DA A WY ol Il 4 32,3218
HET - RBE_F—NFET+_H=1+—
H Ik 4F B > WA 2K %51,556.78 %0 (2
F—)\4F ) CAETTR RS E /] H
TR o % W) WA 1] 4 0 T 4% 0 P A A T 5 A
Y o 552 RO T AR B A L o A e o 2 AR
F B 75 TR ST HEAT MY BL & TR TH I o R o4E
T Al B4 T B 355 9% M A R S 34 3 =
AT ST o B4 I B TE W R B R 12 %3
P8 o SR ZPr BLRTIBLRT » Sl e e 5L
% FE IR R 5 T AR A A IO 2 A ) LB
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 #R R MY &

N

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e)

(i)

A

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 W% BERRE (H)
Mt o (A7)
Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (e) W~ BE A R &
Fair value hierarchy (i) WTAEZ HH
The following table presents the fair value of the TR EHRAREEHZ Y
Group’s property, plant and equipment measured at ¥ ME PR IR R AR R R
the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis. B RAE o
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December categorised into
RTHZH=tT—HARMRZ 58
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Y| | B=H sk
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Frxfo  FxFrx - FrTo W FErTxr
2019 ZE N
Office premises LEY &8 - - 82,026 82,026
2018 ZE )\
Office premises GEZSR - - 82,711 82,711

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of the reporting period used in the

valuation models.
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Notes: (continued)

(e)

Mt o (A7)
Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (e)
(continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i)

(ii)

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
b % BB B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE- -KBREEZE (&)
(continued)

Type Valuation technique

R il 85

Office premises in Hong Kong Market comparison approach

RLTA T 9 1) 7 S i35 Lok
Office premises in mainland China Market comparison approach
RETA H R K B Y 7 A i35 Lok

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

Office premises of the Group were revalued based
on valuations performed by RHL Appraisal Limited,
an external independent and qualified valuer. The
Group’s finance team discussed with the valuers
on the valuation assumptions and results when the
valuation was performed for annual financial reporting

purpose.

The fair value of the office premises in Hong Kong
and mainland China are determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent quotation
or sale prices of comparable properties on a price per

square metre basis.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated price
per square metre would result in a significant increase/

decrease in the fair value of the office premises.
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Key unobservable inputs

FEAWBENS Y

Estimated price of US$59,365 (2018:

US$58,925) per square metre

B J7 K Z AL EHE 59,3655 7T

(2018: 58,9253 76)

Estimated price of US$7,181 — US$9,522

(2018: US$7,470 — US$10,167) per

square metre

g7 5 ok Z A FHE#E7,18136 58 - 9,522

(ii)

FJ6 (2018: 7,470957C — 10,1673 6)

BB =RA A T 7 g 2 B

AL B SE T I A A TS AR B
H K A 47 3T ML P A R 2 5] (Sh
T8 K B A% REAL ) B A 2 AN
FEE o PRIAF LI 5 Wk T AT 4 3
AEAN S o ACSR T Bt s I K 3 o B
ST B STl B i e 5 O o

L A ¥ e v BRI K B 1 i S TR 2
ARAETI W G Lk EE > 2%
SEUADL A S 1 20 0 T o M (4
JiKk) e

TP IR A FHER R BT
TR HEE T L ARMEEK
ET T
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

M #® B B & R 4 3
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R MY 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%
16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 REWE
2019 2018
2 ZR )N\
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t By Fo T T
Carrying amount at 1 January B—H—HZRmE 19,047 23,897
Net changes in fair value N Fo A B B VR A 7 (2,615) (1,918)
Transfer to owner-occupied properties % 5 H 4y 2% 15 (4,301) (1,697)
Exchange realignment EE 50, 3 % (227) (1,235)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+H+_H=+—HZEHE 11,904 19,047
Notes: MFAE ¢
(a) All investment properties of the Group are situated in (a) PR AL/ E 3RS N
mainland China.
(b) Fair value measurements of investment properties (b) BEWENA REF R
(i) Fair value hierarchy (i) AR Z R
The following table presents the fair value of the TESNRREMRAREBH ZRE
Group’s investment properties measured at the end of PR R R A R -
the reporting period on a recurring basis.
Fair Value measurement
as at 31 December categorised into
REA=Z+—HARMEFRZHHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
S8 5N =803 B
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Ewin e an Ewan E/mn
2019 R S K2
Investment properties "EME - - 11,904 11,904
2018 TR\ 4
Investment properties Eig2E/ES - - 19,047 19,047
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Fair value measurements of investment properties (continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of reporting period used in the

valuation models.

Type

T i 18 75

Factories and farms in mainland China

AR v I K B R X e TR

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

Investment properties of the Group were revalued
based on valuations performed by Beijing Huadeheng
Assets Evaluation Co., Ltd., an external independent
and qualified valuer. The Group’s finance team
discussed with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and results when the valuation is

performed for annual financial reporting purpose.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, replacement cost
approach was used for the valuation of the factories
and farms in mainland China by reference to the cost
to replace the assets at present time and their length of
period used, as the result from this method is considered

a more accurate reflection of their fair values.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated costs
of transportation, installation and start-up would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair

value of the investment properties.
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Valuation technique

REWE (&)

ML - (#)
(b)  HEWER A RAE (D
(i) ARG Z RS (H)

Replacement cost approach

BREZZ-NWERZFE-N\FEHD
H=E4—HIREERN > WREE— R
SRR Z W2 A > s A s
WS =AU o AR 2 BUR TR $
U A TR 2 0T A i A ) 2 g
%o

TR HUR 5B AU B A SRR
IR B4R ) 2 A 467 3 2 Al e A5
Kb EEA B2 -

Key unobservable inputs

TR BENZY

Estimated cost of US$23 — US$166
(2018: US$9 — US$301) per square metre
BV J7 KR Z AN FHE MR 235850 - 1665£ 7T
(ZF— )\ 2 93650 - 3013650)

(i1)

A B =R A A ] 2 Y
A B 2 B S A AT AR
B b T 3 8 1 A T A R A A
(O 3 T M A i) T4 2
WEARFEAE o PRI4F B 25 4% T 4T
WS RE A R > AR S R
7 LRl B w0 B e B A
;o

R IERZFRNETZA
S H o SR R R B B R
JR 35 2 Al B TS B A TR A 2
7 91 T A IR A ELE 4R
W1 B AP 2 T B e
WA

TR~ K TR Z R A A
0/ N0 P NS SR X € e < € E S
ZARMERET R -
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B & R 2

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &

A

17 LAND USE RIGHTS 17 T ERE
2019 2018
ZE R RN\
Note US$’000 US$’000
M aE E <y an FEoLFoo
Carrying amount at 1 January —H— H B 178,399 156,479
Acquisition of subsidiaries W Ji e g 2 ) 44(a)(xii) 4,702 4,545
Additions MR 28,442 30,534
Disposal & (249) -
Amortisation provided A N FT R
during the year 9 (4,688) (4,396)
Transfers from other A Al I I B A E A
non-current assets 2,515 -
Exchange realignment [ 5a, 3 3% (2,016) (8,763)
Carrying amount at 31 December P+ _HZ=+—HEmHE 207,105 178,399
Current portion included in BENRFEMNIENR > %4
prepayments, deposits and T L At JE W B 3k
other receivables Z B4 - (4,231)
Non-current portion FEFR W 4 207,105 174,168
Analysis of leasehold land by WIEAE LB T
location:
Mainland China PN 183,913 150,955
Vietnam Faea] 23,192 27,444
207,105 178,399
Note: M at -

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s leasehold land with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately US$54,596,000 (2018:

US$47,678,000) were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings of the

Group (note 32(b)).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b ¥ HE

B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

OTHER RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The Group has lease contracts for various items of

and warehouses, as well as machinery, motor vehicles and

other equipment used in its operations, having

between 2 and 51 years.

18 HtEREEE

land, farms

W > A A2 S 14 -

lease terms

A 4R VA TR v A % U e R R
TR > DL R eAs ~ I R A B A A

2019

“E s

Note US$’000

Bt ik By an

Carrying amount at 1 January W—H—HZRHEHE -

Impact on initial application of [FRS 16 BUKER A R % B s i e

SB16IRZ S H 343,307

Adjusted carrying amount at 1 January R—H— Rz EEE 343,307
Additions wE 122,898
Depreciation provided during the year ERNEH R 9 (44,857)
Exchange realignment e 58, 30 2% (139)
Carrying amount at 31 December R _A=+—HZIEHE 421,209

(a)

The analysis of the net book value of other

assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

right-of-use

(a)
W& RSB T

Lt 5 PR S Y M TR R > DA B

31 December 1 January

2019 2019

R ZEF A

+ZH=Z+—H —H—H

US$’000 US$’000

BV FoL T

Land o 1 7,776 8,787
Farms and warehouses -3 01 402,182 328,552
Machinery, motor vehicles and others HEgs ~ I 11,251 5,968
421,209 343,307
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ] & Mt 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &
18 OTHER RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18 HthFERAEEE (&)
(continued)
(b) The analysis of in relation to leases recognised in profit (b) FRMEREDNEZRZ ST

or loss is as follows:

2019 2018

S N
Note ~ US$°000  US$’000
Wit Fx T Fi T

Depreciation charge of other FO Al 5 B A 2
right-of-use assets: -3 diilE
Land +Hb 933 -
Farms and warehouses -39 &1 40,053 -
Machinery, motor vehicles and others HEAS ~ W R A 3,871 -
9 44,857 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities MEAEZANEEN 8 46,335 -
Lease payments of short-term lease and 00 A B A &
leases of low-value assets exempted from ARG & AL B
capitalisation L& A 3K 9 12,951 -
Minimum lease payments of leasehold land % B B € 5T #E RSB 1798 L&
and properties, plant and machinery T T 3~ R BB
under operating lease in IAS 17 ZREMEZ RIKHE
ARk K 4 A 9 - 75,507
Total amount recognised in profit or loss B 7R WD 2 AR A 104,143 75,507

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 29(d) and

34 to the financial statements, respectively.
Note:

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019,
using the modified retrospective approach and does not restate

comparative information.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A B 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B %% 3Rk M R
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E _-F—J4E+ZH =+ —H 1L

19 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 19 4£YEE
Current Other
Breeders and livestock - biological
layers swine assets Total
HHAHE  HMAE- HAb
LER ViEd ke E At
Note US$°000 US$’000 US$°000 US$’000
Wit FIL T EIaon #r T FL T

(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(7 () (M3 (b)) (M7t (c)

At 1 January 2019: BB E—A—H
At cost less accumulated AR B T R
depreciation and impairment:
Cost A 129,718 - 53,040 182,758
Accumulated depreciation EHE R Y
and impairment (31,496) - - (31,496)
98,222 - 53,040 151,262
At fair value AR - 404,830 - 404,830
98,222 404,830 53,040 556,092
Net carrying amount: R
At 1 January 2019 REF-NE—A—H 98,222 404,830 53,040 556,092
Increase due to purchases/raising P B/ T 8 129,331 1,014,384 605,396 1,749,111
Net changes in fair value NREBE TS 6 - 105,554 - 105,554
Depreciation provided during the year 4 N 34 H7 % 9 (43,557) - - (43,557)
Decrease due to sales IRl 84 8 T L (48,477)  (1,007,742) (607,963)  (1,664,182)
Decrease due to culling K] J& 52 11 i > (35,463) (29,386) - (64,849)
Exchange realignment [ 5 2 (158) 438 (153) 127
At 31 December 2019 R-F—NE
+ZH=Z+—H 99,898 488,078 50,320 638,296
At 31 December 2019: e Sy [
+-A=Z+—H:
At cost less accumulated AR B T RO
depreciation and impairment:
Cost %N 137,049 - 50,320 187,369
Accumulated depreciation and B E R
impairment (37,151) - - (37,151)
99,898 - 50,320 150,218
At fair value AR - 488,078 - 488,078
99,898 488,078 50,320 638,296
Analysed into: AT .
Current biological assets AR E 33,548 488,078 50,320 571,946
Non-current biological assets FEMEDEE 66,350 - - 66,350
99,898 488,078 50,320 638,296
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R R MY 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%
19 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 19 4£YEE (&)
Current Other
Breeders and livestock - biological
layers swine assets Total
FEA# HEE - Hofly .
RE#H BE W& B st
Note US$000 US$000 US$'000 US$000
/3 ELTFr FELTT ELTFT FELFr
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(W7t (a) (H7E (b)) (W7t ()
At 1 January 2018: R-F—-N\E—H—H:
At cost less accumulated depreciation AR B 378 R RAE
and impairment:
Cost A 116,837 - 32,837 149,674
Accumulated depreciation and BT RO
impairment (28,873) - - (28,873)
87,964 - 32,837 120,801
At fair value ARAE - 296,226 - 296,226
87,964 296,226 32,837 417,027
Effect of adoption of IFRS 15 TR0 190 B Bt 7 v e
BISWZHE
Cost BAR - - 10,825 10,825
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZZ—N\F—H—H
(E4) 87,964 296,226 43,662 421,852
Net carrying amount: R T
At 1 January 2018 RoF—N\F—HA—H 87,964 296,226 43,662 427,852
Increase due to purchases/raising WG /A7 185,525 974,905 537,043 1,697,473
Net changes in fair value MRS T 6 - 95,870 - 95,870
Depreciation provided during the year 4 [ gH42 47 2% 9 (39,018) - - (39,018)
Decrease due to sales K] 5 1 i (95,890) (939,763) (526,098) (1,561,751)
Decrease due to culling K] J2 52 1 Y (37,931) (14,666) - (52,597)
Exchange realignment FE 30, 3 2 (2,428) (7,742) (1,567) (11,737)
At 31 December 2018 R\
+ZA=Z+—H 98,222 404,830 53,040 556,092
At 31 December 2018: R\
F+ZAZ+—H:
At cost less accumulated depreciation AR B #9718 R AE
and impairment:
Cost BA 129,718 - 53,040 182,758
Accumulated depreciation and A R
impairment (31,496) - - (31,496)
98,222 - 53,040 151,262
At fair value MR - 404,830 - 404,830
98,222 404,830 53,040 556,092
Analysed into: AHWT .
Current biological assets YR E 26,762 404,830 53,040 484,632
Non-current biological assets EEM MG R 71,460 - - 71,460
98,222 404,830 53,040 556,092
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Notes:

(a)

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B ER

»

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE
19 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Breeders and layers

Breeders and layers of the Group are (i) sows and boars
(collectively “swine breeders”) held for the production
of piglets for sales and/or further raising to become swine
parent stock or fattening swine, (ii) chicken breeders held
for production of hatching eggs in order to produce day-old

chicks, and (iii) layers held for the production of consumable

eggs.

Breeders and layers are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses as (i)
they are not sold by the Group and no active market exists;
(ii) other references to market prices such as market prices
for similar assets are not available; and (iii) valuation based
on a discounted cash flow method is considered unreliable
given the uncertainty with respect to external factors, such as

climate and mortality rates, etc.

Cost includes all costs incurred during the growth cycle (e.g.
cost of new born animals, feed costs and farmer fees). Swine
breeders are depreciated using the straight-line method over
their productive period of 24 to 36 months starting from
the reproduction phase, while chicken breeders and layers
are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
productive period of 12 months, both taking into account a

residual value.

Current livestock — swine

Current livestock — swine are piglets and fattening swines and
are stated at fair value less costs of disposal. Fair values are
determined based on market prices, and where transaction
prices are not available for certain age groups, based on
prevailing market prices of other age groups, with adjustments

taking into account difference in weight.
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Rt WA R B IR o J5 R s (1) A 42 B 3 R
HEFHESERER MEEEERER
IR HE A BRI B 5 (i) i JHESSUADL 2 Y T 3 ik
LA 2 T 5 WL S M 225 5 e (i) R
HMERFE > BN - 735 RS LEAR W
TR > B O 32 0 B 0 6 O 0 02 A o PO il
B 3 A 7] B o

AR 45 A R Y1 7 A B AT AR (4
B ERAS ~ BRE AR KR P B ) -
B B R = N
AR > T R A R s A AR
R F A 3 i A AR A W R 0 B
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
h#®% BB B AR

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R MY 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%

19 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

Other biological assets

Other biological assets comprise poultry and aquatic livestock

other than breeders and layers.

Poultry livestock are pullets, broilers and hatching eggs,
while aquatic livestock comprise shrimp and fish. Poultry and
aquatic livestock are stated at cost less any impairment losses,
which are not materially different from their fair value due to

short production cycle.

An analysis of the estimates of physical quantities of the
Group’s biological assets as at the end of the reporting period

is as follows:

BF
K EE

Livestock

Aquatic

The estimates of physical quantities of biological assets were
based on experience and historical data. The Group conducts
full physical count in swine farms by rotation to ascertain
the quantity and physical condition of swine and project the
overall weight. For poultry livestock, the Group performs real
time update on stock movement to project the overall weight.
For aquatic livestock, the Group uses sampling method to

project the overall weight.

N

19
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EMEE (&)

Wit - (4F)

(c)

A Az iy ¥

Ho A 2 4y 5 2 A B R A S SR DA
R B TR

KB QRN EH - p A RAER > 1k A
B4R M A o B TR 5 IR A TR AT ] 5
e B M > 36 EL o A 2 10T 40 AR
TR 0 A B 2 o K 2%
il o

A AR [ 7 5 R 2 A R
it

2019 2018

I S R0 ZE - )N\F
Tons Tons

g g
348,000 332,000
15,300 12,700

AR T Y Ay S T R OB A RS AR R
AU T R S MR o ARSI ARG R EAT
L TH B AR > DL BRSO SR
T TR 08 T Ak o AR A 5 0 S D
AT B IR SEHT DA A ST AR T R o ACSR K
BEA AR MO R A L A



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

19 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

7

19

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 8R & M =
For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE
EYEE (&)
Mt : (%)

Notes: (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement of biological assets

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s biological assets measured at the end of the

reporting period on a recurring basis.

(e)  EYEEMA MR

(i) A2 RS

TR EIRARGEE 2 424
B AR AT B A A

Fair value measurement as at
31 December categorised into
/A VS I el SV (- R i
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B | B0 okl
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FiXTrx  FrTrxr  FrTrxr - FELTx

2019 RN
Current livestock — Swine EMEE e - - 488,078 488,078
2018 —2—)\F
Current livestock — Swine HWEE e - - 404,830 404,830

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
h#®% BB B AR

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 #R R MY &

PN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &

19 BIOL

OGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e)

Fair value measurement of biological assets (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable

inputs at the end of the reporting period used in the

valuation models.

Type

e P16 75

Current livestock — swine

R - e

(ii) Information about level 3 fair value measurements

The calculation of fair value of current livestock —
swine is performed by the Group’s relevant finance

department and operations team on a quarterly basis

using a series of systematic procedures.

There is an active market for live swine in Vietnam.
The fair value of suckling swine, weanling swine and

fattening swine are determined based on transaction

price per head and their weight.

The estimated fair value of swine increases/decreases
as a result of an increase/decrease in the transaction
price. As at 31 December 2019, if transaction price
increases/decreases by 10%, the estimated fair

value of swine would have increased/decreased by

US$48,318,000 (2018: US$38,617,000).

Valuation technique

19
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Market comparison approach

T3 B

EMEE (&)

Miak : (4)
(e) B AW A AR B ()
(i) AR Z RS (A7)

T BRI Y 4 SRR
IR B4R P 2 Al 487 5 % Al (A5
Kb EEA B2 -

Key unobservable inputs

FERWBENS B

Transaction prices of:
— Suckling swine US$47.5 to US$49.2

(2018: US$43.1 to US$44.3) per head

— Weanling swine US$35.4 to US$104.4

(2018: US$46.8 to US$92.9) per head

— Fattening swine US$3.5 to US$3.5

(2018: US$2.0 to US$2.3) per kg

32 5 ks
- FLRARREHAT 5K E49.256 50 (=%

(ii)

— \4E : 431505 44.3550)
N354T L E104.4FE 8 (ZF
— \4E : 46.8F L% 92.9%5T)
BT AT3ISFELEISFEL(ZF
— J\4E : 2.0 0 E2.3%50)

A B =R A A 7] 12 Y

HHEE - R A RMTIR
AR 5% A 56 A 75 0 1) % % 7 A B
H—FIVH &R HEWNENXGH -

L B A A0 A R o LA -
INEE % T R 2 O SUAE T AR 55 0 B
28 Gy AR A S Tk T O o

R AR A RAB A 51 B 2 28 5 B 1Y
EF R EFH TR e R F
—JEFZHA=Z+—H > BRRH
M LT TFBk10% > FEEMA R
EAGFS BT T #k4,831.88 3550
(=& —)\4E £ 3,861.7H L)
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A R 2

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk M R
For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS B EE
2019 2018
SECNE SE N
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t Syl i FoLFoo
At 1 January: wN—H—H:
Cost S AR 37,908 38,384
Accumulated amortisation 2 EES (11,611) (9,586)
Net carrying amount JIETTRER I 26,297 28,798
Net carrying amount: JIERTTRE [
At 1 January wm—H—H 26,297 28,798
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — KW 8B A H 40 11,289 1,661
Amortisation provided during A N F] 3 HE S
the year 9 (2,462) (2,645)
Exchange realignment [HE 5e, 3 3% (1,749) (1,517)
At 31 December wt+_-_H=+—H 33,375 26,297
At 31 December: R+_H=+—H:
Cost AR 47,288 37,908
Accumulated amortisation =g (13,913) (11,611)
Net carrying amount TR N 33,375 26,297
Note: Mt -

The Group’s intangible asset represents customer relationship of the

ASR B BT G A T AR B SE W A AR
FFBAR > 1R 2 B S8 T E i 4R 1% 51

accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. B o

Group arising from business combination, which is stated at cost less

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “selling and

AT 2 8 8 4 AR v 0 T B R 43 8

distribution costs” in profit or loss. A o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 185
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R R MY 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%
21 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21 RAMBARINER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as K FEMEF AR ZFHEHBEWT ¢
follows:
Percentage of
Place of attributable equity
Company name incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ interest held by Principal activities
operations registered capital Company  Group
VAR oz, DR SE, WA E 2 FEEH
B T AR Anw AREE
CP China Investment Limited Cayman US$79,228,000 100.0%  100.0% Investment holding
(“CP China”) Islands/Hong Kong 79,228,0003 ¢t BHERER
PHRREE
CP Food Investment Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong 1 share - 100.0% Investment holding
W W 1B BeAn a2 e0d1d
Chia Tai Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB1,455,553,024 - 100.0% Investment holding
(“CTI”) (formerly known as: i, 1,455,553,024 \ R and trading of
Chia Tai (China) Investment raw materials
Co., Ld.) @ BHETER &
ERBE B A R AR ([EK#% AR 5
%) (HiAg « ERK(PE) &Y
ARAF) ™
C. P. Premix (Guanghan) PRC/PRC US$818,251 - 91.0% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. @ dg 818,2513%7C sale of animal feed
ERTHIRR (R E) A RRA R o S AR
C. P. Premix (Tianjin) PRC/PRC US$23,812,500 - 100.0% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. ™ W B 23,812,5003 ¢ sale of animal feed
IERBRBNEH)ARAR 2 8 By R
Chengdu Chia Tai Company PRC/PRC 1US$6,300,000 - 70.0% Manufacture and
Limited @ W 6,300,000 70 sale of animal feed
AR TE KA PR A A S Byt Bl
Chia Tai Feed (Helin) PRC/PRC RMB66,000,000 - 100.0% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. ™ H g, v 66,000,000\ ¥ sale of animal feed
TERARECRIBR) A R AT ) S iR
Huai Hua Chia Tai Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC 1US$3,900,000 - 100.0% ® Manufacture and
BULIE KB R AR @ g 3,900,0003% 7€ sale of animal feed

FE 39 B 0y
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21

Company name

Ok

Inner Mongolia Chia Tai

Co., Ltd. @

W IE KA PR A o
Lanzhou Chia Tai Co., Ltd. (@

M IE KA FRA T

Mianyang Chia Tai Co., Ltd. @
Aba IE XA AR O

Qingdao Chiatai Agricultural
Development Co., Ltd. ¥

HRIEKRERREARAF

Wuhan Chia Tai Co., Ltd. (@
REERFRAT @

Xiangyang Chia Tai Co., Ltd. (¥
FERERARAF @

Yichang Chia Tai Co., Ltd. ()
HEBERARAHR ©

C. P. Food (Xiangyang)

Co., Ltd. ™

TEK e (R AR 7 )

C. P. Food (Xuzhou)
Co., Ltd. ™

ERA R (M) AT o

Chia Tai Food Enterprise
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd.
EREmeE (FS)

AR o

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
b % BB B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

Place of

incorporation/

operations
W,
B

PRC/PRC

i

PRC/PRC
B

PRC/PRC
i,

PRC/PRC
B

PRC/PRC
e

PRC/PRC
i,

PRC/PRC
i

PRC/PRC
B

PRC/PRC
i,

PRC/PRC
e

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
CRTRER

T A

US$8,190,700
8,190,7003% 70

US$14,953,000
14,953,00037C

US$4,000,000
4,000,000 78

US$19,420,000
19,420,0003 75

US$10,990,000
10,990,0003 ¢

RMB117,100,000
117,100,000 A\ R

US$18,090,000
18,090,0003 76

RMB570,000,000
570,000,000 A

RMB342,680,000
342,680,000 A R

US$85,700,000
85,700,000 70

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
-

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by
Company  Group

FEAK 5 A7 1B B v 2 bE
ARnw ARGEH
- 90.4% ¢

- 90.6% ¢

- 80.0%

- 100.0%

- 100.0% ¢

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

RKE AR RS ()

Principal activities

FHEEH

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

BRI B R

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

BRI B R

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

BRI B R

Slaughter and sale of

pork meat products

s B R A

Slaughter and sale of

pork meat products

5 B R A

Manufacture and
sale of value—added,

processed food products

S (A0 TR i
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Company name

2wl B

Chia Tai Food Enterprise
(Qinhuangdao) Co., Ltd. )

EAEREE (REE)
AR ©

Jilin Chia Tai Food Co., Ltd. ()
HHRERR A RAR ©

Chia Tai Food (Sugian) Co.,
Ltd. ™
ERE R (HE)HRAF ™

Fujian Chia Tai Food Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries )

BRETE K A
RIEFAT

Hubei Chia Tai Co., Ltd. @
WAL ERA B4 @

Modern State Investments
Limited

CpPVC

Hannick Limited

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
h#®% BB B A R 2 F

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R MY 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21

Place of
incorporation/
operations
B,/
B

PRC/PRC
g

PRC/PRC
i,

PRC/PRC
e

PRC/PRC
i,

PRC/PRC
v

British Virgin
Islands/Hong Kong
BT E B

Vietnam/Vietnam

g,/

Hong Kong/Hong Kong
" B

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
CRTRaER

T A

US$117,460,000
117,460,0003 G

RMB380,000,000
380,000,000 A R

RMB856,298,060
856,298,060 A

RMB218,000,000
218,000,000 \ R

RMB280,000,000
280,000,000 A\ &

US$106,984,000
106,984,0005& G

VND
9,188,671,500,000
9,188,671,500,000

L)

2 shares

21 B4

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by
Company  Group

TEAK 5 A1 1B BE ¥ 2 bE
ARnw AGEH

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

70.0%

- 100.0%

100.0%  100.0%

- 170.8%

- 100.0%

RKE AR RS ()

Principal activities

FEEH

Manufacture and
sale of value—added,

processed food products

S 1A T

Slaughter and sale of

chicken meat products

s B e A )

Manufacture and
sale of chicken

meat products

T B2 A 7

Manufacture and
sale of chicken

meat products

T S 5 A E i

Manufacture and
sale of animal feed and
chicken meat products

2 819 ) Ay i B
T 0 P4 7 i

Investment holding

Integrated

agri-food business

AT AR b E T

Property investment

UE Sy
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A B 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E _-F—J4E+ZH =+ —H 1L
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21

Notes:

(i) The Group is only entitled to 85% of the subsidiary’s earnings.
The remaining 15% is attributable to the PRC joint venture
partner.

(ii) Established as a contractual joint venture under PRC law.

(iii) Established as a cooperative joint venture under PRC law.

(iv) Established as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC

law.

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the

Group’s profits and losses or formed a substantial portion of the

Group. To give details of all the other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

RKE AR RS ()

Wik -

(i) A4 P (AT B 2 A LA 285% > Hifik 2

15% i B BAA -

(i) PR AR

(i) 3% B R 2 A AR R A 3 o

(iv) PR R 2 A A A R -

B h i B R Z A 4 R E > R
Fy > T RACAE SR AR S A AR
BIRERA o B EE A > B T AT At B 2
F A A R 5 B0 R R TR

length.
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22 MRNEELENESR
2019 2018
ZE A ZE—)N\H
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t F# 0 Fi FEoLFoo
Investments in joint ventures, REERENRE
included in non-current assets: BERERBEEN :
Share of net assets AL 5 (a) 16,915 17,114
Due from joint ventures, included B AEBSERE > S5 NHEMN
in prepayments, deposits and SR AR ~ 9 4 T ML At R IR 3K
other receivables 28(a) 5,758 2,940
Due to joint ventures, included FEAT A8 A E3K0E - B8R
in other payables and accruals JC Ath, JE A5 B 2k S TE IR A 31(b) (22,120) (20,529)
Interests in joint ventures WA SRR 553 (475)
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
189
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% BH B &R

Notes to Financial Statements

B 35 R MY A
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &

22 REghxmEs (8

22

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

A

Notes: M #:

(a) The Group has interests in a number of joint ventures, none of (a) AR ER GBS > T
which is regarded as individually material. The following table fl B S — R A K » R ME A DL RE 25
summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of all joint PR Z B AR B E R -
ventures that are accounted for using the equity method:

Other Total
Carrying Profit for comprehensive comprehensive
amount the year income income
iR T £ AEGER  HtzmEkE 2wk
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
EFmn EZmn b mn b mn
2019 “R
Group effective interest A A G RRE 5 16,915 2,597 (265) 2,332
2018 ZR-N\E
Group effective interest A A RO £ 17,114 3,226 (856) 2,370
(b) The Group’s trade receivable and trade payable with joint (b) ARAEBEFEH B LEZEIRE 5K K& RE

ventures are disclosed in notes 27(c) and 30 to the financial

statements, respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b ¥ HE

B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE
REELENESR (&)

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

22

Particulars of the principal joint ventures, which are indirectly

held by the Company, are as follows:

Company name
AR
Beijing Chia Tai Feedmill Limited

R IERFRA A 7

Handan Chia Tai Feed Co., Ltd.
T BB TE BB B W]

Henan East Chia Tai Co., Ltd.
R RO I RAT PR 7]

Place of

incorporation/

operations
o/

8 B

PRC/PRC

o,

PRC/PRC
v

PRC/PRC
e

Registered capital
T A
US$5,000,000

5,000,0003& 7€

RMB11,200,000
11,200,000 A %

US$5,400,000
5,400,0003 7€

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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MaE - (A7)

(c) HIAC A ] A 2 BEAE KT

T

Percentage of

FAEESLL

Interest

attributable
to the Profit
Group sharing

A
WEAGRER:  REQN A
50.0% 50.0%
50.0% 50.0%
50.0% 50.0%

Principal activities

B 3

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

T S B Ay B B

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

8 ) A i e

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

S B Py B Bk
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R R MY 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%
23 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 23 REEATHER
2019 2018
ZEZ A ZR )N\
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t F L Fi Fo T T
Share of net assets JEAL VP& A (a) 117,348 100,515
Goodwill on acquisition W B A W P 28,199 28,199
145,547 128,714
Due from associates, included in JE A Bk 2 A R K E A
prepayments, deposits and other PR~ BER
receivables At W B 3k 28(a) 2,585 -
Due to associates, included in other JRE A W 2% A B aKOE AR
payables and accruals JUAth, W A+ M ok I TEAR B 31(b) (38) (114)
Interests in associates AT A W) I RE 2 148,094 128,600
Notes: it :
(a) The Group has interests in a number of associates, none of (a) AR A [ SR W 4 s W) BER RS > MEJRAE
which is regarded as individually material. The following Ao 88 . — SR B AR 2 8 Bl T K o TR R ME A DL
table summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of all WEZR IR Z B2 A w2 B E R 5] .
associates that are accounted for using the equity method:
Other Total
Carrying Profit for comprehensive comprehensive
amount the year income income
e T AMwEA k2w 2wk A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

S XKL TTT FILTTT KL T

2019 ZE M
Group effective interest AR A RORE 25 145,547 26,448 (1,748) 24,700
2018 —&F— )\
Group effective interest AR R A 128,714 19,069 (7,314) 11,755

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes: (continued)

(b)

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E _-F—J4E+ZH =+ —H 1L
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associates, which are indirectly

held by the Company, are as follows:

control over the economic activity of the entities
but has significant influence over the entities, the
Group’s interests therein are classified as interests in

associates.

The Group has a board seat at Qingdao Yi Bang, and

has significant influence over the entity.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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23

Place of
incorporation/  Issued ordinary/
Company name operations  registered capital
Bor  CBATRERS
AR L B AR
Conti Chia Tai International Hong Kong/ HK$3,122,000
Limited* PRC 3,122,000% 0
J5E 3 TE K Rl B A R A ) s E
Qingdao Yi Bang Bio- PRC/PRC  RMB28,409,090
Engineering Co., Ltd P 28,409,000 A R
(“Qingdao Yi Bang”)*
HESHRED TRAERAA
(IHFHHH])
* Since the Group is not in a position to exercise joint

RBE R NERS (&)
ML - (4)

(b)  HEARATMENEZ EHEEEATFEN
T

Percentage of

FiAE

Interest
attributable

to the Group Profit sharing Principal activities

A 4 B
Al R 25 JREA i ) TR
50.0% 50.0% Investment holding,
and manufacture and
sale of animal feed
B K
2 8 B i R
12.0%" 12.0% Manufacture and

sale of animal vaccine

S B e

* H A A 4J R AR 3 % 45 4 W) 2
WEATH I R e > B A
HEKBES - AREIMFFH MR
2 B A T N E A A -

# AR B A A — R E R g
s SR TEATE R -
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ] & Mt 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &
24 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 24 HthemEE
2019 2018
S L =T Sy
Note US$’000 US$’000
M 7t Ve ForTx
Equity investments measured at FVOCI HE 25 B & 1 A R B
(non-recycling): 75 48 F Ath 2 i 0 25 51 R
(AP IR L)
Listed equity investment, at fair value LR
EPAD 1 (b) 17,206 13,966
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value I b ZRERRE >
Al - 1,076
17,206 15,042

Notes: Mt

(a) The Group holds the above equity investments for long-term (a) A4 [ FE A 0 RE 25 B R AR R SR g
strategic purposes and designates them as equity investments P > $ o S AR T R I I A At 2 T R 25 5
measured at FVOCI (non-recycling). W CRA PRI EHS) -

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has (b) NEEF-WE&E+_HA=1+—HNILE
disposed unlisted equity investments of US$1,096,000 (2018: BE s ARG E109.68E L2 I BT
listed equity investments of US$15,841,000). The movement MR BE (R — ) Lz ERfE
of the Group’s equity investment is as follows: 1,584 18 3£ 00) » A 55 [ BE 25 3¢ & 5 B

T
2019 2018
SE o SF R
US$’000 US$’000
E/en FFor
Carrying amount at 1 January H—H—H Z MR HE 15,042 41,751
Net change in fair value A AR SR B A 3,568 (9,790)
Disposals e (1,096) (15,841)
Exchange realignment P 0, ) (308) (1,078)
Carrying amount at 31 December AT H=Z+—HZREE 17,206 15,042

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 8R & M =
For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE
GOODWILL 25 e
2019 2018
ZEZ A ZR )\
US$’000 US$’000
F L Fi FoToc
At 1 January #*—H—H 35,461 37,488
Exchange realignment [ ba, ) 2% (431) (2,027)
At 31 December Ht+-_H=+—8H 35,030 35,461
Goodwill represented the assets that do not meet the criteria BRI AR M B REMLMENZ &
for recognition in the financial statements including workforce FE o AL HE A A T I S A O T B
and synergies that the Group expected to achieve through the N 71 B 1 TR B HE o
business combinations.
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units T i T J 5848 4y S B BT B R K 4 il B v
(CGU) identified according to the country of operation and ok A A B 4 A E LA o
the operating segment.
Goodwill is allocated to the China agri-food segment. &G E PR BRNENER SN - B S
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based Az B S AN Y BT I A R G H A R A R A
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash o %S5 RS T AR A T i A M TR 2 5 4R 0T Y
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by W EEEAT R B i R T o BB SAE R
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond BERBIIH3% (ZF— )\ : 3%) 05T
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated N RE - ¥ 36 % RRAUEATHE S o Bl A U B TH M 9%
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%). The cash BR12% (ZF—)\E: 13%) BITHHR &%
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 12% (2018: 13%). M ZAr BRI BLRT » 3F S e BE 3% 4 B B 4 2
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks 7 YA B 22 4 1) JEL B o
relating to the relevant CGUs.
INVENTORIES 26 FE
2019 2018
ZE A RN\
US$’000 US$’'000
F L Fi Er n
Raw materials BBk 585,231 513,243
Work in progress iy L 6,912 12,357
Finished goods R 161,260 103,457
753,403 629,057
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 7

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £~ F—JLE+H=+—H ILF &

27 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 27 EWESZRIAKRERE
2019 2018
SEAE S
US$’000 US$’000
i i FLF
Trade receivables JRE Wi B B R 3k 246,296 341,388
Bills receivable E W 2 11,715 12,127
258,011 353,515

Depending on the requirements of the market and business,

the Group may extend credit to its customers. The Group seeks

to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management

and interest may be charged by the Group for overdue trade

receivables at rates determined by the Group with reference

BRI B Be 36 T oK > KRB KB THF
15 B0 o A AR T 3B 20 O MR A R i A% 2 B
Vit o 4 B 5 BT 58 I AR AT I ) 2 A5 K > BT
HE 17 12 A 4R 1 2 2% 7 45 4 0 e O 2 A R
B HmERE > AEERARREPHER
JE I o A S I O B MRk e e 2 R i

to market practice. In the opinion of the directors, there is no Pr (LB H M AR NT :
significant concentration of credit risk. An aging analysis of
the Group’s trade and bills receivables, based on the date of
delivery of goods, is as follows:
2019 2018
ZEJuE —F )\
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T T F T
60 days or below 60H 5L F 219,916 240,375
61 to 180 days 61%180H 31,582 108,117
Over 180 days Z R 180H 6,513 5,023
258,011 353,515
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A B 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % ] & M &
For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE
27 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 27 FEWESZERIAREE (&)
(continued)
Notes: Mt -
(a) The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade (a) JE W B MRk M SR R A A S -
and bills receivables are as follows:
2019 2018
- S K3 “ER)N\E
Note US$’000 US$’000
Kt P n FLFo
At 1 January R—H—H 11,596 10,739
Impairment loss, net VRAE R AE 9 2,569 3,436
Uncollectible amounts written off I W Il 2 S g 4 (2,355) (2,579)
At 31 December wHt+-H=+—H 11,810 11,596
(b) An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date (b) B8 e 5 H O A 48 40 A 2RO AT I ME 4
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. B DARFETEBE B E - SR E R
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings A SR A 5 B 45 B % P B A 4 AL AR
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., AR B (B b PR s ~ A AR - B
by geographical region, product type, customer type, etc). TUEE) o TR T BERIMAELL SR - &%
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, R ) 1 DA B i S H O e R e 25 S
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable BT SR Y0 AT AR 2 2R SR 0 T B B A B A AT
information that is available at the reporting date about past TRER

events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic

conditions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

BF 7% R & M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%

27 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 27
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019 R4

e
Weighted average expected loss rate TR T ¥ L R
Gross carrying amount (US$’000) Mg (FExF)
Expected credit loss (US$’000) HMGRE (ErTr)
As at 31 December 2018 REF— )4

+ZH=+—H
Weighted average expected loss rate TRET- 3 B e R
Gross carrying amount (US$’000) M (#LT)
Expected credit loss (US$'000) B EE (ErFor)

(c) Included in the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December

2019 are aggregate amounts of US$2,742,000 (2018:
US$4,166,000) and US$175,268,000 (2018: US$266,477,000)
due from joint ventures and related companies, respectively,
arising from transactions carried out in the ordinary course
of business of the Group. The balances are unsecured, bear
interest at rates determined by the Group after past due and
are repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by

the Group to its independent third party customers.
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BHREZERRAREE (&)

ML - (#)
(b) ()

VLT SR AT ] A 41 0 IR i 20 5 ok D £ 1 48
AR TR P4 £ B L B vy B

Nether past due  Less than 180  Over 180 days

nor impaired  days past due past due Total
REWEAME BHHR180H BELH180H At
0.01% 0.84% 78.97% 4.58%
202,930 40,678 14,498 258,106

20 340 11,450 11,810

0.01% 0.09% 78.73% 3.29%

243,723 94,674 14,587 352,984

24 87 11,485 11,596

()  ALERZZ-NFETZA=ZT—HZE
We B 5 Wk 4 45 A 4 T AC G HOW SR B R
Sh W I A R 274 28 500 (&R — N
At 416.685 3 70) K 1187,526.8% 5ot (=
T J\AE = 2486,647. 78 3 58) 43 3 74 HE WL
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28 FEMNBRR EEeRHMEWERR
RECEIVABLES

2019 2018
ZEZ LA RN\
US$’000 US$’000
e i E e n
Prepayments TH AT HR 3 182,987 282,279
Deposits w4 15,443 8,996
Other receivables Atk W B 3 96,292 97,441
Derivative financial instruments ikl 359 2,822
295,081 391,538

Notes:

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2019 were aggregate amounts of
US$5,758,000 (2018: US$2,940,000), US$2,585,000 (2018:
nil) and US$146,039,000 (2018: US$213,243,000) due from

joint ventures, associates and related companies, respectively.

The balances with joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for an aggregate
amount of US$5,501,000 (2018: US$514,000) due from
certain joint ventures which bear interests at 4.9% (2018:

4.9%) per annum and are repayable on demand.

The balances with related companies are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

As at December 2019, the balance of impairment allowance
of deposits and other receivables was US$4,911,000 (2018
US$2,326,000) that resulting from default events that are
expected over the remaining life of the exposure (lifetime

ECLs).
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER 29

RERBITERREMBREREER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION bl
2019 2018
ZE A RN\
US$’000 US$’000
i 2 FEL T T
Cash and bank balances other than time B4 AT A
deposits (B EWAAER) 407,920 391,435
Time deposits E WK 34,436 51,523
Total cash and bank balances B4 MR AT A7 Kk 44 442,356 442,958
Less: Pledged deposits W B FE K (17,699) (34,835)
Less: Time deposits with maturity over three W BHHEE=MA
months Z MR (2,293) (15,233)
Cash and cash equivalents BReREEZEY 422,364 392,890
Notes: B2

(a) At 31 December 2019, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) amounted to US$366,752,000
(2018: US$394,849,000) and US$67,712,000 (2018:
US$35,120,000), respectively. RMB and VND are not freely
convertible into other currencies. Under Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations in China and
the Law on Foreign Investment in Vietnam, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB and VND into other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business for our foreign currency businesses such as imports of

raw materials and equipment, distribution of dividends, etc.

(b) Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
depending on the cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 W EZ _F—WET_H=Z+—H IL4EE

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

The table below sets out the changes in the Group’s liabilities

from financing activities, including both cash and non-

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

liabilities for which cash flow were, or future cash flow will be,

classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as

cash flows from financing activities.

# (&)

MaE - (A7)

RERBITERREMBRERE]

()  HhEWHBFIELNEAZ WL :

A A A 42 A B R R
b BERAREMIEREZ b - fE
% T T A i AR B i e R R B
SRENFEAREBAESREEREL DS
S50y T ) O s WY B A

Bank Corporate Lease
borrowings bond liabilities Total
BT e HLEE £ 0% ik
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
P n P n E e n E i n
At 1 January 2019 W_Z2—LE—H—H 1,666,326 145,041 - 1,811,367
Impact on initial application BB A B B
of IFRS 16 HE RIS 16595 2 Y - - 388,410 388,410
Adjusted balance at 1 January R-F—NFE—H—H
2019 AR 1,666,326 145,041 388,410 2,199,777
Changes from financial PEBERED :
cash flow:
Proceeds from new bank BT 3G SRAT A K
borrowings 1,655,480 - - 1,655,480
Repayment of bank borrowings 18 #& 47 1 3k (1,586,142) - - (1,586,142)
Redemption of corporate bond [ [l 4> 3 fi§ % - (130,545) - (130,545)
Capital element of ST EM S
lease rental paid 2 A4 R A - - (34,096) (34,096)
Total changes from financing il B 4 Y A A )
cash flows 69,338 (130,545) (34,096) (95,303)
Exchange realignment FE 5o, o7 % (14,537) (3,004) (102) (17,643)
Other changes: HAibsz®) -
Increase in lease liabilities from 48 P PR3] 7 357 AL B
entering into new leases Tt 354 o #) FHL B £ 6
during the year - - 122,898 122,898
Amortisation of upfront fee i i 40 Gy i A 1,849 341 - 2,190
At 31 December 2019 BRFE—hE+H
=+—H 1,722,976 11,833 477,110 2,211,919
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 E - F—4E+_H=+—H L)%
CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER 29

29

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% BH B &R

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

(continued)

N

A

# (&)

MaE - (A7)

RERBITHERRAEMRE

REE&

()  HhNEWBFTELNREZWmE  (8)

Bank borrowings Corporate bond Total
AT e g ek
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FILTIL FILTFIT FILTIT
At 1 January 2018 W_F—N\#—H—H 1,534,214 152,818 1,687,032
Changes from financial cash flow: e B AR AR
Proceeds from new bank borrowings ST ER AT A R 1,655,223 - 1,655,223
Repayment of bank borrowings 18 35 SRAT A5 2K (1,491,743) - (1,491,743)
Total changes from financing il ¥ B 4 I AR A )
cash flows 163,480 - 163,480
Exchange realignment T 54, i 8¢ (33,332) (8,281) (41,613)
Other changes: HoAdy 52 ) -
Amortisation of upfront fee T i 0 G e Y 1,964 504 2,468
At 31 December 2018 A SN 2
+-H=+—8H 1,666,326 145,041 1,811,367

Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows

for leases comprise the following:

(d)  HEBLEW AR

MHERFAZEBRERERZEFAHEU
THE:

2019

I S K2

US$’000

e o

Within investing cash flows ARG AR B 1S B B4R 28,442
Cash flows for land use rights 7 - A I RE 2 Bl iR 28,442
Within operating cash flows BEELBEBBER 59,286
Within financing cash flows B 7E AL TS B B2 TR 34,096
Cash flows for other right-of-use assets Bt H A fli Al % & 2 Bl &3 93,382
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E _-F—J4E+ZH =+ —H 1L
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of

30 ENEZRIRRERERE

7SR TP S o 30 R M AR B MRk 2 M 6 4 A

the reporting period, based on the date of receipt of goods, is as (DB HH B RE) T :
follows:

2019 2018
“E - ZR )\
US$’000 US$’000
L FIL FIL T
60 days or below 60H BT 312,496 290,466
61 to 180 days 61%180H 30,032 40,170
Over 180 days ZJ¥180H 8,517 9,098
351,045 339,734
Bills payable JE AT S48 95,071 137,073
446,116 476,807

Included in the Group’s trade payables as at 31 December 2019
is an aggregate amount of US$1,631,000 (2018: US$518,000),
US$711,000 (2018: US$578,000) and US$69,746,000 (2018:
US$46,436,000) due to joint ventures, associates and related

companies respectively, arising from transactions carried out in

the ordinary course of business of the Group. The balances are

unsecured, interest-free and are repayable within credit periods

similar to those offered by its major independent third party

suppliers.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

AREEPR —F—NET A=+ —HZ R
H AR ORAREHHEER S REIEEN
FEAT & 8 A 3~ T8 A R B B A R 2 3K0E
SR E163.18 E I (ZF— )\ 4 : 51.8%
EI6) ~ TLAEFEIL (ZF— )\ 5788 %
J6) }6,974.68 350 (ZF — )\4E 1 4,643.68
FI0) o FEMB A - BB R ENME
BP9 B R (B SR I R o A = 5 Ak

v B 4R A 2 f5 S A ) -

31 HMENKRIRREAREHN

2019 2018
ZE A R )N\F
Note US$’°000 US$’000
Mt 7t ES FEoLFoo
Contract liabilities HFHIARE (a) 107,086 94,889
Deferred income WA 46,038 69,803
Accruals TEIREH 264,540 226,492
Other payables JL b, JBE A5 R 3k 141,430 72,712
559,094 463,896
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(continued)

31

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has contract liabilities
of US$107,086,000 (2018: US$94,889,000), which represents
the obligation to transfer goods to customers for which the
consideration has been received. All contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period is recognised as revenue
in the current reporting period from performance obligations

satisfied upon delivery of goods.

Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals as at 31
December 2019 were aggregate amounts of US$22,120,000
(2018: US$20,529,000), US$38,000 (2018: US$114,000) and
US$64,790,000 (2018: US$39,192,000) due to joint ventures,

associates and related companies, respectively.

The balances with joint ventures, associates and related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment, except for (i) an aggregate amount
of US$22,111,000 (2018: US$20,430,000) due to certain
joint ventures which bear interests at 2% (2018: 2%) per
annum, and are repayable on demand, (ii) an aggregate
amount of US$3,027,000 (2018: nil) due to certain related
companies which bear interests at 6% per annum, and are
repayable within one year, and (iii) an aggregate amount
of US$23,126,000 (2018: US$20,887,000) due to a related

company which is repayable within one month.

N

31
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AREHPR-Z—NET_A=ZT—HZH
At JRE A VR ik T TR e P AR5 A 52,212,088
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BANK BORROWINGS 32 RITHER
2019 2018
SECNE SE N
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t Syl i FoLFoo
Bank borrowings, secured AR AT AR 5k (a),(b) 186,694 169,818
Bank borrowings, unsecured S SRAT K K 1,536,282 1,496,508
Total bank borrowings SRAT A K 4B A 1,722,976 1,666,326
Analysed into amounts repayable: IR EH A
Within one year or on demand —AE N BRI R 1,174,796 842,230
In the second year i - 365,771 329,785
In the third to fifth year NE=FE LA 165,639 488,859
Beyond five years i AR 16,770 5,452
Total bank borrowings SRAT A SR B 1,722,976 1,666,326
Portion classified as current liabilities SRR LB A (c) (1,174,796) (842,230)
Non-current portion I I B Aoy 548,180 824,096
Notes: Mt &t

(a) At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s property, plant

and equipment with carrying amounts of US$153,135,000
(2018: US$177,791,000) (note 15(b)) were pledged as security

for bank borrowings of the Group.

(b) At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s land use
rights with carrying amounts of US$54,596,000 (2018:
US$47,678,000) (note 17) were pledged as security for bank

borrowings of the Group.
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b b R MR i B B RE5,459.6 8 %00
(ZB—)\4 @ 476788 %) (1) B